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Consolidated financial highlights

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

dollars in thousands except per share data

FORTHEYEAR 2011 2010 CHANGE

Net interest income 62778 52150 10628 20.4%

Net interest income after loan and lease loss provision 56690 42296 14394 34.0%

Non-interest income 34150 29375 4775 16.3%

Non-interest expenses 61526 57985 3541 6.1%

Income taxes 9601 4512 5089 112.8%

Net income 19713 9174 10539 114.9%

AT YEAR-END

Total assets $1774907 $1731768 43139 2.5%

Total portfolio loans and leases 1295392 1196717 98675 8.2%

Total deposits 1382369 1341432 40937 3.1%

Shareholders equity 185913 161418 24495 15.2%

Tangible common equity 143210 136695 6515 4.8%

Wealth assets under management administration 4831631 3412890 1418741 41.6%

supervision and brokerage

PER COMMON SHARE

Basic earnings per common share 1.55 0.85 0.70 82.4%

Diluted earnings per common share 1.54 0.85 0.69 81.2%

Dividends declared 0.60 0.56 0.04 7.1%

Book value 14.09 13.24 0.85 6.4%

Closing price at year-end 19.49 17.45 2.04 11.7%

SELECTED RATIOS

Return on average assets 1.14% 0.61%

Return on average shareholders equity 11.08% 6.76%

Tax equivalent net interest margin 3.96% 3.79%

Tangible common equity to tangible assets 8.27% 8.01%





Dear Fellow Shareholders

am pleased to report that the Bryn Mawr Bank Corporation and

our pnncipal subs diary The Bryn Mawr Trust Company had yet

another excellent year and achieved record earnings in 2011

Our total return to shareholders this past year including

dividends was 1% which followed the previous years total

return of 19.4o We are proud that our shareholders have

benefited from tha Banks strong results

Here are somo of the highlights

On May 27 7011 we completed the acquisition of the

Private Wealth Management Group of the Hershey Trust

Company ibis cquisition added $1.1 billion in wealth assets

and over twentj top professionals to our existing Wealth

Management oup

In February 2012 we signed definitive agreement to acquire

Davidson Trust Company which located in Devon Pennsylvania

Davidson is tionally known and respected trust and

investment him which will add approximately $1 billion of

wealth assets tc our growing Wealth Group We hope to close

this transact ion during the second quarter of 2012

Lau Associaes our family offics subsidiary in Delaware

continued to grow its client base revenue and profitability

Headed by its founder Judy Lau the company is generally

regarded piemier financial planning asset management

and intergeneotional wealth transfer strategy firm for highly

affluent families on the East Coast

As noted we had record earninJs of $19.7 million or $1.54

per diluted share Our Board of Directors has shown their

confidence in tF future of the organization by increasing our

quarterly dividend to 16 cents an increase of 6.7%

Despite the wez economy our loan growth in 2011 was 8.2%

one of the ldrger increases of banks in our market Our loan

quality remains excellent with ronperforming loans and leases

being only 11ü of the total portfolio

Our Wealth Group saw its asset under management

administration supervision and brokerage grow to over

$48 billion dun the past yeai This increase of 4100 was due

not only to the Hershey acquisilion but was also the result

of robust internal growth We remain one of the nations

preeminent we ilth services providers

Although we were pleased with this past year our focus is now on

2012 and beyond Clearly the economy is still recovering from the

recession and we expect unemployment to remain high and general

growth in both our regional market and nationally to remain sluggish

Adding to this is an extremely low interest rate environment that

squeezes the net interest margins of banks everywhere

However we believe that our focus on relationship oriented

banking and highquality client service will continue to

differentiate us from our competition can assure you that the

Board of Directors and management are dedicated to enhancing

shareholder value

On personal note Id like to mention that after 25 years of

dedicated service Ben Taylor will be retiring from the Boards

of the Corporation and the Bank at this years Annual Meeting

He has always been an active and engaged director chairing

numerous Board committees during his tenure We will miss Bens

wise observations as well as his quick wit Bryn Mawr Trust is

much better bank for having had Ben as part of it for so long

Should you have any questions or comments please call me on

my direct line 610 581 4800 Thank you for your support

Ted Peters

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Sincerely



Bryn Mawr Bank Corporation Reports Strong

Second Quarter Earnings With Wealth Management Service

Re\ enue Up 3ft2% From Same Period Last Year
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The Retail Banking team was very successful growing client

relationships predominately in the new markets we entered as

C.-- result of the July 2010 acquisition of First Keystone Bank FKBJ We

have been very pleased with the retentiorr rates of the former FKB

blients Our staf has done wonderful job welcoming these clients

F.-
ththe Bryn Mawr Trust family in all markets our team maintains

very active yeanround schedule of activities to generate new client

o-lationships Their efForts have been fruitful as evidenced by our

greatly increased number of accounts arid housefiold relatiorsships

NVESTQR NEWS

TWo additional lrm\/estment analysts initiated coverage on Bryn Mawr

Bdtik P.orporation in 2011 SandIer ONeil Partners and Sterne Agee

hase joined Bmanning Scattorgood Guggenheim Dartners

Kd.fe Bruyette Woods arid Stifel Nicolaus to provide coverage on

the Corporation

In June 2011 we were notified that we had been ranked 115th out

of rhous-ands of benks in The US Bankers annual ranking of the top

community banks in the Unite-d States The. rankings are based on the

firsancial institutions performarsce as compiled by SNL Financial LI

BauerFinanciai an independent rating agency awarded us their top

lIar rating for hnancial strength as of September 30 2011 The

S--Star rating is only awarded to barsks with superior performance

On Oecernher 31 2011 The lAd/i Street Jcrurnal reportecJ that team of

2011 ANNUAL REMIT



banking analysts at Keefe Bruyette Whods had recommended Bryn

Mawr Bank Corporahon as one of three highipro6tahle bank stocks to

buy ks2012

Orr January 30 2012 we annoonred 6.7% increase in our guartedy

dividend from the previ.ous quarter This ma rked the 76th consecutive

quarterly dividend for our shareh.oloers

MMUNTY GIVIN .G ACTVT1ES ANDVE.NTS

As commu nity bank we are orornitted to supporting the

communities we serve In 201 continued ou rt radition of

generouuy supporting wide vaoety cat charitable educationai

cultural and trivic orga iz.ationt

Through our participation in the Coroioonwalth of Pennsylvanias

Educationai irn.provernent Tax Crmtdit Program vvhich includes

schoois and educational proc .irnent organizations many

worthwhile organizations received grants from Bryn Mawr Trust to

support their scholarship proq.atEhs

The PennsyI.variia Association of Community Bankers honored us this

year by awardin us their Beaic.nhi Community Service Award We

were h.onored to he recognized fbr our support of the Linda Kahiey

Ovaran Canc.er vValk which aids in the oattle aganst ovaran cancer

We are focused on hel pi nct to prevent ci icmts and rnem hers of

the commmrnity from bec.orninq dictims of identity theft To help

combat this very serious and growing problem we held serie.s of

free shred events that we.re open to the ut3c where personal

or sen sit.ive documents could be shredded lay secure document

destruction service We received very positive feedback from this

series of events and intend to continue them in 2012

Bryn Mawr Trust is committed to making positive difference in the

comncunitieswe serve

June marked the completion of major renovations at our Havertown

branch with ribbon cutting ceremony and customer reception

The renovatlons were dramatic improvement to the
facility

and we

have had many compliments from both clients and team members

The branch is located at 18 West Eagle Road 1-Javertown Pennsylvania

19083 We invite you to visit the branch and say hello to the team

We will continue to seek out new and prohtable opportunities for

growth in the future Nevv opportunities will he carefully evaluated

just as we have in the past using thoughtful disciplined approach

focused on risk management and prohtahilitv Bryn Mawr Trust is

fundamentally sound and has the flexibility and agility to respond

to the opportunities afforded by our earnings strong capital base

stable asset quality and availahle liquidity

While management and the Board of Directors are please.d with our

2011 results vve wont be content with past accomplishments and

have set our goals for 2012 even higher

Bryn Ma.wr dust

BrynMawr Bank Corporation Reports Strong Third arter
With Net Income Of $5.0 Million And Year To Date Net Income

Of $14 Mjlljon HEADlINE THIRD QUARTER EARNINGS PRESS RELEASE ISSUED OCTOBER 27 2011



Corporate inftrmation

CORPORATE HEADQUARTERS

801 Lancaster Ave Bryn Mawr PA 1901t 610-525-1700 www.bmtc.com

DIRECTORS

Andrea Gilbert President Bryn Mawr Hospital

Donald Guthrie Attorney at Law

Wendell Holland Partner Saul Ewing LLP

Scott Jenkins President Jenkins Co

Jerry Johnson Principal Partner Heffier Radetich Saitta LLP

David Lees Senior Partner myClO Wealth Partners LLC

Francis Leto Executive Vice President General Counsel

Wealth Management Division

Britton Murdoch CEO City Line Motors Managing Director

Strattech Partners

Frederick Ted Peters II Chairman President Chief Executive Officer

Bryn Mawr Bank Corporation and The Bryn Mawr Trust Company

Loyall Taylor Jr President Taylor Gifts Inc

MARKET MAKERS

Boenning Scattergood Inc

Credit Suisse Securities USA

Deutsche Bank Securities Inc

Goldman Sachs Co

Janney Montgomery Scott LLC

Keefe Bruyette Woods Inc

Morgan Stanley Co Inc

Sandier ONeill Partners LP

Sterne Agee Leach Inc

Stifel Nicolaus Co

UBS Securities LLC

For complete list visit our website at www.bmtc.com

INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

KPMG LLP 1601 Market Street Philadelphia PA 19103

LEGAL COUNSEL

McElroy Deutsch Mulvaney Carpenter LLP

One Penn Center at Suburban Station

1617 John Kennedy Boulevard Suite 1500 Philadelphia PA 19103

Stradley Ronon Stevens Young LLP

2005 Market Street Suite 2600 Philadelphia PA 19103-7098

BRYN MAWR BANK CORPORATION

Frederick Ted Peters II Chairman President Chief Executive Officer

Geoffrey Halberstadt Corporate Secretary

Duncan Smith CPA Treasurer and Assistant Secretary

Francis Leto Vice President General Counsel

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARY

The Bryn Mawr Trust Company

Subsidiary of Bryn Mawr Bank Corporation

EXECUTIVE MANAGEMENT

Frederick Ted Peters II Chairman President Chief Executive Officer

Alison Gers Executive Vice President Retail Banking Central Sales

Marketing Information Systems Operations

Geoffrey Halberstadt Executive Vice President Chief Risk Officer and

Corporate Secretary

Joseph Keefer Executive Vice President and Chief Lending Officer

Francis Leto Executive Vice President General Counsel

Wealth Management Division

Duncan Smith CPA Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

WEALTH MANAGEMENT DIVISION

10 South Bryn Mawr Avenue Bryn Mawr PA 19010

One West Chocolate Avenue Hershey PA 17033

LIFE CARE COMMUNITY OFFICES

Beaumont at Bryn Mawr Retirement Community Bryn Mawr PA

Bellingham Retirement Living West Chester PA

Martins Run Life Care Community Media PA

Rosemont Presbyterian Village Rosemont PA

The Quadrangle Haverford PA

Waverly Heights Gladwyne PA

White Horse Village Newtown Square PA

OTHER SUBSIDIARIES AND FINANCIAL SERVICES

BMT Leasing Inc

Subsidiary of The Bryn Mawr Trust Company Bryn Mawr PA

James Zelinskie Jr President

BMT Mortgage Company

Division of The Bryn Mawr Trust Company Bryn Mawr PA

Myron Headen President

BMT Mortgage Services Inc

Subsidiary of The Bryn Mawr Trust Company Bryn Mawr PA

Myron Headen President

BMT Settlement Services Inc

Subsidiary of The Bryn Mawr Trust Company Bryn Mawr PA

Myron Headen President

The Bryn Mawr Trust Company of Delaware

Subsidiary of Bryn Mawr Bank Corporation Greenville DE

Karen Fahrner Esq President

Insurance Counsellors of Bryn Mawr Inc

Subsidiary of The Bryn Mawr Trust Company Bryn Mawr PA

Thomas Drennan President

Lau Associates LLC

Subsidiary of Bryn Mawr Bank Corporation Greenville DE

Judith Lau CFP President

REGISTRAR TRANSFER AGENT

Computershare

P0 Box 358015 Pittsburgh PA 15252-8015

www.bnymellon.com/shareowner/equityaccess

INVESTOR RELATIONS

Aaron Strenkoski Vice President

610-581-4822

2011 ANNUAL REPORT







YOUR VOTE IS IMPORTANT PLEASE VOTE TODAY

We encourage you to take advantage of internet or telephone voting
Both are available 24 hours day days week

Internet and telephone voting is available through 1159 PM Eastern Time the day prior to the shareholder meeting date

INTERNET
http//www.proxyvoting.com/bmtc

Use the Internet to vote your proxy
Have your proxy card in hand when you

access the web site

Bryn Mawr Bank Corporation
OR

TELEPHONE

1-866-540-5760

Use any touch-tone telephone to vote

your proxy Have your proxy card in

hand_when you call

If you vote your proxy by Internet or by telephone

you do NOT need to mail back your proxy card

To vote by mail mark sign and date your proxy card

and return it in the enclosed postage-paid envelope

Your Internet or telephone vote authorizes the

named proxies to vote your shares in the same

manner as if you marked signed and returned your

proxy card

woe

15113

FOLDAND DETACH HERE

Please marh your votes as

Please indicate below your vote for the following proposals indicated or the example

lie Board
terammeeds

The Board
commende

FOR WITHHOLD AUTHORITY EXCEPTIONS
FOR AGAINST ABSTAIN

ELECTION OF DIRECTORS SAY-ON-PAY

To vote for the election of To approve non-binding advisory vote on executive officer compensation

the nominee below The Board recommends vote FQR proposal

The Board recommends vote EB proposal

NOMINEE CLASS II TERM TO EXPIRE IN 2016
The Board Recommeuda

01 Andrea Gilbert
FOR AGAINST ABSTAIN

CONFIRMATION OF AUDITORS

INSTRUCTIONS To withhold authority to vote for any individual nominee mark the
To ratify the appointment of KPMG LLP as the independent registered public

Exceptions box and write that nominees name in the space provided below
accounting firm for Bryn Mawr Bank Corporation for the fiscal year ending

December31 2012

Exceptions _____________________________________________________
The Board recommends vote FQB proposal

This proxy when properly executed will be voted in accordance with the directions given

by the undersigned shareholder In the absence of other directions this proxy will be

________ voted FOR proposals and The Proxies are authorized to vote in their discretion

as to all other mailers that may come before the 2012 Annual Meeting

Mark l-lere for

Address Change

or Comments

SEE REVERSE

Please Sign exactly as name appears When shares are held by ioint tenants both should sign When signing as attorney-in-fact executor administrator trustee or gaardian please give lull title as such it corporation please

sign lull corporate name by President or other authorized officer partnership please sign partnership name by an authorized person it limited Fabiiity company please sign company name by an authorrzed person

Signatures Signatures______________________________________ Date ____________________
2012



Directions to St Davids Golf Club

From turnpike at Valley Forge Exit Exit at route 202 South to Swedesford Road exit Make left onto Swedesford Road Make left on Old Eagle School

then left on Upper Gulph Road Follow approximately mile to Radnor Road and make right Follow for about mile and the Club entrance is on the

left just before the Valley Forge Military Academy Chapel

From Schuykill ExDresswav Route 76 Take Blue Route 476 South then follow directions for Blue Route going South

From Blue Route Route 476 oin South Take the St Davids/Villanova exit 13 make right onto Route 30 and an immediate left onto King of Prussia

Road Follow King of Prussia Road to the third
light Eagle Road Make left and follow Eagle Road up to the next

light Radnor Street Road and make

right Follow for about an 1/8 mile and the Club entrance is on the right just past the Valley Forge Military Academy Chapel

From Blue Route Route 476 eoin North Take the St Davids/Villanova exit 13 and cross over Route 30 onto King of Prussia Road Follow King of

Prussia Road to the third light Eagle Road Make left and follow Eagle Road up to the next light Radnor Street Road and make right Follow for about

an 1/8 mile and the Club entrance is on the right just past the Valley Forge Military Academy Chapel

From Lancaster Avenue Route 30 Traveling east turn left in Strafford at Eagle Road Spread Eagle Village Mobile Station Follow through one flashing

light to second traffic
light Radnor Street Road Turn left you will see sign for Valley Forge Military Academy Club is approximately 1/8 mile on right side

From Lancaster Avenue Route 30 Traveling west turn right at King of Prussia Road just past Blue Route overpass Go to third traffic light about one

mile turn left on Eagle Road Go about mile to first traffic light Turn right past Valley Forge Military Academy to club entrance mile on right

special invitation to all shareholders..

Think about us as more than an investment Make us your bank

Let us help you with

investment management

tax planning and return preparation

personal banking

business loans and services

cash management

retirement services

fiduciary services

insurance services

Please call me at 610 581- 4800 Thank you

Sincerely

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

FOLD AND DETACH HERE

REVOCABLE PROXY

Bryn Mawr Bank Corporation
ANNUAL SHAREHOLDERS MEETING MAY 2012

Proxy is Solicited on Behalf of the Board of Directors of Bryn Mawr Bank Corporation

The undersigned shareholders of Bryn Mawr Bank Corporation the Corporation hereby appoints Duncan Smith and Marie Connolfy as proxies

each with the power to appoint his or her substitute such proxies together with any duly appointed substitute proxies and hereby authorizes each of them

with the power to appoint his or her substitute and hereby authorizes each of them to represent and to vote all the shares of stock of the Corporation held of

record by the undersigned on March 15 2012 at the Corporations Annual Meeting of Shareholders to be held at 1100 A.M on May 22012 at St Davids Golf

Club 845 Radnor Street Road Wayne Pennsylvania and at any adjournment or postponement thereof

In their discretion the Proxies are authorized to vote upon such other business as may properly come before the meeting or any adjournment or

postponement thereof

PLEASE PROMPTLY MARK DATE AND RETURN THIS PROXY CARD USING THE ENCLOSED POSTAGE PAID ADDRESSED ENVELOPE OR VOTE YOUR
PROXY BY INTERNET OR TELEPHONE USING THE INSTRUCTIONS ON THE REVERSE SIDE

OVER TO VOTE FOR THE PROPOSAL

SHAREOWNER SERVICES

P.O BOX 3550

SOUTH HACKENSACK NJ 07606-9250

Address Change/Comments
Mark the corresponding box on the reverse side

wo
15113





Selected Financial Data

For the years ended December 31 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007

dollars in thousands except for per share data

Interest income 74439 64796 56892 57934 54218

Interest expense 11661 12646 16099 20796 19976

Net interest income 62778 52150 40793 37138 34242

Provision for loan and lease losses 6088 9854 6884 5596 891

Net interest income after provision for loan and lease losses 56690 42296 33909 31542 33351

Non-interest income 34150 29375 28470 21472 21781

Non-interest expense 61526 57985 46542 38676 34959

Income before income taxes 29314 13686 15837 14338 20173

Income taxes 9601 4512 5500 5013 6573

Net Income 19713 9174 10337 9325 13600

Per share data

Earnings per common share

Basic 1.55 0.85 1.18 1.09 1.59

Diluted 1.54 0.85 1.18 1.08 1.58

Dividends declared 0.60 0.56 0.56 0.54 0.50

Weighted-average shares outstanding 12746346 10765657 8732004 8566938 8539904

Dilutive potential common shares 82313 12312 16719 34233 93638

Adjusted weighted-average shares 12828659 10777969 8748723 8601171 8633542

Selected financial ratios

Tax equivalent net interest margin 3.96% 3.79% 3.70% 3.84% 4.37%

Net income/average total assets ROA 1.14% 0.61% 0.88% 0.89% 1.59%

Net income/average shareholders equity ROE 11.08% 6.76% 10.55% 10.0 1% 15.87%

Dividends declared per share to net income per basic

common share 38.7% 65.9% 47.5% 49.5% 1.4%

Average equity average total assets 10.27% 9.02% 8.34% 8.89% 10.02%

Non-interest expense net-interest income and non-interest income 63.5% 1.1% 67.2% 66.0% 62.4%

Non-interest income net-interest income and non-interest income 35.2% 36.0% 41.1% 36.6% 38.9%

At or for the year ended December 31 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007

Total assets 1774907 1731768 $1238821 $1151346 $1002096

Earning assets 1626666 1597130 1164617 1061139 874661

Portfolio loans and leases 1295392 1196717 885739 899577 802925

Deposits 1382369 1341432 937887 869490 849528

Shareholders equity 185913 161418 103936 92413 90351

Wealth assets under management administration supervision and

brokerage2 4831631 3412890 2871143 2146399 2277091

Ratio of tangible common equity to tangible assets 8.27% 8.01% 7.5 1% 7.13% 9.02%

Tier Capital to Risk Weighted Assets 11.26% 11.30% 9.41% 8.81% 10.40%

Total Regulatory Capital to Risk Weighted Assets 13.83% 13.71% 12.53% 11.29% 11.31%

Loans serviced for others 574422 605485 514875 350199 357363

Book value per share 14.09 13.24 11.72 10.76 10.60

Tangible book value per share 10.82 11.21 10.40 9.55 10.60

Allowance as percentage of portfolio loans and leases 0.98% 0.86% 1.18% 1.15% 1.0 1%

Non-performing loans and leases as percentage of loans and leases. 1.11% 0.79% 0.78% 0.65% 0.25%

The comparability of the Selected Financial Data is impacted by the July 2010 merger of First Keystone Financial Inc into Bryn Mawr Bank Corporation

2Excludes assets under management from an institutional client for 2007



Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Conditionand

Results of Operations

BRIEF HISTORY OF THE CoiuowTIoN

The Bryn Mawr Trust Company the Bank received its

Pennsylvania banking charter in 1889 and is member of the

Federal Reserve System In 1986 Bryn Mawr Bank

Corporation the Corporation was formed and on

January 1987 the Bank became wholly-owned subsidiary

of the Corporation The Bank and Corporation are

headquartered in Bryn Mawr Pennsylvania western suburb

of Philadelphia The Corporation and its subsidiaries offer

full range of personal and business banking services

consumer and commercial loans equipment leasing

mortgages insurance and wealth management services

including investment management trust and estate

administration retirement planning custody services and tax

planning and preparation from 17 full-service branches and

seven limited-hour retirement community offices throughout

Montgomery Delaware and Chester counties of Pennsylvania

The common stock of the Corporation trades on the NASDAQ
Stock Market NASDAQ under the symbol BMTC

The goal of the Corporation is to become the preeminent

community bank and wealth management organization in the

Philadelphia area

The Corporation operates in highly competitive market area

that includes local national and regional banks as competitors

along with savings banks credit unions insurance companies

trust companies registered investment advisors and mutual

fund families The Corporation and its subsidiaries are

regulated by many agencies including the Securities and

Exchange Commission SEC NASDAQ Federal Deposit

Insurance Corporation FDIC the Federal Reserve and the

Pennsylvania Department of Banking

THE PRIVATE WEALTH MANAGEMENT GROUP OF THE

HERSHEY TRUST COMPANY

On May 27 2011 the acquisition of the Private Wealth

Management Group PWMG of the Hershey Trust

Company HTC by the Corporation the PWMG
Acquisition or the Acquisition of PWMG was completed

The Acquisition of PWMG initially increased the

Corporations Wealth Management Division assets under

management by $1.1 billion

FIRST KEYSTONE FINANCIAL INC __________________

FKFs wholly-owned subsidiary First Keystone Bank

FKB with and into the Bank were completed

The Merger with FKF federally chartered thrift institution

with assets of approximately $480 million enabled the

Corporation to increase its regional footprint with the addition

of eight full service branch locations primarily in Delaware

County Pennsylvania The geographic locations of the

acquired branches were such that it was not necessary to close

any of the former FKF branches By expanding into these new

areas within Delaware County Pennsylvania the Corporation

will be able to extend its successful sales culture as well as

offer its reputable wealth management products and other

value-added services to wider segment of the regions

population

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following is Managements discussion and analysis of the

significant changes in the results of operations capital

resources and liquidity presented in the accompanying

consolidated financial statements The Corporations

consolidated financial condition and results of operations are

comprised primarily of the Banks financial condition and

results of operations Current performance does not guarantee

and may not be indicative of similarperformance in the

future For more information on the factors that could affect

performance see Special Cautionary Notice Regarding

Forward Looking Statements on page 24 of this Annual

Report

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES JUDGMENTS AND

ESTIMATES

The accounting and reporting policies of the Corporation and

its subsidiaries conform to U.S generally accepted accounting

principles GAAP All inter-company transactions are

eliminated in consolidation and certain reclassifications are

made when necessary in order to conform the previous years

financial statements to the current years presentation In

preparing the consolidated financial statements Management

is required to make estimates and assumptions that affect the

reported amount of assets and liabilities as of the dates of the

balance sheets and revenues and expenditures for the periods

presented Therefore actual results could differ from these

estimates

The allowance for loan and lease losses the Allowance

involves higher degree ofjudgment and complexity than

other significant accounting policies The allowance for loan

and lease losses is calculated with the objective of maintaining

reserve level believed by the Corporation to be sufficient to

On July 12010 the merger of First Keystone Financial Inc

FKF with and into the Corporation the Merger with

FKF or the FKF Merger and the two step merger of



absorb estimated probable credit losses The Corporations

determination of the adequacy of the allowance is based on

periodic evaluations of the loan and lease portfolio and other

relevant factors However this evaluation is inherently

subjective as it requires material estimates including among

others expected default probabilities expected loan

commitment usage the amounts and timing of expected future

cash flows on impaired loans and leases value of collateral

estimated losses on consumer loans and residential mortgages

and general amounts for historical loss experience The

process also considers economic conditions and inherent risks

in the loan and lease portfolio All of these factors may be

susceptible to significant change To the extent actual

outcomes differ from the Corporations estimates additional

provision for loan and lease losses the Provision may be

required that would adversely impact earnings in future

periods See the section of this document titled Asset Quality

and Analysis of Credit Risk for additional information

Other significant accounting policies are presented in

Note in the accompanying financial statements The

Corporations Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

has not substantively changed any aspect of its overall

approach in the application of the foregoing policies

OVERVIEW OF GENERAL ECONOMIC REGULATORY AND

GOVERNMENTAL ENVIRONMENT

Throughout 2011 the economy remained anemic but

stabilized and there is continued optimism for recovery in

2012 Unemployment remained elevated throughout the year

however many corporations became more efficient and

corporate earnings increased The unemployment rate finished

2011 at 8.7% down from 9.6% at the end of 2010 but many
Americans believe our elected government officials can do

more

One of the top stories throughout 2011 was the continued

distrust each political party had for each other with the central

story being the near shutdown of the U.S government As

both political parties rushed to put their best foot forward the

U.S hit its debt ceiling on May 16 2011 The debt ceiling

cap set by Congress on the amount of debt the federal

government can legally accumulate was not resolved until

July 31 2011 However the lack of true long-term plan and

reduced spending by the U.S government triggered the most

volatile week in financial markets around the world since

2008 On August 2011 Standard Poors downgraded the

credit rating of the U.S government for the first time in the

countrys history Interestingly although stock markets

experienced dramatic downswing the yield on U.S

Treasury bonds actually fell because investors became more

worried about the debt crisis in Europe and fled to the safety

and liquidity of U.S Treasuries

The Euro zone Debt Crisis beginning in early 2010 became

relevant as government debt levels within the European region

reached extremely high levels leaving many questioning

whether some nations would be able to refinance their existing

debt Concerns intensified within the U.S as many large

financial institutions had significant exposure to the European

region and the fear of another financial crisis like the one that

occurred in 2008 was once again revived As of this writing

with the establishment of the European Financial Stability

Facility EFSF the second bailout package for Greece and

further financial capitalization efforts by European leaders

the area remains somewhat stable but continues to dominate

the financial news

One theme that continued from 2010 into 2011 and could still

remain an issue going forward is the drop in real estate values

negatively impacting residential home builders and

development business nationwide The U.S Government did

step in and revise the Home Affordable Refinance Program

HARP which was originally created in 2009 The

enhancements to the program were focused on helping enable

homeowners who were not eligible to refinance do so under

HARP The degree to which the program was effective is

debatable As refinancings increased investors in mortgage-

backed securities saw increases in prepayment speeds which

negatively impacted their bonds profitability and left them

searching for other sources to replace the lost income low

interest rate environment is doubled-edged sword period

of low interest rates allows consumers and businesses to

refinance homes and other projects thus freeing up cash and

stimulating spending yet financial institutions and other

investors see their profitability decrease

With 2012 being an election year it will be difficult for the

U.S to gain much traction on many initiatives as each

political party wants to ensure their best chance for election in

November As both parties struggle to agree on some of the

most important issues facing all Americans 2012 is not

expected to be year of dramatic change

As of December 31 2011 the Corporation and the Bank are

well capitalized by regulatory standards and are in

position to acquire new customers from weaker financial

institutions continued anemic economic recovery
could

have an adverse effect on the Corporations revenues capital

liquidity and profitability However the Corporation is

confident that its disciplined strategies to maintain strong

financial position and build the brand name should put
it in

good position to weather the current financial climate and take

advantage of opportunities as they arise

Dodd-Frank Walt Street Reform and Consumer

Protection Act

The Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer

Protection Act the Act was signed into law on July 21



2010 The federal statute promotes the financial stability of

the U.S with various measures such as improving

accountability and transparency in the financial system

ending too big to fail and protecting consumers from

abusive financial service practices Included in the final

regulations are the Volcker Rule an amendment that prohibits

depository banks from proprietary trading in excess of 3% of

their Tier capital in private equity and hedge funds and the

Durbin Amendment an amendment that gives the Federal

Reserve the ability to regulate the interchange fees charged on

debit cards requiring that fees be reasonable as compared to

the actual cost

The Act also created the new Bureau of Consumer Financial

Protection within the Federal Reserve Board as new

supervisor for certain financial firms and as rule maker and

enforcer against unfair deceptive abusive other otherwise

prohibited practices relating to most consumer financial

products or services The Act amends the Fair Credit

Reporting Act to require the provision of credit scores to

consumers in connection with denials or less favorable offers

of credit and provides for improved financial disclosures

including mortgage disclosures under the Truth in Lending

Act and the Real Estate Settlement Procedures Act Also

required within the Act are consumer financial laws and

regulations that prevent mortgage-related abuses and ensure

responsible affordable mortgage credit

This sweeping overhaul of the U.S financial regulatory

system has been work in progress since it was signed into

law with the Durbin Amendment effective October 2011

and the Volcker Rule still under review as of February 2012

EXECUTIVE OVERVIEW

2011 Compared to 2010

In general the differences in the results of operations for the

twelve months ended December 31 2011 as compared to the

same period in 2010 are significantly impacted by the July

2010 Merger with FKF and the May 27 2011 Acquisition of

PWMG The Corporation reported net income of

$19.7 million or $1.54 diluted earnings per share for the

twelve months ended December 31 2011 as compared to

$9.2 million or $0.85 diluted earnings per share for the same

period in 2010 Return on average equity ROE and return

on average assets ROA for the twelve months ended

December 31 2011 were 11.08% and 1.14% respectively as

compared to 6.76% and 0.6 1% respectively for the same

period in 2010 The increase in net income and in turn ROE

and ROA for the twelve months ended December 31 2011 as

compared to the same period in 2010 was primarily related to

$10.6 million increase in net interest income $4.8 million

increase in non-interest income and $3.8 million decrease in

allowance for loan and lease losses These improvements were

partially offset by $3.5 million increase in non-interest

expense and $5.1 million increase in income tax expense
for

the twelve months ended December 31 2011 as compared to

the same period in 2010

The $10.4 million or 19.6% increase in the Corporations tax-

equivalent net interest income for the twelve months ended

December 31 2011 as compared to the same period in 2010

was largely attributed to $9.6 million or 14.9% increase in

interest income for the twelve months ended December 31

2011 as compared to the same period in 2010 which was

primarily the result of $209.0 million increase in average

portfolio loans between the periods The Corporations tax-

equivalent net interest margin increased to 3.96% for the

twelve months ended December 31 2011 from 3.79% for the

same period in 2010

Asset quality remained relatively stable as of December 31

2011 The allowance for loan and lease losses of $12.8 million

was 0.98% of portfolio loans and leases as of December 31

2011 as compared to $10.3 million or 0.86% of portfolio

loans and leases at December 31 2010

For the twelve months ended December 31 2011 the

provision for loan and lease losses of $6.1 million was

decrease of $3.8 million or 38.2% from the $9.9 million for

the same period in 2010 This decrease resulted from the

$6.4 million or 63.9% decline in net loan charge-offs for the

twelve months ended December 31 2011 as compared to the

same period in 2010 The decrease in net loan charge-offs was

primarily related to the $6.7 million decrease in net charge

offs of commercial and industrial loans between the periods

Increases in non-performing loans primarily related to two

residential construction loan relationships which became non-

performing during 2011 required additional Provision

partially offsetting the charge-off declines

Total portfolio loans and leases of $1.30 billion at

December 31 2011 increased $98.7 million or 8.2% as

compared to $1.20 billion at December 31 2010 The loan

growth was concentrated in the residential mortgage

commercial mortgage and commercial and industrial loan

segments of the portfolio

The Corporations investment portfolio at December 31 2011

had fair market value of $272.3 million as compared to

$317.1 million at December 31 2010 primarily related to

maturities and calls during 2011 The cash inflows that

resulted from this planned decrease were utilized for loan

originations and repayments of maturing FHLB advances

Deposits of $1.38 billion as of December 31 2011 increased

$40.9 million from December 31 2010 The 3.1% increase

was the result of $65.9 million increase in money market

accounts and $44.1 million increase in non-interest-bearing

accounts partially offset by planned decreases of

$28.6 million in wholesale deposits and $36.3 million in time

deposits between the respective dates



Non-interest income for the twelve months ended

December 31 2011 was $34.2 million an increase of

$4.8 million or 16.3% as compared to the same period in

2010 Largely contributing to the increase in non-interest

income for the twelve months ended December 31 2011 as

compared to the same period in 2010 was $6.2 million or

39.8% increase in fees for Wealth Management services This

increase was primarily attributable to the May 27 2011

Acquisition of PWMG which initially added $1.1 billion to

the Corporations assets under management administration

supervision and brokerage Partially offsetting the increase in

Wealth Management fees was $2.2 million decrease in the

gain on sale of residential mortgage loans for the twelve

months ended December 31 2011 as compared to the same

period in 2010 During 2011 the Corporation experienced

decline in the volume of residential mortgage loan

originations as the refinancing boom of 2010 dropped off and

did not continue into 2011 In addition the Corporation

elected to retain larger portion of the originated residential

loans in its portfolio

Non-interest
expense

for the twelve months ended

December 31 2011 was $61.5 million an increase of

$3.5 million or 6.1% as compared to the same period in

2010 Contributing to this increase were $4.2 million

increase in salaries and benefits expenses $1.7 million

increase in occupancy-related expenses $756 thousand

increase in impairment of mortgage servicing rights

$1.6 million increase in other operating expenses and

$1.0 million increase in intangible asset amortization These

increases were substantially offset by $5.2 million decrease

in due diligence and merger-related expenses

2010 Compared to 2009

The primary cause of the changes in results of operations for

the twelve months ended December 31 2010 as compared to

the same period in 2009 was the July 2010 Merger with

FKF

The Corporation reported net income of $9.2 million or $0.85

diluted earnings per share for the twelve months ended

December 31 2010 as compared to $10.3 million or $1.18

diluted earnings per share for the same period in 2009 ROE

and ROA for the twelve months ended December 31 2010

were 6.76% and 0.6 1% respectively as compared to 10.55%

and 0.88% respectively for the same period in 2009 Net

income ROE and ROA for the twelve months ended

December 31 2010 as compared to the same period in 2009

were reduced primarily by the due diligence and merger-

related
expenses of $5.7 million and $3.0 million increase in

the Provision for the twelve months ended December 31

2010 as compared to the same period in 2009 ROE was also

affected by the registered direct stock offering completed in

May 2010 which increased capital by $24.6 million

The $11.6 million or 28.1% increase in the Corporations tax-

equivalent net interest income for the twelve months ended

December 31 2010 as compared to the same period in 2009

was attributed to $3.5 million or 21.4% decrease in interest

expense for the twelve months ended December 31 2010 as

compared to the same period in 2009 This decrease was

primarily the result of 71 basis point decrease in the rate

paid on deposits between the periods The decrease was

partially offset by 44 basis point decline in interest-earning

asset yield for the twelve months ended December 31 2010

as compared to the same period in 2009 The Corporations

tax-equivalent net interest margin increased from 3.70% for

the twelve months ended December 31 2009 to 3.79% for the

same period in 2010

Asset quality remained stable as of December 31 2010 The

allowance for loan and lease losses of$10.3 million was

0.86% of portfolio loans and leases as of December 31 2010

as compared to $10.4 million or 1.18% of portfolio loans and

leases at December 31 2009 The calculation of the

Allowance as percentage of loans and leases in 2010

includes the acquired FKF loan portfolio which in accordance

with GAAP was recorded at its fair value without its

previously recorded Allowance

For the twelve months ended December 31 2010 the

Provision increased to $9.9 million an increase of

$3.0 million or 43.1% from the $6.9 million for the same

period in 2009 This increase is related to $7.7 million in

write-downs during the twelve months ended December 31

2010 of two commercial loan relationships to their expected

net realizable values based on updated analyses of the

collateral supporting the loans and certain new valuation

information Partially offsetting this increase was

$2.7 million decrease in net charge-offs in the lease portfolio

for the twelve months ended December 31 2010 as compared

to the same period in 2009

Total portfolio loans and leases of 1.20 billion at

December 31 2010 increased $311.0 million or 35.1% as

compared to $885.7 million at December31 2009 The

growth was primarily attributable to the FKF Merger and new

business development efforts Partially offsetting this increase

was decrease in the Banks lease portfolio of$l2.3 million

from $47.7 million as of December 31 2009 to $35.4 million

as of December 31 2010 as repayments and charge-offs

exceeded new production

The Corporations investment portfolio at December 31 2010

had fair market value of $317.1 million as compared to

$208.2 million at December 31 2009 This increase of

$108.8 million or 52.3% was primarily the result of the FKF

Merger and the purchase of short-term securities to utilize

excess cash balances



Deposits of $1.34 billion at December 31 2010 increased

$403.5 million or 43.0% from $937.9 million at

December 31 2009 This growth was largely due to the

deposits acquired in the FKF Merger in addition to continued

strong branch activity and the increase in balances of new

accounts opened in previous quarters

Non-interest income for the twelve months ended

December 31 2010 was $29.4 million an increase of $905

thousand or 3.2% as compared to the same period in 2009

Contributing to the increase in non-interest income for the

twelve months ended December 31 2010 as compared to the

same period in 2009 was $239 thousand or 17.2% increase

in loan servicing and late fees and $356 thousand or 18.2%

increase in service charges on deposits These increases were

largely attributable to the addition of the FKF branches during

the third quarter of 2010 In addition to the effects of the FKF

Merger fees for Wealth Management services increased

$1.3 million or 9.3% to $15.5 million for the twelve months

ended December 31 2010 from $14.2 million for the same

period in 2009 Partially offsetting the increases in Wealth

Management fees and other fee income was $1.3 million

decline in the gain on sale of mortgage loans for the twelve

months ended December 31 2010 as compared to the same

period in 2009

Non-interest expense
for the twelve months ended

December 31 2010 was $58.0 million an increase of

$11.4 million or 24.6% as compared to the same period in

2009 partially due to the $5.7 million due diligence and

merger-related expenses as well as increased staffing and

processing costs related to the addition of FKFs eight full-

service branch locations

NET INTEREST INCOME

Rate/Volume Analyses Tax-equivalent Basis

The rate volume analysis in the table below analyzes dollar

changes in the components of interest income and interest

expense as they relate to the change in balances volume and

the change in interest rates rate of tax-equivalent net interest

income for the years 2011 as compared to 2010 and 2010 as

compared to 2009 allocated by rate and volume The change

in interest income expense due to both volume and rate has

been allocated to changes in volume

dollars in thousands

increase/decrease

Interest Income

Interest-bearing deposits

with banks

Money market funds

Federal funds sold

Investment securities

Loans and leases

Year Ended December 3t

2011 Compared to 2011 2010 Compared to 2009

Volume Rate Total Volume Rate Total

321 320

81 77
134 196 330

195 102 93

672

Total interest expense _J_J
Interest differential $10141 212 $10353

The tax rate used in the calculation of the tax-equivalent income is 35%

COMPONENTS OF NET INCOME

Net income is affected by five major elements Net Interest

Income or the difference between interest income and loan

fees earned on loans and investments and interest expense

paid on deposits and borrowed funds Provision For Loan

and Lease Losses or the amount added to the allowance for

loan and lease losses to provide for estimated inherent losses

on loans and leases Non-Interest Income which is made up

primarily of certain fees wealth management revenue

residential mortgage activities and gains and losses from the

sale of loans securities and other assets Non-Interest

Expense which consists primarily of salaries employee

benefits and other operating expenses and Income Taxes

Each of these major elements will be reviewed in more detail

in the following discussion

52 11 63

336 207 543

Total ittterest income

Interest expense

Savings NOW and market

rate accounts

Wholesale non-maturity deposits

Wholesale time deposits

Time deposits

Borrowed funds

82 22 104

195 196

4479 4004 475

932

4l

1413 1550 137

128 25 153

1125 308 1433
288 2740 2452

$10803 776 $11579



Analysis of Interest Rates and Interest Differential

The table below presents the major asset and liability categories on an average daily basis for the periods presented along with tax-

equivalent interest income and expense and key rates and yields

dollars in thousands

Assets

For the Year Ended December 31

2011 2010 2009

Average 4verage Average

Interest Rates Interest Rates Interest Rates

Average Income Earned Average Income Earned Average Income Earned

Balance Expense Paid Balance Expense Paid Balance Expense Paid

73046 178 0.24%

475 0.21%

249714 4555 1.82%

27173 1094 4.03%

276887 5649 2.04%

1041109 59579 5.72%

1391517 65407 4.70%

11750

10248

100351

1493370

594756 2957 0.50%

62875 301 0.48%

38379 651 1.70%

201947 2192 1.09%

897957 6101 0.68%

22500 1129 5.02%

6076 494 8.13%

5838 16 0.28%

177882 4906 2.76%

1110253 12646 1.14%

222715

24601

247316

1357569

135801

1493370

Interest-bearing deposits with banks 52238 115 0.22%

Federal funds sold

Money market funds 152 0.05%

Investment securities

Taxable 280343 4787 1.71%

TaxExempt 10239 319 3.12%

Total investment securities 290582 5106 1.76%

Loans and leases2 1250071 69554 5.56%

Total interest-earning assets 1593043 74775 4.69%

Cash and due from banks 12065

Allowance for loan and lease losses 11397
Other assets 139411

Total assets 1733122

Liabilities

Savings NOW and market rate accounts 722850 2958 0.41%

Wholesale non-maturity deposits 67793 224 0.33%

Wholesale time deposits 30429 321 1.05%

Time deposits 232084 2285 0.98%

Total interest-bearing deposits 1053156 5788 0.55%

Subordinated debentures 22500 1123 4.99%

Junior subordinated debentures 11580 1049 9.06%

Short-term borrowings 11380 24 0.21%

FHLB advances and other borrowings 145421 3677 2.53%

Total interest-bearing liabilities 1244037 11661 0.94%

Non-interest-bearing deposits 287553

Other liabilities 23573

Total
non-interest-bearing liabilities 311126

Total liabilities 1555163

Shareholders equity 177959

Total liabilities and shareholders equity 1733122

Net interest spread

Effect of non-interest-bearing sources

Net interest income/margin on earning assets

Tax-equivalent adjustment tax rate 35%

income

Includes portfolio loans and leases and loans held for sale

Investment securities include trading and available for sale

34946 74 0.21%

548 0.18%

38662 197 0.51%

129780 4398 3.39%

17818 776 4.36%

147598 5174 3.51%

.892518 51835 5.81%

1114272 57281 5.14%

11249

10421

65395

$1180495

408523 3094 0.76%

33988 148 0.44%

83277 2084 2.50%

190071 4644 2.44%

715859 9970 1.39%

20260 1108 5.47%

159 0.61%

151228 5020 3.32%

887506 16099 1.81%

172468

22502

194970

1082476

98019

1180495

3.75% 3.56% 3.33%

_________
0.21%

_________
0.23%

_________
0.37%

63114 3.96% 52761 3.79% 41182 3.70%

336 0.02% 611 0.04% 389 0.04%

Non-accrual loans have been included in average loan balances but interest on non-accrual loans has not been included for purposes of determining interest



Tax-Equivalent Net Interest Income and Margin 2011

Compared to 2010

The tax-equivalent net interest margin increased 17 basis

points to 3.96% for the twelve months ended December 31

2011 as compared to 3.79% for the same period in 2010

Tax-equivalent net interest income for the twelve months

ended December 31 2011 of $63.1 million was

$10.4 million or 19.6% higher than the tax-equivalent net

interest income of $52.8 million for the same period in 2010

This increase was primarily the result of the $201.5 million

increase in average interest-earning assets for the twelve

months ended December 31 2011 as compared to the same

period in 2010 The increase in average interest-earning

assets was not only related to the assets acquired in the July

2010 Merger with FKF which were present for all of

2011 as opposed to only six months during 2010 it was also

the result of the organic loan growth of $98.7 million which

occurred during the twelve months ended December 31

2011

Partially offsetting the increase in interest-earning assets was

the $133.8 million increase in average interest-bearing

liabilities for the twelve months ended December 31 2011

as compared to the same period in 2010 This increase was

largely related to the deposits and other borrowings assumed

in the FKF Merger During the twelve months ended

December 31 2011 the balance of interest-bearing liabilities

declined $24.7 million as FHLB advances and other

borrowings decreased by $12.3 million and the Corporation

elected to prepay its $12.0 million of 9.7% junior

subordinated debentures which had been acquired in the

Merger with FKF The tax-equivalent average rate paid on

interest-bearing liabilities for the twelve months ended

December 31 2011 was 0.94% decrease of 20 basis points

from 1.14% for the same period in 2010 Largely

contributing to this decrease was the 13 basis point decline

in tax-equivalent rates paid on interest-bearing deposits as

lower-rate money market deposits and non-interest-bearing

deposits replaced the scheduled run-off of higher-rate time

and wholesale deposits

Tax-Equivalent Net Interest Income and Margin 2010

Compared to 2009

The tax-equivalent net interest margin increased basis

points to 3.79% for the twelve months ended December 31

2010 as compared to 3.70% for the same period in 2009

The tax-equivalent net interest income for the twelve months

ended December 31 2010 of $52.8 million was

$11.6 million or 28.1% higher than the tax-equivalent net

interest income of $41.2 million for the same period in 2009

This increase was primarily driven by the effects of larger

asset and liability balances resulting from the Merger with

FKF as well as 71 basis point decrease in weighted average

rate paid on deposits from 1.39% for the twelve months

ended December 31 2009 to 0.68% for the same period in

2010

The tax-equivalent net interest income increased as result

of the $148.6 million or 16.6% increase in average loans

and leases for the twelve month period ended December 31

2010 as compared to the same period in 2009 primarily due

to loans acquired in the FKF Merger as well as new business

development initiatives The yield on loans declined basis

points to 5.72% from 5.8 1% for the twelve months ended

December 31 2010 as compared to the same period in

2009 In addition the average balance of investment

securities grew by $129.3 million or 87.6% to $276.9 for

the twelve months ended December 31 2010 from the same

period in 2009 primarily due to investments acquired in the

FKF Merger and to lesser extent the investment of cash

resulting from strong deposit inflows as well as cash

acquired in the merger The tax-equivalent yield on

investment securities for the twelve months ended

December 31 2010 decreased 147 basis points to 2.04%

from 3.5 1% for the same period in 2009 as more short-term

liquid investments were purchased replacing the higher-

yielding investments that were called and the continued

decline in interest rates

Average interest-bearing liabilities increased $222.7 million

or 25.1% to $1.1 billion during the twelve months ended

December 31 2010 as compared to $887.5 million for the

same period in 2009 The rate paid on interest-bearing

liabilities dropped 67 basis points to 1.14% for the twelve

months ended December 31 2010 from 1.81% for the same

period in 2009 This was primarily due to the maturing of

higher-rate wholesale deposits the increase in lower-costing

money market and savings account balances and reduced

deposit rates

Tax-Equivalent Net Interest Margin Quarterly and

Annual Comparison

The tax-equivalent net interest margin and related

components for the past five quarters and the past three

years arc shown in the table below

Interest- Effect of

Earning Bearing Net Non-Interest-

Asset Liability Interest Bearing

Year Yield Cost Spread Sources

Tax-equivalent Net Interest Margin Last Five Quarters

4thQuaer 2011 4.59% 0.88% 3.71% 0.20% 3.91%

3rdQuaer 2011 4.65% 0.96% 3.69% 0.21% 3.90%

2Quarter 2011 4.78% 0.98% 3.80% 0.21% 4.01%

PQuarter 2011 4.76% 0.93% 3.83% 0.20% 4.03%

4thQuarter 2010 4.56% 1.04% 3.52% 0.21% 3.73%

Tax-equivalent Net Interest Margin Last Three Years

2011 4.69% 0.94% 3.75% 0.21% 3.96%

2010 4.70% 1.14% 3.56% 0.23% 3.79%

2009 5.14% 1.81% 3.33% 0.37% 3.70%

Net

Interest

Margin



Interest Rate Sensitivity

The Corporation actively manages its interest rate sensitivity

position The objectives of interest rate risk management are

to control exposure of net interest income to risks associated

with interest rate movements and to achieve sustainable

growth in net interest income The Corporations Asset

Liability Committee ALCOusing policies and

procedures approved by the Corporations Board of

Directors is responsible for the management of the

Corporations interest rate sensitivity position The

Corporation manages interest rate sensitivity by changing the

mix pricing and re-pricing characteristics of its assets and

liabilities through the management of its investment

portfolio its offerings of loan and selected deposit terms and

through wholesale funding Wholesale funding consists of

multiple sources including borrowings from the FHLB the

Federal Reserve Bank of Philadelphias discount window

certificates of deposit from institutional brokers Certificate

of Deposit Account Registry Service CDARS Insured

Network Deposit IND Program Institutional Deposit

Corporation IDC and Pennsylvania Local Government

Investment Trust PLGIT
The Corporation uses several tools to manage its interest rate

risk including interest rate sensitivity analysis or Gap

Analysis market value of portfolio equity analysis interest

rate simulations under various rate scenarios and tax-

equivalent net interest margin reports The results of these

reports are compared to limits established by the

Corporations ALCO policies and appropriate adjustments

are made if the results are outside the established limits

The following table demonstrates the annualized result of an

interest rate simulation and the estimated effect that

parallel interest rate shift or shock in the yield curve and

subjective adjustments in deposit pricing might have on the

Corporations projected net interest income over the next

12 months

This simulation assumes that there is no growth in interest-

earning assets or interest-bearing liabilities over the next

twelve months The changes to net interest income shown

below are in compliance with the Corporations policy

guidelines

Summary of Interest Rate Simulation

dollars in thousands
________________________

Change in Interest Rates

300 basis points

200 basis points

100 basis points

-100 basis points

The interest rate simulation above demonstrates that the

Corporations balance sheet as of December31 2011 is

asset sensitive indicating that an increase in interest rates

will have positive impact on net interest income over the

next 12 months while decrease in interest rates will

negatively impact net interest income In the above

simulation net interest income will increase if rates increase

100 200 or 300 basis points Because the Corporations

internal prime loan rate is set as of December 31 2011 at

3.99% or 74 basis points above the Wall Street Journal

Prime Rate of 3.25% 100 basis point increase in interest

rates would have less significant effect than it would had

the Corporation not set this prime rate limit The 100 basis

point decrease scenario shows $1.28 million or 1.91%

decrease in net interest income over the next twelve months

as many of the Corporations liabilities bear rates of interest

below 1.00% and therefore would not be able to sustain the

entire decrease The four scenarios are directionally

consistent with the December 31 2010 simulation but

reflect higher interest income increase and percentage

change in net interest income due to the current rate

environment

The interest rate simulation is an estimate based on

assumptions which are based on past behavior of customers

along with expectations of future behavior relative to interest

rate changes In todays uncertain economic environment

and the current extended period of very low interest rates

the reliability of the Corporations interest rate simulation

model is more uncertain than in other periods Actual

customer behavior may be significantly different than

expected behavior which could cause an unexpected

outcome and may result in lower net interest income

Gap Report

The interest sensitivity or Gap report identifies interest rate

risk by showing repricing gaps
in the Corporations balance

sheet All assets and liabilities are reflected based on

behavioral sensitivity which is usually the earliest of either

repricing maturity contractual amortization prepayments or

likely call dates Non-maturity deposits such as NOW
savings and money market accounts are spread over various

time periods based on the expected sensitivity of these rates

considering liquidity and the investment preferences of the

Corporation Non-rate-sensitive assets and liabilities are

spread over time periods to reflect the Corporations view of

the maturity of these funds

Non-maturity deposits demand deposits in particular are

recognized by the Banks regulatory agencies to have

different sensitivities to interest rate environments

Consequently it is an accepted practice to spread non-

maturity deposits over defined time periods in order to

capture that sensitivity Commercial demand deposits are

often in the form of compensating balances and fluctuate

December 31 2011

Estimated Change

In Net Interest

Income Over

Next 12 Months

5855

4167

1622

1278

8.76

6.23

2.43

l.91%



inversely to the level of interest rates the maturity of these

deposits is reported as having shorter life than typical retail

demand deposits Additionally the Banks regulatory

agencies have suggested distribution limits for non-maturity

deposits However the Corporation has taken more

conservative approach than these limits would suggest by

forecasting these deposit types with shorter maturity The

following table presents the Corporations Gap Analysis as

of December 31 2011

Loans include portfolio loans and leases and loans held jbr sale

The table above indicates that the Corporation is asset

sensitive and should experience an increase in net interest

income in the near term if interest rates rise Accordingly if

Three months or less 26690

Three to six months 20332

Six to twelve months 21310

Greater than twelve months 15660
________

Total 83992 22923

rates decline net interest income should decline Actual

results may differ from expected results for many reasons

including market reactions competitor responses customer

behavior and/or regulatory actions

The following table summarizes the maturities of certificates

of deposit of $100000 or greater at December 31 2011

Non-

dollars in thousands Wholesale Wholesale

Over Non-Rate

Years Sensitive Total

16956

346

238

5383

Oto9O 91to365 1-5

dollars in millions Days Days Years

Assets

interest-bearing

deposits with

banks 57.3 57.3

Money market

funds 0.1 --

investment

securities 65.4 83.6 102.5 20.8 272.3

Loansandleases 475.4 181.0 518.5 122.1 1297.0

Allowance 12.8 12.8

Cash and due

from banks -..- 11.8 11.8

Other assets 149.2 149.2

Total assets 598.2 264.6 621.0 142.9 148.2 1774.9

Liabilities and

shareholders

equily

Demand non

interest.bearing.. 62.8 41.6 222.0 326.4

Savings NOW
and market rate 135 118.8 410.4 93.6 757.9

Time deposits 48.9 106.1 54.3 209.3

Wholesale non-

maturity deposits 65.2 65.2

Wholesale time

deposits
17.4 0.8 5.4 23.6

Short-term

borrowings 12.9 12.9

Otherhorrowings 25.3 24.5 77.0 21.0 147.8

Subordinated

debentures 22.5 22.5

Other liabilities 23.4 23.4

Shareholders

equity
6.6 19.9 106.3 53.1

________
185.9

Total liabilities

and

shareholders

equity 396.7 311.7 875.4 167.7 23.4 $1774.9

Interest-earning

assets 598.2 264.6 621.0 142.9 1626.7

interest-bearing

liabilities 314.4 250.2 547.1 114.6
_________

1226.3

Difference between

interest-earning

assets and interest-

bearing liabilities. 283.8 14.4 73.9 28.3 400.4

Cumulative

difference between

interest
earning

assets and interest

bearing liabilities. 283.8 298.2 372.1 400.4 400.4

Cumulative earning

assets as of

cumulative interest

bearing liabilities. 190% 153% 133% 133%
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Fair Value Adjustments Impacting the Statement of Income

Interest income/expense

Loans Income

Investment securities Expense

Deposits Income

FHLB advances Income

Jr subordinated debentures Income

Net interest income

Non-interest income/expense

Premises and equipment Expense

Other liabilities Income

Net non-interest expense

Pretax income effect

PROVISION FOR LOAN AND LEASE LOSSES

Loans acquired in the FKF Merger

In accordance with GAAP the loans acquired from FKF

were recorded at their fair value with no carryover of the

previously associated allowance for loan loss

In connection with the FKF Merger certain loans were

acquired which exhibited deteriorated credit quality since

origination and for which the Bank does not expect to collect

all contractual payments Accounting for these purchased

credit-impaired loans is done in accordance with ASC 310-

30 Accounting for Certain Loans or Debt Securities

Acquired in Transfer The loans were recorded at fair

value reflecting the present value of the amounts expected

to be collected Income recognition on these loans is based

on reasonable expectation about the timing and amount of

cash flows to be collected Acquired loans deemed impaired

and considered collateral dependent with the timing of the

sale of loan collateral indeterminate remain on non-accrual

status and have no accretable yield

Management evaluates purchased credit-impaired loans

individually for further impairment The balance of the

Banks loan and lease portfolio is evaluated on either an

individual basis or on collective basis for impairment

Refer to Notes 5-F and 5-H in the Notes to Consolidated

Financial Statements for more information regarding the

Banks impaired loans and leases

1067 1007

22

125 125

1564 1248 1214 1132 1027 2373

93 93 93 93 93 93 1474

________ ________
76 39

________ ________ ________
93 17 54 93 93 93 1474

2149 2037 1547 1194 1121 1039 934 899

General Discussion of the Allowance for Loan and Lease

Losses

The balance of the allowance for loan and lease losses is

determined based on the Corporations review and

evaluation of the loan and lease portfolio in relation to past

loss experience the size and composition of the portfolio

current economic events and conditions and other pertinent

factors including the Corporations assumptions as to future

delinquencies recoveries and losses

Increases to the Allowance are implemented through

corresponding provision expense in the Corporations

statement of income Loans and leases deemed uncollectible

are charged against the Allowance Recoveries of previously

charged-off amounts are credited to the Allowance

While the Corporation considers the Allowance to be

adequate based on information currently available future

additions to the Allowance may be necessary due to changes

in economic conditions or the Corporations assumptions as

to future delinquencies recoveries and losses and the

Corporations intent with regard to the disposition of loans

In addition the Pennsylvania Department of Banking and

the Federal Reserve Bank of Philadelphia as an integral part

of their examination process periodically review the

Corporations Allowance

The Corporations Allowance is the combination of four

components that are calculated based on various independent

The following table details the actual effect for the twelve month periods ended December 31 2011 and 2010 and the projected

effect for each of the five years ending December 31 2016 and thereafter of the accretable and amortizable fair value adjustments

attributable to the FKF Merger on net interest income net non-interest income and pretax income The projected accretion and

amortization is subject to change in future periods related to among other things changes in the Corporations estimates of loan

cash flows investment sales and calls deposit maturities loan prepayments and prepayments of FHLB advances

For the

Twelve Months

Income Ended

Statement Dec 31 Dec 31

Effect 2010 2011

For the

Twelve Months

Ending

Dec31 Dec31 Dec31

2012 2013 2014

Dec31 Dec31

2015 2016 Thereafter

1419

630
333

442

1548

570
545

552

55

2130

1197

315
224

142

657

554
564

1450

78

2195

46

46

906 2243

121 130
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methodologies All components of the Allowance are based

on Managements estimates These estimates are

summarized earlier in this document under the heading

Critical Accounting Policies Judgments and Estimates

The four components of the Allowance are as follows

Specific Loan Evaluation Component

Includes the specific evaluation of larger classified

loans

Historical Charge-Off Component Applies

rolling twelve quarter historical charge-off rate to

pools of non-classified loans

Additional Qualitative Factors Component

The loan and lease portfolios are broken down

into multiple homogenous sub classifications

upon which multiple factors such as delinquency

trends economic conditions loan terms credit

grade state of origination industry regulatory

environment and other relevant information are

evaluated resulting in an Allowance amount for

each of the sub classifications The sum of these

amounts comprises the Additional Qualitative

Factors Component

Unallocated Component This amount

represents reserve against all loans for factors

not included in the components mentioned above

As part of the process of allocating the Allowance to the

different segments of the loan and lease portfolio

Management considers certain credit quality indicators For

the commercial mortgage construction and commercial and

industrial loan segments periodic reviews of the individual

loans are performed by both in-house employees as well as

an external loan review service The results of these reviews

are reflected in the risk grade assigned to each loan These

internally assigned grades are as follows

Pass Loans considered to be satisfactory with no

indications of deterioration

Special mention Loans classified as special

mention have potential weakness that deserves

Managements close attention If left uncorrected

these potential weaknesses may result in

deterioration of the repayment prospects for the

loan or of the institutions credit position at some

future date

Substandard Loans classified as substandard are

inadequately protected by the current net worth and

payment capacity of the obligor or of the collateral

pledged if any Substandard loans have well-

defined weakness or weaknesses that jeopardize the

liquidation of the debt They are characterized by

the distinct possibility that the institution will

sustain some loss if the deficiencies are not

corrected

Doubtful Loans classified as doubtful have all the

weaknesses inherent in those classified as

substandard with the added characteristic that the

weaknesses make collection or liquidation in full

on the basis of currently existing facts conditions

and values highly questionable and improbable

Loan balances classified as doubtful have been

reduced by partial charge-offs and are carried at

their net realizable values

Consumer credit exposure which includes residential

mortgages home equity lines and loans leases and

consumer loans are assigned credit risk profile based on

payment activity that is their delinquency status

Refer to Note 5-F in the Notes to Consolidated Financial

Statements for details regarding credit quality indicators

associated with the Banks loan and lease portfolio

Portfolio Segmentation The Corporations loan and lease

portfolio is divided into specific segments of loans and

leases having similarcharacteristics These segments are as

follows

Commercial mortgage

Home equity lines and loans

Residential mortgage

Construction

Commercial and industrial

Consumer

Leases

Refer to Note in the Notes to Consolidated Financial

Statements for the details of the Corporations loan and lease

portfolio broken down by portfolio segment

Impairment Measurement In accordance with guidance

provided by ASC 310-10 Accounting by Creditors for

Impairment of Loan Management employs one of three

methods to determine and measure impairment

the Present Value of Future Cash Flow Method

the Fair Value of Collateral Method

the Observable Market Price of Loan Method

The majority of loans and leases are evaluated for

impairment on collective basis However loans and leases

for which there is an indication that all contractual payments

may not be collectible arc evaluated for impairment on an

individual basis Loans that are evaluated on an individual

basis include non-performing loans TDRs and purchased

credit-impaired loans
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Non-performing loans for which the Corporation is unable

to predict future cash flows are evaluated for impairment

based on the fair value of their underlying collateral

Performing lQans are evaluated based on the present value of

their estimated future cash flows

Troubled Debt Restructurings TDRs The

Corporation follows guidance provided by ASC 310-40

Troubled Debt Restructurings by Creditors

restructuring of debt constitutes TDR if the creditor for

economic or legal reasons related to the debtors financial

difficulties grants concession to the debtor that it would not

otherwise consider in the normal course of business

concession may include an extension of repayment terms

which would not normally be granted reduction of interest

rate or the forgiveness of principal andlor accrued interest If

the debtor is experiencing financial difficulty and the

creditor has granted concession the Corporation will make

the
necessary

disclosures related to the TDR In certain

cases modification may be made in an effort to retain

customer who is not experiencing financial difficulty This

type of modification is not considered to be TDR Once

loan or lease has been modified and is considered TDR it

is reported as an impaired loan or lease If the loan or lease

deemed TDR has performed for at least six months at the

level prescribed by the modification it is not considered to

be non-performing however it will generally continue to be

reported as impaired Loans and leases that have performed

for at least six months are reported as TDRs in compliance

with modified terms

Refer to Notes 5-G in the Notes to Consolidated Financial

Statements for more information regarding the Corporations

TDRs

Charge-off Policy The Corporations charge-off policy is

that on periodic basis not less often than quarterly

delinquent and non-performing loans that exceed the

following limits are considered for charge-off

Open-ended consumer loans exceeding 180 days

past due

Closed-ended consumer loans exceeding 120 days

past due

All commercial/business purpose loans exceeding

180 days past due

All leases exceeding 120 days past due

Any other loan or lease for which the Corporation has

reason to believe collectibility is unlikely and for which

sufficient collateral does not exist is also charged off

Refer to Notes 5-F in the Notes to Consolidated Financial

Statements for more information regarding the Corporations

charge-offs

Asset Quality and Analysis of Credit Risk

As of December 31 2011 total non-performing loans and

leases of $14.3 million represent 1.11% of portfolio loans

and leases as compared to 0.79% or $9.5 million at

December 31 2010 The $4.8 million increase in non-

performing loans and leases is primarily related to two

residential construction loan relationships that became non-

performing during 2011 one of which is $3.2million

participation loan whose terms were modified during the

fourth quarter of 2011 and is classified as TDR In

addition increases of $1.7 million and $613 thousand in

non-performing home equity loans and lines and commercial

and industrial loans respectively were partially offset by an

$868 thousand decrease in non-performing commercial

mortgage loans Included in non-performing loans and

leases as of December 31 2011 were $1.5 million of loans

acquired in the FKF Merger which are non-performing

The Provision for the twelve month periods ended

December 31 2011 2010 and 2009 was $6.1 million

$9.9 million and $6.9 million respectively As of

December 31 2011 the Allowance of $12.8 million

represents 0.98% of portfolio loans and leases as compared

to the Allowance as of December 31 2009 of

$10.3 million which represented 0.86% of portfolio loans

and leases as of that date The increase in the Allowance as

percentage of portfolio loans and leases from

December 31 2010 to December 31 2011 is reflective of

the growth of the Corporations loan portfolio the increase

in nonperforming loans and leases as well as Managements

analysis of qualitative factors affecting the loan portfolio

As of December 31 2011 the Corporation had other real

estate owned OREO valued at $549 thousand as

compared to $2.5 million as of December 31 2010 Included

in the balance as of December 31 2011 was one property

valued at $184 thousand that resulted from the foreclosure of

loan acquired in the FKF Merger All properties are

recorded at their fair value less costs to sell

As of December 31 2011 the Corporation had $11.5 million

of TDRs of which $7.2 million are in compliance with the

modified terms and hence excluded from non-performing

loans and leases As of December 31 2010 the Corporation

had $6.6 million of TDRs of which $4.7 million were in

compliance with the modified terms Largely contributing to

the increase in TDRs was the addition of $3.2 million

residential construction loan participation that had been

classified as non-performing since June 30 2011 and which

was modified during the fourth quarter of 2011

Impaired loans and leases are those for which it is probable

that the Corporation will not be able to collect all scheduled

principal and interest payments in accordance with the

original terms of the loans and leases Included in impaired

13



loans and leases are non-performing loans and leases and

TDRs Purchased credit-impaired loans are not included in

impaired loan and lease totals As of December 31 2011 the

Corporation had $20.0 million of impaired loans and leases

as compared to impaired loans and leases of$13.4 million as

of December 31 2010 Refer to Notes 5-H in the Notes to

Consolidated Financial Statements for more information

regarding the Corporations impaired loans and leases

The Corporation continues to be diligent in its credit

underwriting process
and

very proactive with its loan review

process including the services of an independent outside

loan review firm which helps identify developing credit

issues These proactive steps include the procurement of

additional collateral preferably outside the current loan

structure whenever possible and frequent contact with the

borrower Management believes that timely identification of

credit issues and appropriate actions early in the process

serve to mitigate overall losses

The list below identifies certain key characteristics of the

Corporations loan and lease portfolio Refer to the loan and

lease portfolio tables in Note in the Notes to Consolidated

Financial Statements for further details

Portfolio Loans and Leases The Corporations

$1.3 billion loan and lease portfolio is

predominantly based in the Corporations

traditional market areas of Chester Delaware and

Montgomery counties of Pennsylvania and in the

greater Philadelphia area none of which has

experienced the real estate price appreciation and

subsequent decline that many other areas of the

country have experienced However this area is

not immune from these tough economic times

The Corporation has observed slow-down in

new construction in the local area and some home

value reductions but this has not had significant

impact on the Corporations credit quality relative

to the loan portfolio

Concentrations The Corporation has

significant portion of its portfolio loans excluding

leases in real estate-related loans As of

December 31 2011 loans secured by real estate

were $986.4 million or 76.1% of the total loan

portfolio of $1.30 billion

predominant percentage
of the Corporations

real estate exposure both commercial and

residential is within Pennsylvania The

Corporation is aware of this concentration and

mitigates this risk to the extent possible in many

ways including the underwriting and assessment

of the borrowers capacity to repay equity in the

underlying real estate collateral and review of

borrowers global cash flows The Corporation

has recourse against substantial portion of the

loans in the real estate portfolio

Construction The construction portfolio of

$52.8 million accounts for 4.1% of the total loan

and lease portfolio at December 31 2011 an

increase of $7.4 million from $45.4 million as of

December 31 2010

The Corporations construction portfolio which

consists of residential site development loans

commercial construction loans and loans for

construction of individual homes had

delinquency rate as of December 31 2011 of

9.18% as compared to delinquency rate of

4.25% as of December 31 2010 The increase was

largely related to two residential construction loan

relationships that became non-performing during

2011 One of the two relationships was

$3.2 million loan participation which was also

classified as TDR during the fourth quarter of

2011

Residential Mortgages Residential mortgage

loans were $306.5 million as of December 31

2011 an increase of $44.5 million from the

$262.0 million at December 31 2010 This

increase is primarily attributable to the

Corporations decision to retain in its portfolio

rather than sell to Fannie Mae larger portion of

the residential mortgages originated during the

twelve months ended December 31 2011 than

were retained during the same period in 2010 The

residential mortgage portfolio had delinquency

rate of 1.38% as of December 31 2011 as

compared to 1.50% as of December 31 2010 The

Corporation believes it is well protected with its

collateral position on this portfolio The

residential mortgage segment accounts for 23.7%

of the total loan and lease
portfolio

as of

December 31 2011

Commercial Mortgages The performance in

the $419.1 million commercial mortgage portfolio

representing 2.4% of the total loan and lease

portfolio as of December 31 2011 is stable This

segment of the Corporations loan and lease

portfolio grew $33.5 million or 8.7% from

December 31 2010 The delinquency rate in the

portfolio as of December 31 2011 was 0.40% as

compared to 0.58% as of December 31 2010 The

borrowers comprising this segment of the

portfolio generally have strong global cash flows

which have remained stable in this tough

economic environment The Corporation
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continues to be able to attract quality borrowers in

the commercial real estate space as other banks

retreat due to credit issues

Commercial and Industrial The performance

in the $267.2 million commercial and industrial

portfolio representing 20.6% of the total loan and

lease portfolio at December 31 2011 remains

relatively stable with delinquency rate of

approximately 1.45% This segment of the total

loan and lease portfolio increased $27.9 million

or 11.7% from December31 2010 and consists

of loans to privately held institutions family

businesses non-profit institutions and private

banking relationships While certain of these loans

are collateralized by real estate others are

collateralized by non-real estate business assets

including accounts receivable and inventory

Home Equity Loans and Lines of Credit The

home equity loans and lines of credit portfolio has

decreased $8.9 million or 4.1% from

$216.9 million at December 31 2010 to

$207.9 million at December 31 2011 as

borrowers are taking advantage of low interest

rates to refinance variable-rate products into fixed

rate mortgage loans The delinquency level in the

portfolio is 1.33% at December 31 2011 as

compared to 1.35% as of December 31 2010 The

segment represents 16.1% of the total loan and

lease portfolio as of December 31 2011 and is

primarily originated through the Corporations

branch network

Consumer loans The Corporations portfolio of

consumer loans was $11.4 million as of

December 31 2011 slight decrease of $771

thousand from the $12.2 million at December 31

2010 The consumer portfolio had delinquency

rate of 0.32% as of December 31 2011 as

compared to 0.47% as of December 31 2010

Leasing The lease portfolio balance as of

December 31 2011 of $30.4 million declined

$5.0 million from $35.4 million as of

December 31 2010 as repayments outpaced new

originations As of December 31 2011 the lease

portfolio made up 2.3% of the total loan and lease

portfolio as compared to 3.0% as of December 31

2010

The rate of growth within the leasing portfolio has

been intentionally reduced by strengthening

underwriting standards several years ago These

enhancements have continued to help reduce lease

delinquencies from 2.0% at December 31 2010 to

1.2% at December 31 2011 In addition these

adjustments improved overall lease portfolio

performance as net charge-offs declined each

quarter since December 2009 Net lease

charge-offs were $487 thousand for the twelve

months ended December 31 2011 as compared to

$1.7 million for the same period in 2010

20072009

6246

668

6914

1025

7939

2274

1622

3896

2008

5303

504

5807

5807

Non-Performing Assets TDRs and Related Ratios As of or For the Twelve Months Ended December 31

dollars in thousands 2011 2010

Non-accrual loans and leases 14315 9497 747

Loans 90 days or more past due and still accruing 10 1263

Total non-performing loans and leases 14315 9507 2010
Other real estate owned 549 2527
Total non-performing assets 14864 12034 2010

Troubled debt restructurings included in non-performing assets 4300 1879
TDRs in compliance with modified terms 7166 4693
Total TDRs 11466 6572

Allowance for loan and lease losses to non-performing loans and leases 89.1% 108.1% 150.8% 177.9% 404.1%

Non-performing loans and leases to total loans and leases 1.11% 0.79% 0.78% 0.65% 0.25%

Allowance for loan losses to total portfolio loans and leases 0.98% 0.86% 1.18% 1.15% 1.01%

Non-performing assets to total assets 0.84% 0.69% 0.64% 0.50% 0.20%

Net loan and lease charge-offs/average loans and leases 0.29% 0.96% 0.77% 0.40% 0.12%

Net loan charge-offs/average loans 0.26% 0.83% 0.29% 0.00% 0.05%

Net lease charge-offs/average leases 1.49% 4.24% 8.05% 6.24% 1.97%

Period end portfolio loans and leases 1295392 1196717 885739 899577 802925

Average portfolio loans and leases 1250071 1037158 882956 851752 740694

Allowance for loan and lease losses 12753 10275 10424 10332 8124
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Summary of Changes in the Allowance for Loan and Lease Losses

Allocation of Allowance for Loan and Lease Losses

NON-INTEREST INCOME

2011 Compared to 2010

For the twelve months ended December 31 2011 non-

interest income was $34.2 million an increase of

$4.8 million or 16.3% from the $29.4 million for the same

period in 2010 The primary contributor to this increase was

the $6.2 million or 39.8% increase in fees for wealth

management services from $15.5 million for the twelve

months ended December 31 2010 to $21.7 million for the

same period in 2011 Partially offsetting the increase in

wealth management fees were decreases of $2.2 million and

$689 thousand in the gain on sale of residential mortgage

loans and the gain on sale of available for sale securities

respectively between the two periods

307

190 15 24 15

530 674 569 176 64

1038 691 578 228 147

3610 10003 6792 3388 889

6088 9854 6884 5596 891

12753 10275 10424 10332 8124

The increase in wealth management fees is directly related to

the May 27 2011 Acquisition of PWMG which initially

increased the Corporations wealth assets under

management administration supervision and brokerage by

$1.1 billion Wealth assets under management

administration supervision and brokerage increased

$1.4 billion from $3.4 billion as of December 31 2010 to

$4.8 billion as of December 31 2011

The decrease in the gain on sale of residential mortgage

loans was related to the volume of loan sales The

Corporation experienced significant decrease in demand

for residential mortgage loans following the refinancing

boom that occurred in the second half of 2010 For the

twelve months ended December 31 2011 the Corporation

________________________________________
2008 2007

8124 8122

92 456 45 72 396
633 7019 1933 41

1732 689 53
1174 135 382
1017 2395 4957 3540 599

4648 10694 7370 3616 1036

dollars in thousands 2011 2010 2009

Balance January 10275 10424 10332

Charge-offs

Consumer

Commercial and industrial

Real estate

Construction

Leases ____________ ____________ ____________

Total charge-offs

Recoveries

Consumer 11

Commercial and industrial

Real estate

Leases ____________ ____________

Total Recoveries ___________ ___________

Net charge-offs

Provision for loan and lease losses ___________ ___________

Balance December 31
___________ ___________

28 22

46

The following table sets forth an allocation of the allowance for loan and lease losses by portfolio segment The specific allocations

in any particular portfolio segment may be changed in the future to reflect then-current conditions Accordingly the Corporation

considers the entire allowance to be available to absorb losses in any portfolio segment

December 31

2011 2010 2009 2008 2007

Loans Loans Loans Loans Loans

to to to to to

Total Total Total Total Total

Loans Loans Loans Loans Loans
dollars in thousands

Balance at end of period

applicable to

Commercial and industrial

Real estate construction

Real estate mortgage

Consumer

Leases

Unallocated

Total

3816 29.9%

1384 10.9

6464 50.7

119 0.9

532 4.2

438 3.4

$12753 100.0%

3565

633

4940

115

766

256

$10275

20.0%

3.8

72.2

1.0

3.0

100.0%

3801 26.3%

652 4.4

3952 62.5

125 1.4

1403 5.4

491

$10424 100.0%

3093 26.3%

1061 6.5

4154 59.7

70 0.9

1894 6.6

60
______

$10332 100.0%

2636 26.4%

850 8.3

3727 58.7

62 1.0

789 5.6

60

8124 100.0%



sold $81.5 million of residential mortgage loans as

compared to $156.4 million for the same period in 2010

The decrease in the gain on sale of available for sale

investments is related to the types of investments sold

Available for sale investments sold during the twelve months

ended December 31 2010 consisted largely of municipal

obligations which yielded larger gains than the mortgage-

backed securities and bond mutual funds sold during 2011

2010 Compared to 2009

For the twelve months ended December 31 2010 non-

interest income was $29.4 million an increase of

$905 thousand or 3.2% from the $28.5 million for the same

period in 2009 The primary factors for this increase were

the fees for wealth management services of$15.5 million an

increase of$l.3 million or 9.3% as compared to

$14.2 million for the same period in 2009 Gain on the sale

of available for sale investment securities of $2.5 million for

the twelve months ended December 31 2010 was an

increase of $549 thousand or 29.6% from the $1.9 million

for the same period in 2009 In addition the $2.3 million of

service charges on deposits for the twelve months ended

December 31 2010 which was $356 thousand or 18.3%
increase from the $2.0 million for the same period in 2009
also contributed to the increase Partially offsetting these

increases was decrease in the gain on the sale of residential

mortgage loans for the twelve months ended December 31
2010 of $1.3 million to $4.7 million as compared to

$6.0 million for the same period in 2009

The increase in Wealth Management fees is directly related

to the $541 million increase in wealth assets under

management administration supervision and brokerage

during 2010 to $3.4 billion as of December 31 2010 from

$2.9 billion as of December 31 2009 This increase was due

largely to the success of new initiatives within the division

and asset appreciation resulting from improvements in the

financial markets

The increase in the gain on sale of investments is the result

of the Managements decision to adjust the investment

portfolio mix while the increase in service charges on

deposit accounts is largely due to the addition of the eight

full-service branches acquired in the FKF Merger along

with other increased deposit activity The decrease in the

gain on sale of residential mortgage loans for the twelve

months ended December 31 2010 as compared to the same

period in 2009 was due to decreased origination activity in

2010 as compared to 2009 related to the rate environment as

well as Managements decision to retain in its portfolio

larger portion of the residential mortgage loans originated

during the twelve months ended December 31 2010 rather

than sell them to Fannie Mae as compared to the same

period in 2009 The value of mortgages originated for resale

servicing retained and servicing released in 2010 of

$157.6 million was 42.3% lower than the $273.0 million

originated for resale in 2009

NON-INTEREST EXPENSE

2011 Compared to 2010

Non-interest expense for the twelve months ended

December 31 2011 was $61.5 million an increase of

$3.5 million or 6.1% as compared to the same period in

2010 The increase was comprised of increases of

$4.2 million and $1.7 million in salaries and employee

benefits and occupancy-related expenses respectively

which were related to the staffing increase and office space

additions that resulted from both the FKF Merger and the

PWMG Acquisition In addition the increase of $1.0 million

in intangible asset amortization was directly related to the

intangibles acquired from PWMG and FKF The

$1.6 million increase in other operating expense for the

twelve months ended December 31 2011 as compared to

the same period in 2010 was related to the expanded branch

network resulting from the FKF Merger and the PWMG
Acquisition Refer to in Note 21 in the Notes to

Consolidated Financial Statements for further details

regarding other operating expenses These increases were

substantially offset by the $5.2 million decrease in due

diligence and merger-related expenses
between the two

periods

2010 Compared to 2009

Non-interest
expense

for the twelve months ended

December 31 2010 was $58.0 million an increase of

$11.4 million or 24.6% as compared to the same period in

2009 partially due to the $5.7 million due diligence and

merger-related expenses Merger-related expenses consisted

primarily of investment banking legal employee severance

systems conversion cost and vendor termination fees In

addition salaries and wages for the twelve months ended

December 31 2010 increased $2.6 million or 11.5% as

compared to the same period in 2009 due to the addition of

FKFs eight full-service branch locations Increases in the

other expense categories are direct result of the FKF

Merger These include FDIC expense occupancy furniture

fixture and equipment and other operating expenses FDIC

expense increased $317 thousand or 25.6% to $1.6 million

for the twelve months ended December 31 2010 as

compared to $1.2 million for the same period in 2009

Occupancy expense increased $620 thousand or 17.0% to

$4.3 million for the twelve months ended December 31

2010 as compared to $3.6 million for the same period in

2009 Furniture fixture and equipment expenses increased

$371 thousand or 15.4% to $2.8 million for the twelve

months ended December 31 2010 as compared to

$2.4 million for the same period in 2009 Other operating
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expenses which also increased as result of increased

processing costs due to the FKF Merger are detailed in

Note 21 in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Secondary Market Sold-Loan Repurchase Demands

In th course of originating residential mortgage loans and

selling those loans in the secondary market the Corporation

makes various representations and warranties to the

purchasers of the mortgage loans Each residential mortgage

loan originated by the Corporation is evaluated by an

automated underwriting application which verifies the

underwriting criteria and certifies the loans eligibility for

sale to the secondary market Any exceptions discovered

during this process are remedied prior to sale These

representations and warranties also apply to underwriting the

real estate appraisal opinion of value for the collateral

securing these loans Under the representations and

warranties failure by the Corporation to comply with the

underwriting and appraisal standards could result in the

Corporations being required to repurchase the mortgage

loan or to reimburse the investor for losses incurred make

whole requests if such failure cannot be cured by the

Corporation within the specified period following discovery

For the twelve months ended December 31 2011 the

Corporation received very
limited number of investor

repurchase demands and recorded contingent liability

charged to other non-interest expense related to those

demands During the twelve months ended December 31

2010 and 2009 no repurchase demands were received

INCOME TAXES

Income taxes for the twelve months ended December 31

2011 were $9.6 million as compared to $4.5 million and

$5.5 million for the same periods in 2010 and 2009

respectively The effective tax rate for the twelve month

periods ended December 31 2011 2010 and 2009 was

32.8% 33.0% and 34.7% respectively The decrease in the

effective tax rate for the twelve months ended December 31

2011 as compared to the rate for the same period in 2010

was due to an increase in the level of tax-free income from

bank owned life insurance and change in estimate of the

deductibility of due diligence and merger-related expenses

The decrease in the effective tax rate for the twelve months

ended December 31 2010 as compared to the rate for the

same period in 2009 was due to an increase in the level of

tax-free income from municipal investment securities as well

as an increase in tax-free income from bank owned life

insurance and the utilization of capital loss carry-forward

BALANCE SHEET ANALYSIS

Asset Changes

Total assets as of December 31 2011 increased slightly to

$1.77 billion from $1.73 billion as of December 31 2010

The increase was largely attributable to the $98.7 million

increase in portfolio loans and leases and the $18.0 million

increase in goodwill and intangibles between the two dates

Partially offsetting these increases were the $44.7 million

and $20.3 million decreases in available for sale investment

securities and cash and cash equivalents respectively

between the two dates as cash reserves along with runoff

from the investment portfolio were utilized in loan

originations and the repayment of maturing FHLB advances

Investment Portfolio The available for sale investment

securities portfolio as of December 31 2011 decreased

$44.7 million or 14.1% to $272.3 million from

$317.1 million as of December 31 2010 This decrease in

the portfolio was concentrated in the obligations of the U.S

government and agencies which decreased by $52.1 million

obligations of state and political subdivisions which

decreased $23.9 million and bond mutual funds which

decreased $22.8 million from December 31 2010

The following table details the maturity and weighted

average yield of the investment portfolio

State and political

subdivisions3

Book value

Weighted average yield

Corporate bonds

Book value 12616 12616

Weighted average yield ... 2.27% 2.27%

Investment certificates of

deposit

Book value 2.411 2411

Weighted average yield .. 1.39% 1.39%

Other investment securities

Book value 900 1000 1900

Weighted average yield 2.35% 1.27%
_______ _______

1.78%

Subtotal book value 900 54046 48210 26233 129389

Weightedaverageyield 2.35% 1.44% 1.36% 2.52% 1.64%

Mortgage-related securitied

Bookvalue 3216 61007 $63908 $128131

Weighted average yield ________
3.25% 2.33% 1.92% 2.15%

10921

Total book value 900 57262 90141 $257520

Weighted average yield
2.36% 1.54% 1.90% 2.09% 1.89%

Mortgage-related securities are included in the above table based on their

contractual maturity However mortgage-related securities by design have

scheduled monthly principal payments which are not reflected in this table

Excludedfrom the above table is the Corporations $12.1 million investment in

bond mutual funds which have no stated maturity or constant stated yield

weighted average yields on tax-exempt obligations have not been computed on

tax-equivalent basis

Maturing

From

Maturing 2013

During Through

2012 2016

Maturing

From

2017 Maturing

Through After

2021 2021
dollarx thossand

Obligations of the U.S

Goveniment and agencies

Book value

Weighted average yield

Total

32967 45448 25837 104252

1.14% 1.30% 2.51% 1.55%

5052 2762

1.41% 2.33%

396 8210

3.20% 1.80%
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December 31

2011 2010 2009 2008 2007

Mortgage Servicing Rights MSRs MSRs decreased

$884 thousand to $4.0 million as of December 31 2011

from $4.9 million as of December 31 2010 This decrease

was the result of amortization of MSRs of $749 thousand

and the impairment of MSRs of $786 thousand partially

offset by $651 thousand of new MSRs recorded during the

twelve months ended December 31 2011

207917

306478

52844

267204

11429

30390

The following table details activity related to mortgage

servicing rights for the periods indicated

239266 233288

12200 12717

35397 47751

236469 213834

8518 7990

59302 45084

Portfolio Loans and Leases The loan and lease portfolio Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets Increases as of

as of December 31 2011 increased $98.7 million or 8.2% December 31 201 as compared to December 31 2010 in

to $1.295 billion from $1.196 billion as of December 31
goodwill of $7.0 million or 39.8% and other intangible

2010 The increase was comprised of increases of
assets of $11.0 million or 155.0% were related to the May

$33.5 million or 8.7% in commercial mortgages 27 2011 Acquisition of PWMG and to lesser extent the
$44.5 million or 17.0% in residential mortgages

final $1.9 million earn-out payment to Lau Associates
$27.9 million or 11.7% in commercial and industrial loans

and $7.4 million or 16.4% in construction loans partially
acquired in 2008 See Note in the Notes to Consolidated

offset by decreases of $8.9 million or 4.1% in home equity
Financial Statements for additional details

loans and lines of credit and $5.0 million or 14.1% in FHLB Stock The Corporations investment in stock issued

leases As of December 312011 the lease portfolio was
by the FHLB decreased by $2.6 million from December 31

2.3% of total loans and leases as compared to 3.0% as of
2010 to December 31 2011 as the FHLB resumed the

December 31 2010 Within the leasing portfolio by

continuing to adhere to the higher credit standards and other
redemption of excess stock from its member banks

underwriting changes instituted in 2008 the outstanding

balance of leases declined with repayments continuing to

outpace originations

The table below details the loan portfolio as of the dates

indicated

dollars in thousands

Commercial

mortgage 419130 385615 $265023 $249730 $224510

Home equity lines

loans 216853 177863 154576 123293

Twelve Months Ended
Residential mortgage 261983 110653 132536 121313

Construction 45403 38444 58446 66901
December 31

Commercial dollars in thousands 2011

industrial Mortgage originations 168681

Consumer Mortgage loans sold

Leases Servicing retained 75232 148418 266759

Total
portfolio

Servicing released 6230 8028 6222

loans and leases 1295392 1196717 885739 899577 802925 Total mortgage loans sold 81462 156446 272981

Loans held for sale 1588 4838 3007 3024 5125
Percentage of mortgage loans sold

$1296980 1201555 $888746 $902601 $808050
Servicing retained 92.4% 94.9% 97.7%

The following table summarizes the loan maturity
Servicing released 7.6% 5.1% 2.3%

Loans serviced for others 572422 605485 514875
distribution and interest rate sensitivity as of December 31

Mortgage servicing rights 4041 4925 4059

2011 Excluded from the table are residential mortgage Gain on sale of loans 2517 4718 6012

home equity lines and loans and consumer loans Loans servicing late fees 1824 1626 1387

Amortization of MSRs 749 923 853

Impairmentlrecovery of MSRs 786 30 137

Gain on sale of loans as of principal 3.08% 3.02% 2.20%

Period end balance

dollars in thousands

Liability Changes
Loan portfolio maturity

Commercial and industrial. Total liabilities as of December 31 201 increased

Construction $18.6 million to $1.59 billion from $1.57 billion as of

Commercial mortgage December 31 2010 The increase was primarily due to

Leases
increases in deposits partially offset by decreases in FHLB

Total advances and junior subordinated debentures between the

Interest sensitivity on respective dates

the above loans
Deposits Total deposits increased $40.9 million or 3.1% to

Loans with

predetermined rates 24697 244400 74822 343919
$1.38 billion as of December 31 2011 from $1.34 billion as

Loans with adjustable
of December 31 2010 The planned reduction in higher-

or floating rates 138925 97886 188838 425649 yielding time deposits during the twelve months ended

Total 163622 342286 263660 769568
December 31 2011 was the result of the Corporations

strategic pricing of these products as maturing funds were

reinvested in lower-yielding money market accounts

2010 2009

$221904 $291613

Maturing

Maturing

During

2012

From

2013

Through

2016

Maturing

After

2016 Total

112774

34892

12492

3464

163622

110287

17557

187551

26891

342286

44143

395

219087

35

263660

267204

52844

419130

30390

769568
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breakdown of the deposits by major categories at

December 31 for each of the last five years is as follows

do11arithousands 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007

Interest-bearing checking ... 233562 234107 $151432 $135513 $137486

Money market 393729 327824 229836 142707 114310

Savings 130613 134163 101719 54333 36181

Wholesale non-maturity 65173 80112 52174 30185

Wholesale time deposits 23550 37201 36118 120761 129820

Time deposits 209333 245669 153705 211542 203462

Interest-bearing deposits $1055960 $1059076 $724984 $695041 $621259

Non-interesl-bearing

deposits 326409 282356 212903 174449 228269

Total deposits $1382369 $1341432 $937887 $869490 $849528

Borrowings Short-term borrowings as of December 31

2011 which include repurchase agreements and overnight

federal funds increased $2.8 million or 28.0% from

December 31 2010 FHLB advances and other borrowings

which include commercial mortgage loan and five-year

adjustable rate term loan as of December 31 2011

decreased $12.3 million or 7.7% from December 31 2010

During 2011 as FHLB advances matured not all were

replaced Funds generated from investment maturities along

with the Corporations cash reserves at the FHLB were

utilized for loan origination alleviating the need to increase

borrowings from the FHLB See the Liquidity Section of

Managements Discussion and Analysis on page 22 for

further details on the Corporations FHLB available

borrowing capacity

Debentures As of December 31 2011 the Corporation

had $22.5 million of subordinated debentures and no junior

subordinated debentures as compared to $22.5 million of

subordinated debentures and $12.0 million ofjunior

subordinated debentures as of December 31 2010 On

December 19 2011 the Corporation elected to prepay at

premium rate of 102.91% its junior subordinated debentures

that had been acquired in the FKF Merger Funding for the

prepayment was obtained through an adjustable-rate term

loan indexed to LIBOR mentioned above under

Borrowings Refer to Note 12 in the Notes to Consolidated

Financial Statements for further information

DISCUSSION OF SEGMENTS

The Corporation has two operating segments Wealth

Management and Banking These segments are discussed

below Detailed segment information appears
in Note 28 in

the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Wealth Management Segment Activity

The Wealth Management Segment reported pre-tax

segment profit PTSP for the twelve months ended

December 31 2011 of $7.6 million $3.0 million or

66.5% increase from the same period in 2010 The increase

in PTSP was primarily due to $6.2 million or 39.8%

increase in fees for Wealth Management services The

increase in Wealth Management segment revenue for the

twelve months ended December 31 2011 as compared to the

same period in 2010 was due in large part to the May 27

2011 Acquisition of PWMG which initially increased

Wealth Management assets under management

administration supervision and brokerage by $1.1 billion

The Wealth Management Segment reported 2010 PTSP of

$4.5 million $655 thousand or 16.9% increase from the

same period in 2009 The increase in PTSP was primarily

due to $1.3 million or 9.3% increase in fees for Wealth

Management services between the respective periods The

increase in Wealth Management segment revenue for 2010

as compared to 2009 was due largely to the success of new

initiatives within the division and asset appreciation resulting

from improvements in the financial markets

The following table shows the Corporations Wealth

Management assets under management administration

supervision and brokerage as of the dates indicated

in millions

As of December 31

2011 2010 2009

Total wealth assets under

management administration

supervision and brokerage $4831.6 $3412.9 $2871.2

Banking Segment Activity

Banking segment data as presented in Note 28 in the

accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

indicates PTSP of $21.8 million in 2011 $9.1 million in

2010 and $12.0 million in 2009 See Components of Net

Income on page of this document for discussion of the

Banking Segment

CAPITAL AND REGULATORY CAPITAL RATIOS

Consolidated shareholders equity of the Corporation was

$185.9 million or 10.5% of total assets as of December 31

2011 as compared to $161.4 million or 9.3% of total assets

as of December 31 2010

In June 2009 the Corporation filed shelf registration

statement the Shelf Registration Statement which allows

the Corporation to raise additional capital through offers and

sales of registered securities consisting of common stock

warrants to purchase common stock stock purchase

contracts or units consisting of any combination of the

foregoing securities Using the prospectus in the Shelf

Registration Statement together with applicable prospectus

supplements the Corporation may sell from time to time in

one or more offerings any amount of such securities in

dollar amount up to $90000000 in the aggregate
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On May 27 2011 in connection with the Acquisition of

PWMG which is discussed in Note in the Notes to

Consolidated Financial Statements the Corporation issued

322101 unregistered shares of common stock valued at

$6.7 million On September 30 2011 the Corporation filed

with the SEC registration statement on Form S-3 File No
333-177109 to register for resale the 322101 shares issued

as part of the purchase price The registration became

effective November 18 2011

In connection with the FKF Merger the Corporation issued

1630053 common shares valued at $26.5 million to former

shareholders of FKF These shares were registered on an S-4

registration statement filed by the Corporation in January

2010

On May 18 2010 through registered direct stock offering

using securities registered on the Shelf Registration

Statement the Corporation issued 1548167 common

shares at price of$17.00 per share raising $24.7 million

after deducting placement agents fees and other offering

expenses

On July 20 2009 the Corporation filed with the Securities

and Exchange Commission prospectus supplement in order

to register 850000 common shares of its stock on the Shelf

Registration Statement in connection with the Dividend

Reinvestment and Stock Purchase Plan the Plan The

Plan allows for the grant of request for waiver RFW
above the Plan maximum investment of $120 thousand per

account per year An RFW is granted based on variety of

factors including the Corporations current and projected

capital needs prevailing market prices of the Corporations

common stock and general economic and market conditions

The Plan is intended to allow both existing shareholders and

new investors to easily and conveniently increase their

investment in the Corporation without incurring many of the

fees and commissions normally associated with brokerage

transactions For the twelve months ended December 31
2011 and 2010 the Corporation issued 448377 and 119175

shares respectively and raised $8.3 million and

$2.0 million respectively through the Plan

Accumulated other comprehensive loss as of December 31

2011 was $11.4 million an increase of $4.6 million from

December 31 2010 The primary cause of this increase was

related to the $5.4 million tax-effected increase in retirement

plan obligations during the twelve months ended

December 31 2011 In connection with the annual actuarial

review of the Corporations qualified defined benefit

pension plan the Pension Plan which was frozen in

2008 the Corporation recorded $7.2 million increase in its

pension obligation This actuarial loss was related to

decrease in the discount rate used to value the Pension Plan

obligation along with lower-than-expected performance of

the Pension Plans investments for the twelve months ended

December 31 2011 Partially offsetting this increase in other

comprehensive loss was the increase of $807 thousand tax-

effected unrealized gain on available for sale investment

securities during 2011

In connection with the July 2010 Merger with FKF the

Corporation acquired $12.0 million ofjunior subordinated

debentures the Debentures which while recorded as

liability on the Corporations balance sheet were included as

both Tier and Tier capital in the calculation of regulatory

capital ratios On December 19 2011 the Corporation

elected to prepay in full the Debentures at the scheduled

premium rate of 102.9 1% thus reducing its Tier and Tier

capital balances

Also affecting regulatory capital ratios is the $19.5 million

increase as of December 31 2011 as compared to

December 31 2010 in goodwill and other intangible assets

recorded in connection with the Acquisition of PWMG the

final earn-out payment to Lau Associates and the adjustment

to goodwill related to the FKF Merger These items are

excluded from capital in the calculation of the regulatory

capital ratios Refer to Note 1-U Note and Note in the

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for further

information regarding goodwill and other intangible assets

related to these transactions

The Corporations and Banks regulatory capital ratios and

the minimum capital requirements to be considered Well

Capitalized by banking regulators are displayed in Note 25

of the accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial

Statements Both the Corporation and the Bank exceed the

required capital levels to be considered Well Capitalized

by their respective regulators at the end of each period

presented

LIQUIDITY

The Corporation has significant sources and availability of

liquidity at December 31 2011 as discussed in this section

The liquidity position is managed on daily basis as part of

the daily settlement function and on monthly basis as part

of the asset liability management process The Corporations

primary liquidity is maintained by managing its deposits

along with the utilization of purchased federal funds

borrowings from the FHLB and utilization of other

wholesale funding sources Secondary sources of liquidity

include the sale of investment securities and certain loans in

the secondary market

Other wholesale funding sources include certificates of

deposit from brokers including CDARS PLGIT ND and

IDC generally available in blocks of $1.0 million or more

Funds obtained through these programs totaled $23.6 million

as of December31 2011
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As of December 31 2011 the maximum borrowing capacity

with the FHLB was $657.7 million with an unused

borrowing availability of $514.7 million Borrowing

availability at the Federal Reserve was $67.5 million and

overnight Fed Funds lines consisting of lines from six

banks totaled $64.0 million On quarterly basis the

Corporations Asset Liability Committee reviews the

Corporations liquidity needs and reports its findings to the

Risk Management Committee of the Board of Directors

As of December 31 2011 the Corporation held

approximately $11.6 million of FHLB stock On

December 23 2008 the FHLB announced that it would

voluntarily suspend the payment of dividends and the

repurchase of excess capital stock until further notice While

there were no dividends paid on FHLB stock in 2011 2010

or 2009 the FHLB resumed repurchases of stock with

repurchases during the twelve months ended December 31

2011 and 2010 of $2.6 million and $749 thousand

respectively On February 22 2012 the FHLB announces

quarterly dividend payment of 0.10% annualized

On July 2009 the Corporation entered into an agreement

with IDC to provide up to $10 million of money market

deposits at an agreed upon rate currently at 0.55% The

agreement with IDC was amended at the end of 2010

reducing the amount to $5 million plus interest The

Corporation had approximately $5.1 million in balances as

of December 31 2011 under this program The Corporation

can request an increase in the agreement amount as it deems

necessary

The Corporations investment portfolio
of $272.3 million as

of December 31 2011 was approximately 15.3% of total

assets Some of these investments were in short-term high-

quality liquid investments to earn more than the 25 basis

points currently earned on Fed Funds The Corporations

policy is to keep the investment portfolio at minimum of

10% of total assets The investment portfolio provides the

Corporation with the opportunity to utilize the securities to

borrow additional funds through the FHLB Federal Reserve

or through other repurchase agreements

The Corporation continually evaluates the capacity and the

cost of continuing to fund earning asset growth with

wholesale deposits The Corporation believes that it has

sufficient capacity to fund expected 2012 earning asset

growth with wholesale sources along with deposit growth

from its expanded branch system

In November 2010 the Federal Deposit Insurance

Corporation FDIC approved Section 343 of the Dodd-

Frank Act providing temporary
unlimited coverage for non-

interest-bearing transaction accounts This coverage became

effective December 31 2010 and will end on December 31

2012 Excluded from this coverage are negotiable orders of

withdrawal NOW accounts and interest on lawyer trust

accounts IOLTA

OFF BALANCE SHEET RISK

The Corporation becomes party to financial instruments in

the normal course of business to meet the financing needs of

its customers These financial instruments include

commitments to extend credit and standby letters of credit

and create off-balance sheet risk

Commitments to extend credit are agreements to lend to

customer as long as there is no violation of any condition

established in the loan agreement

Standby letters of credit are conditional commitments issued

by the Bank to customer for third party Such standby

letters of credit are issued to support private borrowing

arrangements The credit risk involved in issuing standby

letters of credit is similar to that involved in granting loan

facilities to customers

The following chart presents the off-balance sheet

commitments of the Corporation as of December 31 2011

listed by dates of funding or payment

Within After

dollars in millions Total Year Years Years Years

Unfunded loan

commitments 353.0 211.4 38.4 19.1 84.1

Standby letters

of credit 20.5 19.3 1.2

Total 373.5 230.7 39.6 19.1 84.1

Estimated fair values of the Corporations off-balance sheet

instruments are based on fees and rates currently charged to

enter into similar loan agreements taking into account the

remaining terms of the agreements and the counterparties

credit standing Collateral requirements for off-balance sheet

items are generally based upon the same standards and

policies as booked loans Since fees and rates charged for

off-balance sheet items are at market levels when set there is

no material difference between the stated amount and the

estimated fair value of off-balance sheet instruments

CONTRACTUAL CASH OBLIGATIONS OF THE CORPORATION

ASF DECEMBER 312011

Within After

dollars in millions Total Year Years Years Years

Deposits without

stated maturity

Wholesale and retail

certificates of deposit..

Subordinated debentures.

Short-term borrowings

Other borrowings

Operating leases

Purchase obligations

Non-discretionary

pension contributions.. 0.3 0.3

Total 1612.0 1380.3 118.7 40.7 72.3

1149.4 1149.4

232.9

22.5

12.9

147.8

35.0

11.2

173.4 50.2 9.3

22.5

12.9

39.3 59.8 25.4 23.3

2.2 3.9 3.5 25.4

2.8 4.8 2.5 1.1
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OTHER INFORMATION

Regulatory Matters and Pending Legislation

The Corporation is not aware of any other current specific

recommendations by regulatory authorities or proposed

legislation which if implemented would have material

adverse effect upon the liquidity capital resources or results

of operations however the general cost of compliance with

numerous and multiple federal and state laws and regulations

does have and in the future may have an impact on the

Corporations results of operations

Effects of Inflation

Inflation has some impact on the Corporations operating

costs Unlike many industrial companies however

substantially all of the Corporations assets and liabilities are

monetary in nature As result interest rates have more

significant impact on the Corporations performance than the

general level of inflation Over short periods of time interest

rates may not necessarily move in the same direction or in

the same magnitude as prices of goods and services

Effect of Government Monetary Policies

The earnings of the Corporation are and will be affected by

domestic economic conditions and the monetary and fiscal

policies of the United States government and its agencies

An important function of the Federal Reserve Board is to

regulate the money supply and interest rates Among the

instruments used to implement those objectives are open

market operations in United States government securities

and changes in reserve requirements against member bank

deposits These instruments are used in varying

combinations to influence overall growth and distribution of

bank loans investments and deposits and their use may also

affect rates charged on loans or paid for deposits

The Corporation is member of the Federal Reserve System

and therefore the policies and regulations of the Federal

Reserve Board have significant effect on its deposits loans

and investment growth as well as the rate of interest earned

and paid and are expected to affect the Corporations

operations in the future The effect of such policies and

regulations upon the future business and earnings of the

Corporation cannot be predicted

QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT

MARKET RISKS

The quantitative and qualitative disclosures about market

risks are included in the Managements Discussion and

Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

in various sections detailed as follows

Net Interest Income Analysis of Interest Rates and

Interest Differential Tax-Equivalent Net Interest Income and

Margin 2011 Compared to 2010 and -2010 Compared to

2009 Tax-Equivalent Net Interest Margin Quarterly and

Annual Comparison Interest Rate Sensitivity Summary of

Interest Rate Simulation and Gap Report Provision for

Loan and Lease Losses Loans Acquired in the FKF

Merger General Discussion of Allowance for Loan and

Lease Losses Asset Quality and Analysis of Credit Risk

Non-Performing Assets TDRs and Related Ratios Summary

of Changes in the Allowance of Loan and Lease Losses

Allocation of Allowance for Loan and Lease Losses Non
Interest Income Non-Interest Expense Income Taxes

Balance Sheet Analysis Discussion of Segments

Capital and Regulatory Capital Ratios Liquidity Off

Balance Sheet Risk Contractual Cash Obligation of the

Corporation as of December 31 2010 and Other

Information

SPECIAL CAUTIONARY NOTICE REGARDING FORWARD

LOOKING STATEMENTS

Certain of the statements contained in this Annual Report

including without limitation the Letter to Shareholders Year

in Review and Managements Discussion and Analysis of

Financial Condition and Results of Operations which we

refer to in this section as incorporated documents may

constitute forward-looking statements for the purposes
of the

Securities Act of 1933 as amended and the Securities

Exchange Act of 1934 as amended and may involve known

and unknown risks uncertainties and other factors which

may cause actual results performance or achievements of

the Bryn Mawr Bank Corporation the Corporation to be

materially different from future results performance or

achievements expressed or implied by such forward-looking

statements These forward-looking statements include

statements with respect to the Corporations financial goals

business plans business prospects credit quality credit risk

reserve adequacy liquidity origination and sale of

residential mortgage loans mortgage servicing rights the

effect of changes in accounting standards and market and

pricing trends loss The words may would could

will likely expect anticipate intend estimate

plan forecast project and believe and similar

expressions are intended to identify such forward-looking

statements The Corporations actual results may differ

materially from the results anticipated by the forward-

looking statements due to variety of factors including

without limitation

the effect of future economic conditions on the

Corporation and its customers including economic

factors which affect consumer confidence in the

securities markets wealth creation investment and

savings patterns the real estate market and the

Corporations interest rate risk exposure and credit

risk
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changes in the securities markets with respect to the

market values of financial assets and the stability of

particular securities markets

governmental monetary and fiscal policies as well

as legislation and regulatory changes

results of examinations by the Federal Reserve

Board including the possibility that the Federal

Reserve Board may among other things require us

to increase our allowance for loan losses or to write

down assets

changes in accounting requirements or

interpretations

changes in existing statutes regulatory guidance

legislation or judicial decisions that adversely affect

our business including changes in federal income

tax or other tax regulations

the risks of changes in interest rates on the level and

composition of deposits loan demand and the

value of loan collateral and securities as well as

interest rate risk

the effects of competition from other commercial

banks thrifts mortgage companies consumer

finance companies credit unions securities

brokerage firms insurance companies money-

market and mutual funds and other institutions

operating in the Corporations trade market area

and elsewhere including institutions operating

locally regionally nationally and internationally

and such competitors offering banking products and

services by mail telephone computer and the

Internet

any extraordinary events such as the September 11

2001 events the war on terrorism and the U.S

Governments response to those events including

the war in Iraq

the Corporations need for capital

the Corporations success in continuing to generate

new business in its existing markets as well as its

success in identifing and penetrating targeted

markets and generating profit in those markets in

reasonable time

the Corporations ability to continue to generate

investment results for customers and the ability to

continue to develop investment products in

manner that meets customers needs

changes in consumer and business spending

borrowing and savings habits and demand for

financial services in our investment products in

manner that meets customers needs

the Corporations timely development of

competitive new products and services in

changing environment and the acceptance of such

products and services by customers

the Corporations ability to originate sell and

service residential mortgage loans

the accuracy
of assumptions underlying the

establishment of reserves for loan losses and

estimates in the value of collateral the market value

of mortgage servicing rights and various financial

assets and liabilities

the Corporations ability to retain key members of

the senior management team

the ability of key third-party providers to perform

their obligations to the Corporation and the Bank

technological changes being more difficult or

expensive than anticipated

the Corporations success in managing the risks

involved in the foregoing

All written or oral forward-looking statements attributed to

the Corporation are expressly qualified in their entirety by

use of the foregoing cautionary statements All forward-

looking statements included in this Annual Report and

incorporated documents are based upon the Corporations

beliefs and assumptions as of the date of this Annual Report

The Corporation assumes no obligation to update any

forward-looking statement In light of these risks

uncertainties and assumptions the forward-looking

statements discussed in this Annual Report or incorporated

documents might not occur and you should not put undue

reliance on any forward-looking statements Some of these

and other factors are discussed in the section entitled Risk

Factors in the accompanying Form 10-K
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Managements Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

The Corporation is responsible for the preparation integrity

and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements

included in this Annual Report The consolidated financial

statements and notes included in this Annual Report have

been prepared in conformity with United States generally

accepted accounting principles and necessarily include some

amounts that are based on Managements best estimates and

judgments

The Corporations Management is responsible for

establishing and maintaining effective internal control over

financial reporting that is designed to produce reliable

financial statements in conformity with United States

generally accepted accounting principles Internal control

over financial reporting includes those policies and

procedures that pertain to the maintenance of records that in

reasonable detail accurately and fairly reflect the transactions

and dispositions of the assets of the Corporation provide

reasonable assurance that the transactions are recorded as

necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in

accordance with generally accepted accounting principles

provide reasonable assurance that receipts and

expenditures of the Corporation are only being made in

accordance with authorizations of Management and directors

of the Corporation and provide reasonable assurance

regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized

acquisition use or disposition of the Corporations assets

that could have material effect on the financial statements

The system of internal control over financial reporting as it

relates to the financial statements is evaluated for

effectiveness by Management and tested for reliability

through program of internal audits Actions are taken to

correct potential deficiencies as they are noted

Any system of internal control no matter how well designed

has inherent limitations including the possibility that

control can be circumvented or overridden and

misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be

detected Also because of changes in conditions internal

control effectiveness may vary over time Accordingly even

an effective system of internal control will provide only

reasonable assurance with respect to financial statement

preparation

Management assessed the Corporations system of internal

control over financial reporting as of December 31 2011 in

relation to the criteria for effective control over financial

reporting as described in Internal Control Integrated

Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring

Organizations of the Treadway Commission Based on this

assessment Management concludes that as of December 31

2011 its system of internal control over financial reporting

is effective and meets the criteria of the Internal Control

Integrated Framework

The effectiveness of the Corporations internal control over

financial reporting as of December 31 2011 has been

audited by KPMG LLP KPMG the Corporations

independent registered public accounting firm having

responsibility for auditing the Corporations financial

statements KPMG has expressed an unqualified opinion on

the effectiveness of the Corporations internal control over

financial reporting as of December 31 2011
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Shareholders

Bryn Mawr Bank Corporation

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance

sheets of Bryn Mawr Bank Corporation and subsidiaries the

Corporation as of December 31 2011 and 2010 and the

related consolidated statements of income cash flows

changes in shareholders equity and comprehensive income

for each of the years
in the three-year period

ended

December 31 2011 These consolidated financial statements

are the responsibility of the Corporations management Our

responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated

financial statements based on our audits

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of

the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board United

States Those standards require that we plan and perform the

audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the

financial statements are free of material misstatement An

audit includes examining on test basis evidence supporting

the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements An

audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used

and significant estimates made by management as well as

evaluating the overall financial statement presentation We

believe that our audits provide reasonable basis for our

opinion

In our opinion the consolidated financial statements referred

to above present fairly in all material respects the financial

position of Bryn Mawr Bank Corporation and subsidiaries as

of December 31 2011 and 2010 and the results of their

operations and their cash flows for each of the years in the

three-year period ended December 31 2011 in conformity

with U.S generally accepted accounting principles

We also have audited in accordance with the standards of the

Public Company Accounting Oversight Board United States

Bryn Mawr Bank Corporations internal control over financial

reporting as of December 31 2011 based on criteria

established in Internal Control Integrated Framework issued

by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the

Treadway Commission COSO and our report dated

March 15 2012 expressed an unqualified opinion on the

effectiveness of the Corporations internal control over

financial reporting

wp
Philadelphia Pennsylvania

March 152012
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Shareholders

Bryn Mawr Bank Corporation

We have audited Bryn Mawr Bank Corporations the

Corporation internal control over financial reporting as of

December 31 2011 based on criteria established in Internal

Control Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of

Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission

COSO Bryn Mawr Bank Corporations management is

responsible for maintaining effective internal control over

financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness

of internal control over financial reporting included in the

accompanying Managements Report on Internal Control Over

Financial Reporting Our responsibility is to express an

opinion on the Corporations internal control over financial

reporting based on our audit

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of

the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board United

States Those standards require that we plan and perform the

audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective

internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all

material respects Our audit included obtaining an

understanding of internal control over financial reporting

assessing the risk that material weakness exists and testing

and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of

internal control based on the assessed risk Our audit also

included performing such other procedures as we considered

necessary in the circumstances We believe that our audit

provides reasonable basis for our opinion

companys internal control over financial reporting is

process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding

the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of

financial statements for external purposes in accordance with

generally accepted accounting principles companys
internal control over financial reporting includes those policies

and procedures that pertain to the maintenance of records

that in reasonable detail accurately and fairly reflect the

transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company

provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded

as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in

accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and

that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made

only in accordance with authorizations of management and

directors of the company and provide reasonable

assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of

unauthorized acquisition use or disposition of the companys

assets that could have material effect on the financial

statements

Because of its inherent limitations internal control over

financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements

Also projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future

periods are subject to the risk that controls may become

inadequate because of changes in conditions or that the

degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate

In our opinion Bryn Mawr Bank Corporation maintained in

all material respects effective internal control over financial

reporting as of December 31 2011 based on criteria

established in Internal Control Integrated Framework issued

by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the

Treadway Commission

We also have audited in accordance with the standards of the

Public Company Accounting Oversight Board United States

the consolidated balance sheets of Bryn Mawr Bank

Corporation and subsidiaries as of December 31 2011 and

2010 and the related consolidated statements of income

changes in cash flows changes in shareholders equity and

comprehensive income for each of the years in the three-year

period ended December 31 2011 and our report dated

March 15 2012 expressed an unqualified opinion on those

consolidated financial statements

KPc LLP

Philadelphia Pennsylvania

March 15 2012
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Consolidated Balance Sheets

December 31

2011 2010

dollars in thousands

Assets

Cash and due from banks 11771 10961

Interest bearing deposits with banks 57369 78523

Cash and cash equivalents 69140 89484

Investment securities available for sale at fair value amortized cost of $269611

and $315587 as of December 31 2011 and December 31 2010 respectively 272317 317052

Loans held for sale 1588 4838

Portfolio loans and leases 1295392 1196717

Less Allowance for loan and lease losses 12753 10275

Net portfolio loans and leases 1282639 1186442

Premises and equipment net 29328 29158

Accrued interest receivable 6061 6470

Deferred income taxes 13662 14551

Mortgage servicing rights 4041 4925

Bank owned life insurance 19434 18972

FHLB stock 11588 14227

Goodwill 24689 17659

Intangible assets 18014 7064

Other investments 5612 5156

Other assets 16794 15770

Total assets 1774907 1731768

Liabilities

Deposits

Non-interest-bearing 326409 282356

Interest-bearing 1055960 1059076

Total deposits 1382369 1341432

Short-term borrowings 12863 10051

FHLB advances and other borrowings 147795 160144

Subordinated debentures 22500 22500

Junior subordinated debentures 12029

Accrued interest payable 1592 3293

Other liabilities 21875 20901

Total liabilities 1588994 1570350

Shareholders equity

Common stock par value $1 authorized 100000000 shares issued 16103981

and 15109718 shares as of December 31 2011 and December 31 2010 respectively

and outstanding of 13194439 and 12195240 as of December 31 2011 and December 31 2010

respectively 16104 15110

Paid-in capital in excess of par value 84425 68398

Less Common stock in treasury at cost -2909542 and 2914478 shares as of December 31 2011

and December 31 2010 respectively 29833 29881

Accumulated other comprehensive loss net of tax benefit 11365 6757

Retained earnings 126582 114548

Total shareholders equity 185913 161418

Total liabilities and shareholders equity 1774907 1731768

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements
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Consolidated Statements of Income

69321

115

4365

226

412

74439

5787

25

3676

1123

1050

11661

62778

6088

56690

21669

2495

1824

2517

1783

97
462

3497

34150

28084

6889

5176

3509

1166

749

786

1490

1186

251

537

2311

9392

61526

59324

179

3552

749

992

64796

6101

16

4907

1129

493

12646

52150

9854

42296

15499

2307

1626

4718

2472

114
266

2601

29375

24829

5984

4257

2778

1142

923

30

484

1551

381

5714

2140

7772

57985

51686

272

4007
593

334

56892

9970

5020

1108

16099

40793

6884

33909

14178

1951

1387

6012

1923

255

2758

28470

22275

5578

3637

2407

1084
853

137
308

1234

540

616

2008

6139

46542

Income before income taxes

Income tax expense

Net income

29314

9601

19713

13686

4512

9174

15837

5500

10337

Basic earnings per common share

Diluted earnings per common share

Dividends declared per share

1.55 0.85 1.18

1.54 0.85 1.18

0.60 0.56 0.56

Weighted-average basic shares outstanding

Dilutive potential shares

Adjusted weighted-average diluted shares

12746346

82313

12828659

10765657

12312

10777969

8732004

16719

8748723

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements
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Year Ended December 31

2011 2010 2009

dollars in thousands except share and per share data

Interest income

Interest and fees on loans and leases

Interest on cash and cash equivalents

Interest on investment securities

Taxable

Non-taxable

Dividends

Total interest income

Interest expense on

Deposits

Short-term borrowings

FHLB advances and other borrowings

Subordinated debentures

Junior subordinated debentures

Total interest expense

Net interest income

Provision for loan and lease losses

Net interest income after provision for loan and lease losses

Non-interest income

Fees for wealth management services

Service charges on deposits

Loan servicing and other fees

Net gain on sale of residential mortgage loans

Net gain on sale of available for sale securities

Net gain on sale of trading securities

Net loss gain on sale of other real estate owned OREO
BOLl income

Other operating income

Total non-interest income

Non-interest expenses

Salaries and wages

Employee benefits

Occupancy and bank premises

Furniture fixtures and equipment

Advertising

Amortization of mortgage servicing rights

Net impairment recovery of mortgage servicing rights

Amortization of intangible assets

FDIC insurance

FDIC special assessment

Impairment of OREO
Due diligence and merger-related expenses

Professional fees

Other operating expenses

Total non-interest expenses



Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

dollars in thousands

Operating activities

Net Income

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities

Provision for loan and tease losses

Provision for depreciation and amortization

Net gain on sale of available for sale securities

Gain on trading securities

Net gain on sale of residential mortgages

Stock based compensation cost

Amortization and net impairment of mortgage servicing rights

Net accretion of fair value adjustments

Amortization of intangible assets

Impairment of other real estate owned OREO
Loss gain on sale of OREO

Net increase in cash surrender value of bank owned life insurance BOLt
Other net

Loans originated for resale

Proceeds from loans sold

Purchase of trading securities

Proceeds from sale of trading securities

Contribution to pension

Provision for deferred income taxes benefit

Change in income taxes payable/receivable

Change in accrued interest receivable

Change in accrued interest payable

Net cash provided by operating activities

Investing activities

Purchases of investment securities

Proceeds from maturity of investment securities and paydowns

of mortgage-related securities

Proceeds from sale of investment securities available for sale

Proceeds from calls of investment securities

Net change in other investments

Proceeds from BOLl repayment

Net portfolio loan and lease originations repayments

Purchases of premises and equipment

Acquisition of First Keystone Financial Inc net of cash acquired

Acquisition of Lau Associates net of cash acquired

Acquisition of PWMG net of cash acquired

Increase in OREO
Proceeds from sale of OREO

Net cash used by investing activities

Financing activities

Change in deposits

Change in short-term borrowings

Dividends paid

Change in FHLB advances and other borrowings

Increase in subordinated debentures

Decrease in junior subordinated debentures

Purchase of treasury stock

Tax benefit from exercise of stock options

Proceeds from issuance of common stock

Proceeds from exercise of stock options

Net cash provided by financing activities

Change in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements

Year Ended December 31

2011 2010 2009

19713 9174 10337

6088 9854 6884

5688 3877 3106

1783 2472 1923
255

2517 4718 6012
876 539 386

1535 953 716

2037 2149
1490 484 308

251 381

97 114

462 266
3473 3776 840

78212 157607 272964
83328 159784 276423

5076
5331

10000
3370 395 57

3270 687 892

409 445 256
1701 544 2382

26336 21817 14612

216857 335992 203016

36532 18836 31152

89661 88017 62905

137410 212600 18390

562 71 190
15585

101900 49585 5106

2612 2084 2090
46240

1617 1477 195
11750

44 147
2793 1371 1068

68902 22047 71432

41482 83341 68397

2812 3036
7679 5916 4892

11797 91028 10113
7500

12028
42

141 60 66

8325 26688 3660

966 288 514

22222 10397 67152

20344 10167 10332

89484 79317 68985

69140 89484 79317
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows Continued

Year Ended December 31

2011 2010 2009

9213 3627 4650

13362 11340 18481

7996

7090 240 1664

2482 84 582

1163 3124 1940

20339 438989

458736

dollars in thousands

Supplemental cash flow information

Cash paid during the year for

Income taxes

Interest

Supplemental cash flow information

Available for sale securities purchased not settled

Change in other comprehensive income

Change in deferred tax due to change in comprehensive income

Transfer of loans to other real estate owned

Acquisition of noncash assets and liabilities

Assets acquired

Liabilities assumed

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements
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Consolidated Statements of Changes in Shareholders Equity

Balance December 31 2008

Net income

Dividends declared $0.56 per share

Other comprehensive income net of tax expense of $582

Stock based compensation

Tax benefit from gains on stock option exercise

Purchase of treasury stock

Retirement of treasury stock

Common stock issued

Dividend Reinvestment and Stock Purchase Plan

Share-based awards and options exercises

Private placement _____________ _________

Balance December 31 2009

Net income

Dividends declared $0.56 per share

Other comprehensive income net of tax expense of $84

Stock based compensation

Tax benefit from gains on stock option exercise

Retirement of treasury stock

Common stock issued

Dividend Reinvestment and Stock Purchase Plan

Share-based awards and options exercises

Acquisitions

Registered direct common stock offering _____________ __________ _________ __________ ________________ __________

Balance December 31 2010

Net income 19713

Dividends declared $0.60 per share 7679

Other comprehensive loss net of tax benefit of $2482

Stock based compensation
876

Tax benefit from gains on stock option exercise 141

Retirement of treasury stock 43 48

Common stock issued

Dividend Reinvestment and Stock Purchase Plan

Share-based awards and options exercises

Acquisitions ______________ __________

Balance December 31 2011
___________ ________ ________ _________ ______________ _________

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income

dollars in thousands

Net income

Other comprehensive income loss
Net unrealized gains arising during the period net of tax expense of $1059

$841 and 835 respectively

Less reclassification adjustment for net gains on sales realized in net income

net of tax expense of $624 865 and 673 respectively

Unrealized investment gains losses net of tax expense benefit of $434 $25
and $161 respectively

Change in unfunded pension liability net of tax benefit expense of $29 16
$109 and $421 respectively

Year Ended December 31

2011 2010 2009

19713 9174 10337

Total comprehensive income 15105 9330 11419

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements

dollars in thousands except share information For the Years Ended December 31 2011 2010 and 2009

Accumulated

Shares of Other Total

Common Common Paid-in Retained Comprehensive Treasury Shareholders

Stock Issued Stock Capital Earnings Loss Stock Equity

11513782 11514 12983 105845

10337

4892

798

66

7995 29934 92413

10337

4892
1082 1082

798

42
4522 40 44

81641 82 106 1188

45122 44 557 601

150061 150 2235 2385

11786084 11786 17705 111290 6913 29932 103936

66

42

9174

5916

539

60

5186 46

119175 119 1918

31425 32 354

1630053 1630 24846

1548167 1548 23022

15109718 15110 68398

9174

5916
156 156

539

60

51

2037

386

26476

24570

114548 6757 29881 161418

19713

7679
4608 4608

876

141

4936

448377 448 7877 8325

228893 229 837 1066

321929 322 6339 6661

16103981 16104 84425 126582 11365 29833 185913

1966 1561

1159 1607

807

5415

1550

1250

300

782

46

202
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Nature of Business

The Bryn Mawr Trust Company the Bank received its

Pennsylvania banking charter in 1889 and is member of the

Federal Reserve System In 1986 Bryn Mawr Bank

Corporation the Corporation was formed and on January

1987 the Bank became wholly-owned subsidiary of the

Corporation The Bank and Corporation are headquartered in

Bryn Mawr Pennsylvania western suburb of Philadelphia

The Corporation and its subsidiaries provide wealth

management community banking residential mortgage

lending insurance and business banking services to its

customers through 17 full service branches and seven

retirement community offices throughout Montgomery
Delaware and Chester counties In 2008 the Corporation

opened the Bryn Mawr Trust Company of Delaware in

Greenville Delaware to further its long-term growth strategy

and diversify its asset base and client accounts The common

stock of the Corporation trades on the NASDAQ Stock Market

NASDAQ under the symbol BMTC

On May 27 2011 the acquisition of the Private Wealth

Management Group PWMG of the Hershey Trust

Company HTC by the Corporation the PWMG
Acquisition or the Acquisition of PWMG was completed

The Acquisition of PWMG initially increased the

Corporations Wealth Management Division assets under

management by $1.1 billion In addition the acquisition

enabled the Wealth Management Division to extend into

central Pennsylvania by continuing to operate the former

PWMG offices located in Hershey Pennsylvania

On July 2010 the merger of First Keystone Financial Inc

FKF with and into the Corporation the Merger with

FKF or the FKF Merger and the two step merger of

FKFs wholly-owned subsidiary First Keystone Bank

FKB with and into the Bank were completed The

acquisition of FKF federally chartered thrift institution with

assets of approximately $480 million enabled the Corporation

to increase its regional footprint with the addition of eight full

service branch locations primarily in Delaware County

Pennsylvania

The Corporation operates in highly competitive market area

that includes local national and regional banks as competitors

along with savings banks credit unions insurance companies

trust companies registered investment advisors and mutual

fund families The Corporation and its subsidiaries are

regulated by many regulatory agencies including the Securities

and Exchange Commission SEC Federal Deposit

Insurance Corporation FDIC the Federal Reserve and the

Pennsylvania Department of Banking

Basis of Presentation

The accounting policies of the Corporation conform to U.S

generally accepted accounting principles GAAP and

predominant practices within the banking industry

The Consolidated Financial Statements include the accounts of

the Corporation and its wholly owned subsidiaries The

Corporations consolidated financial condition and results of

operations consist almost entirely of the Banks financial

condition and results of operations All material inter

company transactions and balances have been eliminated

In preparing the Financial Statements the Corporation is

required to make estimates and assumptions that affect the

reported amounts of assets and liabilities the disclosure of

contingent assets and liabilities at the dates of the balance

sheets and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses

during the reporting period Actual results could differ from

these estimates

Although our current estimates contemplate current conditions

and how we expect them to change in the future it is

reasonably possible that in 2012 actual conditions could be

worse than anticipated in those estimates which could

materially affect our results of operations and financial

condition Amounts subject to significant estimates are items

such as the allowance for loan and lease losses and lending

related commitments goodwill and intangible assets pension

and post-retirement obligations the fair value of financial

instruments and other-than-temporary impairments Among
other effects such changes could result in future impairments

of investment securities goodwill and intangible assets and

establishment of allowances for loan losses and lending

related commitments as well as increased pension and post-

retirement expense

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash and due from banks

interest bearing deposits federal funds sold and money
market funds with other banks with original maturities of three

months or less Cash balances required to meet regulatory

reserve requirements of the Federal Reserve Board amounted

to $5.2 million and $4.6 million at December 31 2011 and

December 31 2010 respectively

Investment Securities Available for Sale

Investment securities which are held for indefinite periods of

time which the Corporation intends to use as part of its

asset/liability strategy or which may be sold in response to

changes in interest rates changes in prepayment risk

increases in capital requirements or other similar factors are

classified as available for sale and are carried at fair value Net

unrealized gains and losses for such securities net of tax are

required to be recognized as separate component of

shareholders equity and excluded from determination of net

income Gains or losses on disposition are based on the net
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proceeds and cost of the securities sold adjusted for

amortization of premiums and accretion of discounts using

the specific identification method

Prior to April 2009 declines in the fair value of available-

for-sale securities below their cost that were deemed to be

other than temporary were reflected in earnings as realized

losses In estimating other-than-temporary impairment losses

the Corporation considers the length of time and the extent

to which the fair value has been less than cost the financial

condition and near-term prospects of the issuer and the

intent and ability of the Corporation to retain its investment in

the issuer for period of time sufficient to allow for any

anticipated recovery in fair value

Beginning in April 2009 the Corporation implemented

ASC 370-10-65-1 Recognition and Presentation of Other-

Than-Temporary Impairments that amended the accounting

for recognizing other-than-temporary impairment for debt

securities and expanded disclosure requirements for other-

than-temporarily impaired debt and equity securities Under

the new guidance companies are required to record other-

than-temporary impairment charges through earnings if they

have the intent to sell or will more likely than not be required

to sell an impaired debt security before recovery of its

amortized cost basis In addition companies are required to

record other-than-temporary impairment charges through

earnings for the amount of credit losses regardless of the

intent or requirement to sell Credit loss is measured as the

difference between the present value of an impaired debt

securitys cash flows and its amortized cost basis Non-credit-

related write-downs to fair value must be recorded as

decreases to accumulated other comprehensive income as long

as the Corporation has no intent or it is more likely than not

that the Corporation would not be required to sell an impaired

security before recovery of amortized cost basis Since the

Corporation did not have any other-than-temporary

impairment for 2011 or 2010 the adoption of this guidance

has had no impact

Loans Held for Sale

Mortgage loans originated and intended for sale in the

secondary market are carried at the lower of cost or estimated

fair value in the aggregate Net unrealized temporary losses if

any are recognized through valuation allowance by charges

to income

Portfolio Loans and Leases

The Corporation grants construction commercial residential

mortgage and consumer loans to customers primarily in

southeastern Pennsylvania and small-ticket equipment leasing

to customers nationwide Although the Corporation has

diversified loan and lease portfolio its debtors ability to

honor their contracts is substantially dependent upon the real

estate and general economic conditions of the region

Loans and leases that the Corporation has the intention and

ability to hold for the foreseeable future or until maturity or

pay-off generally are reported at their outstanding principal

balance adjusted for charge-offs the allowance for loan and

lease losses and any deferred fees or costs on originated loans

and leases Interest income is accrued on the unpaid principal

balance

Loan and lease origination fees and loan and lease origination

costs are deferred and recognized as an adjustment of the

related yield using the interest method

The accrual of interest on loans and leases is generally

discontinued at the time the loan is 90 days delinquent unless

the credit is well secured and in the process of collection

Loans and leases are placed on non-accrual status or charged-

off at an earlier date if collection of principal or interest is

considered doubtful All interest accrued but not collected for

loans that are placed on non-accrual status or charged-off is

reversed against interest income All interest accrued but not

collected on leases that are placed on non-accrual status is not

reversed against interest until the lease is charged-off at 120

days delinquent The interest received on these non-accrual

loans and leases is applied to reduce the carrying value of

loans and leases Loans and leases are returned to accrual

status when all the principal and interest amounts

contractually due are brought current remain current for at

least six months and future payments are reasonably assured

In connection with the FKF Merger the Corporation acquired

$274.5 million of loans frpm FKF Loans acquired in the

merger were recorded at their fair value The difference

between the recorded fair value and the principal value is

accreted to interest income over the contractual lives of the

loans in accordance with ASC 310-20 formerly SFAS 91
Certain acquired loans which were deemed to be credit

impaired at acquisition are accounted for in accordance with

ASC 310-30 as discussed below in subsection of this

footnote

Allowance for Loan and Lease Losses

The allowance for loan and lease losses Allowance is

established through provision for loan and lease losses

Provision charged as an expense Loans and leases are

charged against the allowance when the Corporation believes

that the principal is uncollectible The allowance is maintained

at level that the Corporation believes is sufficient to absorb

estimated potential credit losses

The Corporations determination of the adequacy of the

allowance is based on periodic evaluations of the loan and

lease portfolio and other relevant factors However this

evaluation is inherently subjective as it requires significant

estimates by the Corporation Consideration is given to

variety of factors in establishing these estimates including

specific terms and conditions of loans and leases underwriting

standards delinquency statistics historical charge-off history

by portfolio segment industry concentration overall exposure

to single customer adequacy of collateral the dependence

on collateral and results of internal loan review including

borrowers perceived financial and management strengths the

amounts and timing of the present value of future cash flows

and access to additional funds
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As part of the process
of allocating the allowance to the

different segments of the loan and lease portfolio the

Corporation considers certain credit quality indicators For the

commercial mortgage construction and commercial and

industrial loan segments periodic reviews of the individual

loans are performed by both in-house staff as well as external

third-party loan review specialists The result of these reviews

is reflected in the risk grade assigned to each loan In addition

the remaining segments of the loan and lease portfolio which

include residential mortgage home equity lines and loans

consumer loans and leases are allocated portions of the

allowance based on their performance status

The evaluation process also considers the impact of

competition current and expected economic conditions

national and international events the regulatory and legislative

environment and inherent risks in the loan and lease portfolio

All of these factors may be susceptible to significant change

To the extent actual outcomes differ from the Corporations

estimates an additional provision for loan and lease losses

may be required that might adversely affect the Corporations

results of operations in future periods In addition various

regulatory agencies as an integral part of their examination

processes periodically review the allowance Such agencies

may require the Corporation to record additions to the

allowance based on their judgment of information available to

them at the time of their examination

Other Investments and Federal Home Loan Bank Stock

Other investments include Community Reinvestment Act

CRA investments and equity stocks without readily

determinable fair market value The Corporations investments

in equity stocks include those issued by the Federal Home

Loan Bank of Pittsburgh FHLB the Federal Reserve Bank

and Atlantic Central Bankers Bank The Corporation is

required to hold FHLB stock as condition of its borrowing

funds from the FHLB As of December 31 2011 the carrying

value of the Corporations FHLB stock was $11.6 million

Ownership of FHLB stock is restricted and there is no market

for these securities In 2008 the FHLB reported significant

losses due to numerous factors including other-than-

temporary impairment charges on its portfolio of private-label

mortgage-backed securities The FHLB aimounced capital

restoration plan in February of 2009 which restricted it from

repurchasing or redeeming capital stock or paying dividends

In 2010 the FHLB resumed redemption and repurchase of its

stock repurchasing $749 thousand and $2.6 million from the

Corporation in the twelve months ended December 31 2010

and 2011 respectively On February 22 2012 the FHLB

announced quarterly dividend of 0.10% annualized For

further information on the FHLB stock see Note 10 Short-

Term and Other Borrowings

Impaired Loans and Leases

loan or lease is considered impaired when based on current

information and events it is probable that the Corporation will

be unable to collect the contractually scheduled payments of

principal or interest When assessing impairment the

Corporation considers various factors which include payment

status realizable value of collateral and the probability of

collecting scheduled principal and interest payments when

due Loans and leases that experience insignificant payment

delays and payment shortfalls generally are not classified as

impaired

The Corporation determines the significance of payment

delays and payment shortfalls on case-by-case basis taking

into consideration all of the circumstances surrounding the

loan and the borrower including the length of the delay the

reasons for the delay the borrowers prior payment record

and the amount of the shortfall in relation to the principal and

interest owed

Impairment is measured by either the present value of

expected future cash flows discounted at the loans contractual

effective interest rate the loans obtainable market price or

the fair value of the collateral if the loan is collateral

dependent

In connection with the FKF Merger certain loans were

acquired which exhibited deteriorated credit quality since

origination and for which the Bank does not expect to collect

all contractual payments Accounting for these purchased

credit-impaired loans is done in accordance with ASC 10-30

The loans were recorded at fair value reflecting the present

value of the amounts expected to be collected Income

recognition on these loans is based on reasonable

expectation about the timing and amount of cash flows to be

collected Acquired loans deemed impaired and considered

collateral dependent with the timing of the sale of loan

collateral indeterminate remain on non-accrual status and

have no accretable yield

Troubled Debt Restructurings TDRs
TDR occurs when creditor for economic or legal reasons

related to borrowers financial difficulties modifies the

original terms of the loan or lease or grants concession to the

borrower that it would not otherwise have granted

concession may include an extension of repayment terms

reduction in the interest rate or the forgiveness of principal

andlor accrued interest If the debtor is experiencing financial

difficulty and the creditor has granted concession the

Corporation will make the necessary disclosures related to the

TDR In certain cases modification may be made in an

effort to retain customer who is not experiencing financial

difficulty This type of modification is not considered to be

TDR

Other Real Estate Owned OREO
OREO consists of assets that the Corporation has acquired

through foreclosure by accepting deed in lieu of foreclosure

or by taking possession of assets that were used as loan

collateral The Corporation reports OREO on the balance sheet

within other assets at the lower of cost or estimated fair value

less cost to sell adjusted periodically based on current

appraisals Costs relating to the development or improvement

of assets as well as the costs required to obtain legal title to

the property are capitalized while costs related to holding the

property are charged to expense as incurred
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Premises and Equipment

Premises and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated

depreciation Depreciation and predetermined rent are

recorded using the straight-line method over the estimated

useful lives of the assets Leasehold improvements are

amortized over the expected lease term or the estimated useful

lives whichever is shorter

Pension and Postretirement Benefit Plans

The Corporation has three defined benefit pension plans one

postretirement benefit plan and 401K plan as discussed in

Note 15 401K Plan and in Note 16 Pension and

Postretirement Benefit Plans Net pension expense
consists of

service cost interest cost return on plan assets amortization

of prior service cost amortization of transition obligations and

amortization of net actuarial gains and losses The Corporation

accrues pension costs as incurred

Bank Owned Life Insurance BOLl
In connection with the FKF Merger the Corporation acquired

$18.7 million of BOLl

BOLl is recorded at its cash surrender value on the balance

sheet Income from BOLl is tax-exempt and included as

component of other non-interest income

Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation

Stock-based compensation cost is measured at the grant date

based on the fair value of the award and is recognized as an

expense over the vesting period

All share-based payments including grants of stock options

restricted stock awards and performance-based stock awards

are recognized as compensation expense
in the statement of

income at their fair value The fair value of stock option grants

is determined using the Black-Scholes pricing model which

considers the expected life of the options the volatility of

stock price risk-free interest rate and aimual dividend yield

The fair value of the restricted stock awards is based on their

market value on the grant date while the fair value of the

performance-based stock awards is based on their grant-date

market value in addition to the likelihood of attaining certain

pre-determined performance goals utilizing the Monte Carlo

Simulation model

Stock-based compensation expense for 2011 2010 and 2009

were $876 thousand $539 thousand and $386 thousand

respectively

Earnings Per Common Share

Basic earnings per common share excludes dilution and is

computed by dividing income available to common

shareholders by the weighted-average common shares

outstanding during the period Diluted earnings per common

share takes into account the potential dilution that could occur

if stock options were exercised and converted into common

shares and restricted stock awards were vested Proceeds

assumed to have been received on options exercises are

assumed to be used to purchase shares of the Corporations

common stock at the average
market price during the period

as required by the treasury stock method of accounting The

effects of stock options are excluded from the computation of

diluted earnings per
share in periods in which the effect would

be antidilutive All weighted average shares actual shares and

per share information in the financial statements have been

adjusted retroactively for the effect of stock dividends and

splits

Income Taxes

Income taxes are accounted for under the asset and liability

method Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for

the future tax consequences attributable to differences between

the financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and

liabilities and their respective tax bases and operating loss and

tax credit carry-forwards Deferred tax assets and liabilities are

measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable

income in the years in which those temporary differences are

expected to be recovered or settled The effect on deferred tax

assets and liabilities of change in tax rates is recognized in

income in the period that includes the enactment date

The Corporation recognizes the financial statement benefit of

tax position only after determining that the Corporation

would more-likely-than-not sustain the position following an

examination For tax positions meeting the more-likely-than-

not threshold the amount recognized in the financial

statements is the largest benefit that has greater than

50 percent likelihood of being realized upon settlement with

the relevant tax authority The Corporation applied these

criteria to tax positions for which the statute of limitations

remained open

Revenue Recognition

With the exception of non-accrual loans and leases the

Corporation recognizes all sources of income on the accrual

method Additional information relating to wealth

management fee revenue recognition follows

The Corporation earns Wealth Management fee revenue from

variety of sources including fees from trust administration

and other related fiduciary services custody investment

management and advisory services employee benefit account

and IRA administration estate settlement tax service fees

shareholder service fees and brokerage These fees are

generally based on asset values and fluctuate with the market

Some of the revenues are not directly tied to asset value but

are based on flat fee for services provided For many of our

revenue sources amounts are not received in the same

accounting period in which they are earned However each

source of Wealth Management fees is recorded on the accrual

method of accounting

The most significant portion of the Corporations Wealth

Management fees is derived from trust administration and

other related services custody investment management and

advisory services and employee benefit account and IRA

administration These fees are generally billed in arrears

based on the market value of assets at the end of the previous

billing period smaller number of customers are billed in
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similarmanner but on quarterly or annual basis and some

revenues are not based on market values

The balance of the Corporations Wealth Management fees

includes estate settlement fees and tax service fees which are

recorded when the related service is performed and asset

management and brokerage fees on non-depository investment

products which are received one month in arrears based on

settled transactions but are accrued in the month the

settlement occurs

Included in other assets on the balance sheet is receivable for

Wealth Management fees that have been earned but not yet

collected This receivable is reviewed quarterly for

collectability

Mortgage Servicing

The Corporation performs various servicing functions on loans

owned by others fee usually based on percentage of the

outstanding principal balance of the loan is received for these

services Gain on sale of loans is based on the specific

identification method

Mortgage servicing rights MSRs are recognized as

separate assets when rights are retained through the sale of

financial assets Capitalized servicing rights are amortized into

non-interest expense
in proportion to and over the period of

the estimated future net servicing life of the underlying

financial assets

Servicing assets are evaluated quarterly for impairment based

upon the fair value of the rights as compared to amortized

cost Impairment is determined by stratifying rights by

predominant characteristics such as interest rate and terms

Fair value is determined based upon discounted cash flows

using market-based assumptions Impairment is recognized on

the income statement to the extent the fair value is less than

the capitalized amount for the stratum valuation allowance

is utilized to record temporary impairment in MSRs

Temporary impairment is defined as impairment that is not

deemed permanent Permanent impairment is recorded as

reduction of the MSR and is not reversed

Statement of Cash Flows

The Corporations statement of cash flows details operating

investing and financing activities during the reported periods

Goodwill and Intangible Assets

The Corporation accounts for goodwill and other intangible

assets in accordance with ASC 350 Intangibles Goodwill

and Other The goodwill and intangible assets as of

December 31 2011 other than MSRs in Note 1-S above are

related to the acquisitions of Lau Associates and PWMG
which are components of the Wealth Management Segment

and FKF component of the Banking Segment The amount

of goodwill initially recorded reflects the value assigned to the

assets at the time of investment Goodwill impairment tests are

performed at least annually or when events occur or

circumstances change that would more likely than not reduce

the fair value of the acquisition or investment

The Corporations impairment testing methodology is

consistent with the methodology prescribed in ASC 350 Other

intangible assets include the core deposit intangible which

was acquired in the FKF Merger customer relationships and

non-competition agreements acquired in connection with the

PWMG Acquisition and the Lau Associates acquisition and

trade name acquired in the Lau Associates acquisition The

core deposit intangible is amortized over ten year period

utilizing declining balance method The customer

relationships and non-competition agreement intangibles are

amortized over the estimated useful lives of the assets which

range
from 10 to 20 years The trade name intangible has an

indefinite life and is evaluated for impairment annually

Reclassifications

Certain prior year amounts have been reclassified to conform

to the current year presentation

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

FASB ASC 820

Accounting Standards Update No 2010-6 Improving

Disclosures about Fair Value Measurements ASU 20 10-

06 was issued in January 2010 to update ASC 820 Fair

Value measurements and Disclosures ASU 20 10-06 requires

new disclosures for significant transfers in and out of

Level and Level including description of the reason for

the transfers and in the reconciliation of Level presenting

sales issuances and settlements gross rather than one net

number ASU 20 10-06 also requires clarification of existing

disclosures requiring measurement disclosures for each

class of assets and liabilities class being subset of assets

and liabilities within one line item in the statement of financial

position using judgment in determining the appropriate

classes and disclosures about inputs and valuation

techniques used to measure fair value for both recurring and

nonrecurring fair value measurements for Level and Level

The new disclosures and clarifications of existing disclosures

were effective for interim and reporting periods beginning

after December 15 2009 except for the disclosures about

purchases sales issuances and settlements in the roll forward

of activity Level which are effective for fiscal years

beginning after December 15 2010 and for interim periods

within those fiscal years The Corporation made the required

disclosures in this Annual Report filed on Form 10-K

FASB ASU No 2010-20

Accounting Standards Update No 20 10-20 Disclosures about

Credit Quality of Financial Receivables and the Allowance for

Credit Losses ASU 20 10-20 was issued July 2010 The

ASU requires disclosure related to period-end information

i.e credit quality information and the ending financing

receivable balance segregated by impairment method in all

interim and annual reporting periods ending on or after

December 15 2010 Disclosures of activity that occur during

reporting period are required in interim or annual periods

beginning on or after December 15 2010 The Corporation

adopted ASU 2010-20 and has provided disclosures required

by ASU 20 10-20 in this Annual Report filed on Form 10-K
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FASB ASU No 2011-02

Accounting Standards Update No 2011-02 Creditors

Determination of Whether Restructuring is Troubled Debt

Restructuring was issued in April 2011 The amendments in

this ASU are effective for the first interim or annual period

beginning on or after June 15 2011 and are applied

retrospectively to the beginning of the annual period of

adoption The Corporation has adopted the methodologies

prescribed by this ASU

FASB ASU No 2011-03

On April 29 2011 the FASB issued ASU No 2011-03

Reconsideration of Effective Control for Repurchase

Agreements Topic 860 which removes the collateral

maintenance provision that is currently required when

determining whether transfer of financial instrument is

accounted for as sale or secured borrowing The

Corporation will adopt ASU No 20 11-03 in its consolidated

financial statements in the first quarter of 2012 The

Corporation is currently evaluating the impact of this standard

on its financial condition results of operations and

disclosures

FASB ASU No 2011-04

On May 12 2011 the FASB issued ASU No 2011-04

Amendments to Achieve Common Fair Value Measurement

and Disclosure Requirements in U.S GAAP and IFRS Topic

820 which is joint effort between the FASB and IASB to

converge fair value measurement and disclosure guidance

The ASU permits measuring financial assets and liabilities on

net credit risk basis if certain criteria are met The ASU also

increases disclosure surrounding company-determined market

price Level financial instruments and also requires the fair

value hierarchy disclosure of financial assets and liabilities

that are not recognized at fair value in the statement of

financial position but are included in disclosures at fair value

The Corporation will adopt ASU No 20 11-04 in its

consolidated financial statements in the first quarter of 2012

The Corporation is currently evaluating the impact of this

standard on its financial condition results of operations and

disclosures

FASB ASU No 2011-05

On June 16 2011 the FASB issued ASU No 2011-05

Presentation of Comprehensive Income Topic 220 which

requires companies to report total net income each component

of comprehensive income and total comprehensive income on

the face of the income statement or as two consecutive

statements The Corporation has adopted ASU No 2011-05 in

its consolidated financial statements

FASB ASU No 2011-08

On September 15 2011 the FASB issued ASU 2011-08

Intangibles-Goodwill and Other Testing Goodwill for

Impairment The amendments in this Update will allow an

entity to first assess qualitative factors to determine whether it

is necessary to perform the two-step quantitative goodwill

impairment test Under these amendments an entity would not

be required to calculate the fair value of reporting unit unless

the entity determines based on qualitative assessment that it

is more likely than not that its fair value is less than its

carrying amount The amendments include number of events

and circumstances for an entity to consider in conducting the

qualitative assessment The provisions of ASU 2011-08 will

be effective for years beginning after December 15 2011 for

both public and nonpublic entities although earlier adoption is

allowed The Corporation does not expect that adoption of this

standard will have significant impact on the Companys
consolidated financial statements

BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

Private Wealth Management Group of the Hershey Trust

Company

On May 27 2011 the Acquisition of PWMG by the

Corporation was completed The consideration paid by the

Corporation was $18.4 million of which $8.1 million cash and

322101 unregistered shares of the BMBC common stock

valued at $6.7 million were paid at closing and $3.6 million

cash was placed in escrow to be paid in three equal

installments on the 6- 12- and 18-month anniversaries of

February 17 2011 the date preceding the date of the

definitive stock purchase agreement subject to certain post-

closing contingencies relating to the assets under management

The first two payments of $1.2 million each were issued on

August 31 2011 and March 22012

The Acquisition of PWMG initially increased the

Corporations Wealth Management Division assets under

management by $1.1 billion

The acquisition was accounted for using the acquisition

method of accounting and accordingly assets acquired

liabilities assumed and consideration paid were recorded at

their estimated fair values as of the acquisition date The

excess of consideration paid over the fair value of net assets

acquired was recorded as goodwill in the amount of

$5.7 million which will not be amortizable for book purposes

however will be deductible for tax purposes The Corporation

allocated the total balance of goodwill to its Wealth

Management segment The Corporation also recorded an

$8.6 million intangible asset for customer relationships which

will be amortized over 15 year period using an accelerated

method and $3.8 million intangible asset for restrictive

covenant agreements which will be amortized over five-

and-a-h alf year period using straight-line method

The fair values of the intangible assets listed below are

estimates and are subject to adjustment however while they

are not expected to be materially different than those shown

Any adjustments to the estimates will be reflected

retroactively as of the date of the acquisition

In connection with the Acquisition of PWMG the

consideration paid and the fair value of identifiable assets

acquired and liabilities assumed as of the date of the

acquisition are summarized in the following table
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dollars in thousands

Consideration paid

Common shares issued 322101 shares

Cash paid

Cash held in escrow as of December 31 2011

Value of consideration

Assets acquired

Intangible asset customer relationships

Intangible asset non-compete agreements

Premises and equipment _________
Total assets

Liabilities assumed

Net assets acquired __________

Goodwill resulting from the Acquisition

ofPWMG 5721

First Keystone Financial Inc

On July 2010 the Merger with FKF and the two step

merger of FKF wholly-owned subsidiary FKB with and into

the Bank were completed In accordance with the terms of the

Agreement and Plan of Merger dated November 2009 by

and between the Corporation and FKF shareholders of FKF

received 0.6973 shares of the Corporations common stock

plus $2.06 per share cash consideration for each share of FKF

common stock they owned as of the effective date of the

merger The 85% stock and 15% cash transaction was valued

at $31.3 million based on FKFs June 30 2010 closing share

price of $13.35 as listed on the NASDAQ stock market The

aggregate consideration paid to FKF shareholders consisted of

approximately 1.6 million shares of the Corporations

common stock valued at approximately $26.4 million and

approximately $4.8 million in cash FKF employee stock

options valued at approximately $102 thousand which were

fully vested and converted to options to purchase the

Corporations common stock upon the closing of the merger

were also included in the total consideration paid The results

of the combined entitys operations are included in the

Corporations Consolidated Statements of Income for the

period beginning July 2010 the date of the merger

The Merger with FKF federally chartered thrift institution

with assets of approximately $480 million enabled the

Corporation to increase its regional footprint with the addition

of eight full service branch locations primarily in Delaware

County Pennsylvania The geographic locations of the

acquired branches were such that it was not necessary to close

any of the former FKF branches By expanding into these new

areas within Delaware County the Corporation will be able to

extend its successful sales culture as well as offer its reputable

wealth management products and other value-added services

to wider segment of the regions population In addition

large majority of the FKF employees were retained which

will allow the Corporation to maintain the valuable customer

relationships that FKF was able to build over the past century

The FKF Merger was accounted for using the acquisition

method of accounting and accordingly assets acquired

liabilities assumed and consideration paid were recorded at

their estimated fair values as of the acquisition date The

excess of consideration paid over the fair value of net assets

acquired was recorded as goodwill in the amount of

$9.1 million which will not be amortizable for book purposes

and is not deductible for tax purposes The Corporation

allocated the total balance of goodwill recorded in connection

with the merger to its Banking segment The Corporation also

recorded $2.1 million in core deposit intangibles which will be

amortized over ten years using declining balance method

In connection with the FKF Merger the consideration paid

and the fair value of identifiable assets acquired and liabilities

assumed as of the date of acquisition are summarized in the

following table

dollars in thousands

Consideration paid

Common shares issued 1630053 shares

Cash paid to FKF shareholders

Fair value of FKF employee stock options ________
Value of consideration

Assets acquired

Cash and due from banks

Investment secunties

Loans

Premises and equipment

Deferred federal income taxes

Bank owned life insurance

Federal Home Loan Bank FHLB stock

Core deposit intangible

Other assets
__________

Total assets

Liabilities assumed

Deposits

FHLB advances

Junior subordinated debentures

Repurchase agreements

Other liabilities
_________

Total liabilities

Net assets acquired 21571

Goodwill resulting from Merger with FKF 9741

The following table details the effect on goodwill of the

changes in estimates of the fair values of the assets acquired

and liabilities assumed from the amounts originally reported

on the Form 10-K for the year ended December 31 2010

Goodwill resulting from the Merger with FKF

reported on Form 10-K for the year ended

December 31 2010

Effect of adjustments to

Deferred tax asset

Other assets
___________

Adjusted goodwill resulting from the Merger

with FKF as of December 31 2011 9122

As of December 31 2011 the Corporation finalized its fair

value estimates related to the merger

6661

9350

2400

18411

8610

3830

250

12690

12690

26391

4819

102

31312

51059

100888

274533

7856

9408

18711

7060

2127

8613

480255

320768

105734

12103

13087

6992

458684

9741

l0

5O9
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In many cases the fair values of assets acquired and liabilities

assumed were determined by estimating the cash flows

expected to result from those assets and liabilities and

discounting them at appropriate market rates The most

significant category of assets for which this procedure was

used was that of acquired loans The excess of expected cash

flows above the fair value of the majority of loans will be

accreted to interest income over the remaining lives of the

loans in accordance with Financial Accounting Standards

Board FASB Accounting Standards Codification ASC
10-20 formerly SFAS 91

Certain loans for which specific credit-related deterioration

since origination was identified are recorded at fair value

reflecting the present value of the amounts expected to be

collected Income recognition on these loans is based on

reasonable expectation about the timing and amount of cash

flows to be collected Acquired loans deemed impaired and

considered collateral dependent with the timing of the sale of

loan collateral indeterminate remain on non-accrual status and

have no accretable yield The Corporation uses the cash basis

method of interest income recognition for these impaired

loans The following table details the loans that are accounted

for in accordance with FASB ASC 310-30 formerly

SOP 03-3 as of July 2010

Contractually required principal and interest at

acquisition 41170

Contractual cash flows not expected to be collected

nonaccretable difference 14856

Expected cash flows at acquisition 26314

Interest component of expected cash flows

accretable discount 7024

Fair value of acquired loans accounted for under

FASBASC31O-30 19290

In accordance with GAAP there was no carryover
of the

allowance for loan losses that had been previously recorded by

FKF

In connection with the FKF Merger the Corporation acquired

an investment portfolio with fair value of$ 100.9 million

The fair value of the investment portfolio was determined by

taking into account market prices obtained from independent

valuation sources

In connection with the FKF Merger the Corporation recorded

deferred income tax asset of $9.5 million related to FKFs

net operating loss cany-forward as well as other tax attributes

of the acquired company along with the effects of fair value

adjustments resulting from applying the acquisition method of

accounting

The fair value of savings and transaction deposit accounts

acquired from FKF was assumed to approximate their carrying

value as these accounts have no stated maturity and are

payable on demand Certificates of deposit accounts were

valued by comparing the contractual cost of the portfolio to an

identical portfolio bearing current market rates The portfolio

was segregated into pools based on remaining maturity For

each pool the projected cash flows from maturing certificates

were then calculated based on contractual rates and prevailing

market rates The valuation adjustment for each pool is equal

to the present value of the difference of these two cash flows

discounted at the assumed market rate for certificate with

corresponding maturity This valuation adjustment will be

accreted to reduce interest expense over the remaining

maturities of the respective poo1s

Due to the overnight nature of the repurchase agreements

acquired from FKF their carrying value was used to

approximate their fair value as of the acquisition date and

hence no adjustment to fair value was recorded

The fair value of the FHLB advances took into account the

prepayment penalties that would have been assessed as of

July 2010 by the FHLB for their redemption This fair

value adjustment to the face value of the borrowings will be

accreted to reduce interest expense over the remaining lives of

the respective borrowings

The fair value of the junior subordinated debentures was

determined taking into account the price to call the

instruments The premium to call the debentures decreases

annually until August 2017 at which time they may be called

at par The fair value adjustment will be accreted to reduce

interest expense over the periods ending in August 2017

The following table presents unaudited pro forma information

as if the Merger with FKF had occurred on both January

2010 and January 2009 This
pro

forma information gives

effect to certain adjustments including purchase accounting

fair value adjustments amortization of core deposit and other

intangibles and related income tax effects

The pro forma information does not necessarily reflect the

results of operations that would have occurred had the Merger

with FKF occurred at the beginning of 2010 or 2009

Pro forma

Twelve Months Ended

December 31

dollars in thousands 2010 2009

Net interest income 58568 55735

Allowance for loan loss 11754 9884
Non-interest income 28202 30302

Non-interest expense 66054 65642

Net income 8962 10511
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dollars in thousands

Goodwill Lau

Goodwill PWMG
..

Total $17659

Core deposit

intangible 1951

Customer

relationships 4473

Non compete

agreement 400

Brand trade name 240

Beginning

Balance

dollars in thousands 1/1/10

Goodwill Lau 6301

Goodwill FKF

Total 6301

Core deposit

intangible

Customer

relationships 4728

Non compete

agreement 453

Brand trade name .. 240

Total 5421

Grand total $11722

Ending

Balance Amnrtization

Amortization 12/31/10 Period

7918 Indefinite

9741 9741 Indefinite

11358 $17659

2127 176 1951 10 Years

255 4473 20 Years

53 400 10 Years

240 Indefinite

_________ 484 7064

484 $24723

As of December 31 2011

dollars in thousands

Obligations of the U.S

government and

agencies $104252

Obligations of state and

political subdivisions 8210

Mortgage-backed securities 95713

Collateralized mortgage

obligations 32418

Corporate bonds 12616

Investment certificates of

deposit

Other debt securities
__________

Total fixed income

investments 257520

Bond mutual funds 12091

Total non-maturity

investments 12091

Total 269611

As of December 31 2010

Amortized

dollars in thousands Cost

U.S treasury obligations 5011

Obligations of the U.S

Government and

agencies 156301

Obligations of state and

political subdivisions 32013

Mortgage-backed securities 72907

Collateralized mortgage

obligations 2068

Corporate bonds 10803

Other debt securities 1750

Total fixed income

investments 280853

397 79 $104570

251 46 32623

194 92 12718

3170 277 $260413

196 11904

196 11904

3179 473 $272317

Gross Gross

Unrealized Unrealized Estimated

Gains Losses Fair Value

134 5145

704 367 156638

358 99 32272

866 246 73527

30 2098

159 10644

________ 1750

2092 871 $282074

Bond mutual funds 34491

Equity securities
_________

Total non-maturity

investments 34734

Total $315587

GoorwiLL OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

The Corporations goodwill and intangible assets related to the

acquisitions of Lau in July 2008 FKF in July 2010 and

PWMG in May 2011 for the years ending December 31

2011 and 2010 are as follows

INVESTMENT SECURITIES

Beginning

Balance

1/1/11

7918

Goodwill FKF 9741 619

Additions/

Adjustments Amortization

1928

The amortized cost and estimated fair value of investments all

of which were classified as available for sale are as follows

Ending

Balance Amortization

12/31/11 Period

9846 Indefinite

9122 Indefinite

Indefinite

Gross Gross

Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Estimated

Cnst Gains lossesl Fair Value

_______
5721 5721

7030 $24689

323 1628 10 Years

8610 707 12376 20 Years

3830 460 3770 10 Years

240 Indefinite

_______ _________
1490 $18014

Grand total $24723 19470 1490 $42703

Total 7064 12440

158

2160

8366

39 97834

Additlons/

Adjustments

1617

2411 10 2420

1900 18 1882

2127

13485

Under the terms of the Lau Associates acquisition the

Corporation recorded the final earn-out payment of

$1.9 million which will be payable during the first quarter of

2012

241 10 34722

243 13 256

254

2346

10 34978

881 $317052
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Less than 12 12 Months

Months or Longer

Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized

Vat.. nssesi Value .05.5.51

The following table shows the amount of securities that were is more likely than not that it will not have to sell these

in an unrealized loss position at December 31 201 securities prior to their maturity or the recovery of their cost

bases

dnllas in thousands Total

Fair Unrealized At December 31 201 securities having fair value of

Value Losses $135.3 million were specifically pledged as collateral for

Obligations of the
public funds trust deposits the FRB discount window

U.S government

and agencies 23457 79 23457 79 program FHLB borrowings and other purposes The FHLB

Obligations of has blanket lien on non-pledged mortgage-related loans and

state and political securities as part of the Corporations borrowing agreement
subdivisions 620 620

Mortgage-backed
with the FHLB

securities 7696 22 4886 17 12582 39
Collateralized

The amortized cost and estimated fair value of investment and

mortgage mortgage-related securities as of December 31 201 and

obligations 7440 46 7440 46
Corporate

bonds 2912 92 2912 92 2010 by contractual maturity are shown below Expected

Investment
maturities will differ from contractual maturities because

certificates of borrowers may have the right to call or prepay obligations
deposit

442 442
with or without call or prepayment penalties

Other debt

securities 982 18 982 18
Total fixed

December 31 2011

income
Estimated

investments 43549 260 4886 17 48435 277 Amortized Market

Bond mutual dollars in thousands Cost Value

funds 11260 196 $- 11260 196
Investment securities

Total 54809 456 $4886 17 59695 473 Due in one year or less 900 900

Due after one year through
The following table shows the amount of securities that were

five years 54046 54349
in an unrealized loss position at December 31 2010 Due after five years through

Less than 12 12 Months ten years 48210 48354

dollars in thousands Months or Longer Total Due after ten years 26233 26353
Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized

Value Losses Value Losses Value Losses
Subtotal 129389 129956

Obligationsofthe
Mortgage-related securities 128131 130457

U.S Government Total 257520 260413

and agencies 46027 367 46027 367

Obligations of Included in fhe investment portfolio but not in the table above are

state and political $11.9 million of bond mutual funds which have no stated maturity or

subdivisions 10158 99 --- 10158 99
constant stated coupon rate

Mortgage-backed

securities 32765 246 32765 246 December 31 2010

Corporate bonds 10645 159 10645 159
Estimated

Total fixed

Amortized Market
income

investments 99595 871 99595 871 dollars in thousands Cost Value

Bond-- mutual Investment securities
funds 603 10 $- 603 10
Total $100198 881 $100198 881

Due in one year or less 6223 6231

Due after one year through

Management evaluates the Corporations investment securities
five years 104499 104803

that are in an unrealized loss position in order to determine if
Due after five years through

the decline in market value is other than temporary The
ten years 79288

Due after ten years 16127
investment portfolio includes debt securities issued by U.S

Subtotal 206449
government agencies U.S government-sponsored agencies

Mortgage-related securities 75625
state and local municipalities and other issuers All fixed

Total 282074
income investment securities in the Corporations investment

portfolio are rated as investment-grade or higher Factors Included in the investment portfolio but not in the table above are

considered in the evaluation include the current economic $34.5 million of bond mutualfunds which have no stated maturity or

climate the length of time and the extent to which the fair
constant stated coupon rate as well as the Corporation $243 thousand

investment in an equity security

value has been below cost interest rates and the bond rating of

each security The unrealized losses presented in the tables Proceeds from the sale of available for sale investment

above are temporary in nature and are primarily related to securities totaled $89.7 million $88.0 million and

market interest rates rather than the underlying credit quality $62.9 million for the twelve months ended December 31

of the issuers Management does not believe that these 2011 2010 and 2009 respectively Gain on sale of available

unrealized losses are other-than-temporary The Corporation for sale investment securities for the twelve months ended

does not have the intent to sell these securities prior to their December 31 2011 2010 and 2009 totaled $1.8 million

maturity or the recovery
of their cost bases and believes that it $2.5 million and $1.9 million respectively

79060

16096

205878

74975

280853
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LOANS AND LEASES

Loans and leases outstanding are detailed by portfolio

segment as follows

dollars in thousands

Loans held for sale

Real estate loans

Commercial mortgage

Home equity lines and loans

Residential mortgage

Construction

Total real estate loans

Commercial and industrial

Consumer

Leases

December 31

2011 2010

419130

207917

306478

52844

986369

267204

11429

30390

Total portfolio loans and leases 1295392

Total loans and leases 1296980

Loans with predetermined rates 608490

Loans with adjustable or

floating rates
___________

688490

Total loans and leases 1296980

Net deferred loan origination costs

included in the above

loan table 563 378

dollars in thousands 2011 2010

Non-accrual loans and leases

Commercial mortgage

Home equity lines and loans

Residential mortgage

Construction

Commercial and industrial

Consumer

Leases 155 279

14315 9497

Loans and leases 90 days or more

past due and still accruing

Home equity lines and loans

Commercial and industrial

Consumer 10

Total 10

Total non-performing

loans and leases 14315 9507

1911

987

4411

202

1692

15

Purchased credit-impaired loans which have been recorded at their fair

values at the FKF Merger date and which are performing as expected are

excludedfrom this table with the exception of$1.5 million and

$785 thousand as of December 31 2011 and 2010 respectively of

purchased credit-impaired loans which became non-performing

subsequent to the merger

Purchased Credit-Impaired Loans

The outstanding principal balance and related carrying amount

of credit-impaired loans for which the Corporation applies

ASC 10-30 to account for the interest earned as of the dates

indicated is as follows

December 31

dollars in thousands 2011 2010

Outstanding principal balance 22749 27489

Carrying amountW 13993 17837

Includes $678 thousand and $1.1 million of purchased credit-impaired

loans as of December 31 2011 and 2010 respectivelyfor which the

Corporation could not estimate the timing or amount of expected cash

flows to be collected at the FKF Merger date and for which no accretable

yield is recognized Additionally the table above includes $1.5 million and

$785 thousand as of December 31 2011 and 2010 respectively of

purchased credit-impaired loans that subsequently became non-

performing which are disclosed in Note SC above and which also have

no accretable yield

The following table presents changes in the accretable

discount on purchased credit-impaired loans for which the

Corporation applies ASC 10-30 for the twelve months ended

December 31 2011

dollars in thousands ____________

Balance December 31 2010

Accretion

Reclassification from nonaccretable difference

Net additions/subtractions due to loan term

modifications

Disposals __________

Balance December 31 2011

1588 4838

385615

216853

261983

45403

909854

239266

12200

35397

1196717

1201555

544784

656771

1201555

Leases outstanding at December 31 are detailed by

components of the net investment as follows

December 31

2011 2010dollars in thousands _________

Minimum lease payments receivable 34143 39711

Unearned lease income 5080 5808
Initial direct costs and deferred fees 1327 1494

Total 30390 35397

Non-Performing Loans and Leases

December 31

Accretable

Discount

6333

1299
3944

868

309
9537

1043

2678

3228

4901

2305

Total
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Age Analysis of Past Due Loans and Leases

Delinquency equals past
due plus Over 89 and accruing loans and leases

Allowance for Loan and Lease Losses the Allowance

The following table details the roll-forward of the Corporations allowance for loan and lease losses for the twelve month periods

ended December 31 2011 2010 2009

For the

Twelve Months Ended

dollars in thousands December 31

2011

Balance beginning of period 10275

Charge-offs 4648
Recoveries 1038

Provision for loan and lease losses 6088
__________ __________

Balance end of period 12753
_________ _________

The following table details the roll-forward of the Corporations allowance for loan and lease losses by portfolio segment for the

twelve months ended December 31 2011

Equity Commercial

Commercial Lines and Residential and

dollars in thousands Mortgage Loans Mortgage Construction Industrial

Balance December 31 2010 .. 2534 1563 843 633 3565

Charge-offs ................... 827 514 391 1174 633
Recoveries ............ 190 307

Provision for loan and

lease losses 1458 468 1140 1925 577 85 253 182 6088

Balance December 31 2011 3165 1707 1592 1384 3816 119 532 438 12753

Consumer Leases Unallocated Total

115 766 256 10275

92 1017 4648
11 530 1038

3059 Days

Past Due

193

330

1455

6089 Days

Past Due

171

199

907

Over 89 Days

Past Due

1311

2235

1856

4853

2089279 1513

The following tables present an aging of the Corporations loan and lease portfolio as of December 31 2011 and 2010

dollars in thousands Total Total Loans Over 89 Days Delinquency

As of December 31 2011 Past Due Current and Leases and Accruing

Commercial mortgage 1675 417455 419130 0.40%

Home equity lines and loans 2764 205153 207917 1.33%

Residential mortgage 4218 302260 306478 1.38%

Construction 4853 47991 52844 9.18%

Commercial and industrial 3881 263323 267204 1.45%

Consumer 33 37 11392 11429 0.32%

Leases 156 75 145 376 30014 30390 1.24%

2446 2865 12493 17804 $1277588 $1295392 1.37%

Delinquency equals past due plus Over 89 and accruing Total loans and leases

dollars in thousands 30 59 Days 60 89 Days Over 89 Days Total Total Loans Over 89 Days Delinquency

As of December 31 2010 Past Due Past Due Past Due Past Due Current and Leases and Accruing

Commercial mortgage 377 1854 2231 383384 385615 0.58%

Home equity lines and loans 958 981 988 2927 213926 216853 1.35%

Residential mortgage 958 1089 1885 3932 258051 261983 1.50%

Construction 1730 201 1931 43472 45403 4.25%

Commercial and industrial 1467 68 1344 2879 236387 239266 1.20%

Consumer 21 23 47 12153 12200 10 0.47%

Leases 244 257 203 704 34693 35397 1.99%

5755 2599 6297 14651 $1182066 $1196717 10 1.23%

2010

10424

10694
691

9854

10275

Home

2009

10332

7370
578

6884

10424
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As of December 31 2010

Balance of loans and leases

Individually evaluated for

impairment 2615 749 2480

Collectively evaluated for

impairment 371692 215991 259165 38179

Purchased creditimpaired 11308 113 338 5349

Total 385615 216853 261983 45403

Purchased credit-impaired loans are evaluated for impairment on an individual hosts

Pass Loans considered to be satisfactory with no indications of deterioration

Special mention Loans classified as special mention have potential weakness that deserves managements close attention

If left uncorrected these potential weaknesses may result in deterioration of the repayment prospects for the loan or of the

institutions credit position at some future date

Substandard Loans classified as substandard are inadequately protected by the current net worth and payment capacity of

the obligor or of the collateral pledged if any Substandard loans have well-defined weakness or weaknesses that jeopardize

the liquidation of the debt They are characterized by the distinct possibility that the institution will sustain some loss if the

deficiencies are not corrected

532

532

438

438

The following table details the allocation of the allowance for loan and lease losses by portfolio segment based on the methodology

used to evaluate the loans and leases for impairment as of December 31 2011 and 2010

Home

Equity Commercial

Commercial Lines and Residential and

dollars in thousands Mortgage Loans Mortgage Construction Industrial Consumer Leases Unallocated Total

As of December 31 2011

Allowance on loans and leases

Individually evaluated for

impairment 75 358 640 248 1321

Collectively evaluated for

impairment 3153 1632 1234 741 3568 119 11417

Purchased creditimpaired 12 15

Total 3165 1707 1592 1384 3816 119 12753

As of December 31 2010

Allowance on loans and leases

Individually evaluated for

impairment 152 390 56 160 83 841

Collectively evaluated for

impairment 2382 1173 787 473 3482 115 9434

Purchased credit_impaired ...

Total 2534 1563 843 633 3565 115 10275

The following table details the carrying value for loans and leases by portfolio segment based on the methodology used to evaluate

the loans and leases for impairment as of December 31 201 and 2010

Home

Equity Commercial

Commercial Lines and Residential and

dollars in thousands Mortgage Loans Mortgage Construction Industrial Consumer Leases Total

As of December 31 2011

Balance of loans and leases

Individually evaluated for

impairment 2714 8146

Collectively evaluated for

impairment 407095 205172 298018 45696 264286 11424 30390

Purchased creditimpaired ... 12035 31 314 1086 525

Total 419130 207917 306478 52844 267204 11429 30390

766

766

256

256

6062 2393 55 19320

1262081

13991

1295392

1875 896 8615

237643

727

239266

12198

12200

35397

35397

1170265

17837

$1196717

As part of the process
of allocating the allowance to the different segments of the loan and lease portfolio Management considers

certain credit quality indicators For the commercial mortgage construction and commercial and industrial loan segments periodic

reviews at least quarterly of the individual loans are performed by both in-house staff as well as external loan reviewers The

result of these reviews is reflected in the risk grade assigned to each loan These internally assigned grades are as follows
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Doubtful Loans classified as doubtful have all the weaknesses inherent in those classified as substandard with the added

characteristic that the weaknesses make collection or liquidation in full on the basis of currently existing facts conditions

and values highly questionable and improbable

In addition the remaining segments of the loan and lease portfolio which include residential mortgage home equity lines and

loans consumer and leases are allocated portions of the allowance based on their performance status

The following tables detail the carrying value of loans and leases by portfolio segment based on the credit quality indicators used to

allocate the allowance for loan and lease losses as of December 31 2011 and 2010

Credit Risk Profile by Internally Assigned Grade

Commercial and

dollars in thousands Commercial Mortgage Construction Industrial Total

AsofDecember3l 2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010

Pass 414250 373098 38367 36230 260050 232717 712667 642045

Special Mention 1932 9141 3704 6486 1459 4969 7095 20596

Substandard 2948 1680 10521 2687 5523 735 18992 5102

Doubtful 1696 252 172 845 424 2541

Total 419130 385615 52844 45403 267204 239266 739178 670284

Loan balances classified as Doubtful have been reduced by partial charge-offs and are carried at their net realizable value

Credit Risk Profile Based on Payment Activity

Home Equity

dollars in thousands Residential Mortgage Lines and Loans Consumer Leases Total

AsofDecember3l 2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010

Performing ........... 303250 257572 205239 215866 11424 12175 30235 35118 550148 520731

Non-performing 3228 4411 2678 987 25 155 279 6066 5702

Total 306478 261983 207917 216853 11429 12200 30390 35397 556214 526433

Troubled Debt Restructurings TDRs
The restructuring of loan is considered troubled debt restructuring if both of the following conditions are met the borrower

is experiencing financial difficulties and ii the creditor has granted concession The most common concessions granted include

one or more modifications to the terms of the debt such as reduction in the interest rate for the remaining life of the debt

an extension of the maturity date at an interest rate lower than the current market rate for new debt with similar risk

temporary period of interest-only payments reduction in the contractual payment amount for either short period or

remaining term of the loan or for leases reduced lease payment less common concession granted is the forgiveness of

portion of the principal

The determination of whether borrower is experiencing financial difficulties takes into account not only the current financial

condition of the borrower but also the potential financial condition of the borrower were concession not granted Similarly the

determination of whether concession has been granted is very subjective in nature For example simply extending the term of

loan at its original interest rate or even at higher interest rate could be interpreted as concession unless the borrower could

readily obtain similar credit terms from different lender

The Corporation has adopted the provisions of Accounting Standards Update ASU No 2011-02 Receivables Topic 310
Creditors Determination of Whether Restructuring Is Troubled Debt Restructuring As such the Corporation reassessed all

loan and lease modifications occurring since January 2011 for identification as troubled debt restructurings The reassessment of

all loan and lease modifications since January 2011 did not uncover any previously undisclosed TDRs

The following table presents the balance of TDRs as of the indicated dates

December 31 December 31

dollars in thousands 2011 2010

TDRs included in nonperforming loans and leases 4300 1879

TDRs in compliance with modified terms 7166 4693

Total TDRs 11466 6572
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dollars in thousands

Residential

Commercial and industrial

Construction

Leases

Total

Pre-Modification Post-Modification

Outstanding Outstanding

Recorded Recorded

Investment Investment

674 674

478 478

4430 4430

157 157

The following table presents information regarding the types of loan and lease modifications made for the twelve months ended

December 31 2011

Interest Rate

Interest Rate Change with

Interest Rate Loan Term Change and Interest-Only

Change Extension Term Extension Period

____________ 11

11

During the twelve months ended December 31 2011 there were no defaults of loans or leases that had been previously modified to

Troubled Debt Restructurings

Impaired Loans

Impaired loans without related allowance

Home equity lines and loans

Residential mortgage

Construction

Commercial and industrial

Consumer loans

Total

456 75 456

2682 358 2696 130

6054 640 6478 73

2160 248 2199 32

11352 1321 11829 236

2266 2310 2316 46

5492 5863 5865 191

1209 1213 1326 56

825 855 1031 20

____________

9797 10246 10544 314

The following table presents information regarding loan and lease modifications categorized as Troubled Debt Restructurings for

the twelve months ended December 31 2011

Number of

Contracts

11

18 $5739 $5739

Number of Contracts

Residential

Commercial and industrial

Construction

Leases

Total

Contractual

Payment

Reduction

Leases only

The following tables detail the recorded investment and principal balance of impaired loans by portfolio segment their related

allowance for loan and lease losses and interest income recognized for the twelve months ended December 31 2011 and 2010

purchased credit-impaired loans are not included in the tables

dollars in thousands
Cash-Basis

Average Interest Interest

Recorded Principal Related Principal Income Income

Investment Balance Allowance Balance Recognized RecognizedAs of or for the twelve months ended December 31 2011

Impaired loans with related allowance

Home equity lines and loans

Residential mortgage

Construction

Commercial and industrial

Total

448

2654

4853

1568

9523

Grand total 19320 21598 1321 22373 550

The table above does not include the recorded investment of $680 thousand of impaired leases without related allowance for loan and lease losses

Recorded investment equals principal balance less partial charge-offs and interest payments on non-performing loans that have been applied to principal
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dollars in thousands

Impaired loans without related allowance

Commercial mortgage

Home equity lines and loans

Residential mortgage

Commercial and industrial

Consumer loans

Total

Grand total 12059 16291 679 16239 436

The table above does not include the recorded investment of$1.3 million of impaired leases without related allowance for loan and lease losses

Recorded investment equals principal balance less partial charge-offs and interest payments on non-performing loans that have been applied to principal

OTHER REAL ESTATE OWNED

Other real estate owned OREO consists of properties

acquired as result of deed in-lieu-of foreclosure and

foreclosures Properties or other assets are classified as OREO
and are reported at the lower of carrying value or fair value

less estimated costs to sell Costs relating to the development

or improvement of assets are capitalized and costs relating to

holding the property are charged to expense The Corporation

had $549 thousand in OREO assets at December 31 2011

The summary of the change in other real estate owned which

is included as component of other assets on the Corporations

Consolidated Balance Sheets is as follows

Depreciation and amortization expense related to the assets

detailed in the above table for the
years

ended December 31

2011 2010 and 2009 amounted to $2.8 million $2.3 million

and $1.9 million respectively

Future minimum cash rent commitments under various

operating leases as of December 31 2011 are as follows

dollars in thousands

2012 2161

2013 2042

2014 1814

2015 1818

2016 1723

2017 and thereafter 25421

Rent expense on leased premises and equipment for the
years

ended December 31 2011 2010 and 2009 amounted to

$2.2 million $1.6 million and $1.3 million respectively

MORTGAGE SERVICING RIGHTS MSRs
The following summarizes the Corporations activity

related to MSRs for the years ended December 31

dollars in thousands 2011 2010 2009

Balance January 4925 4059 2205
Additions 651 1819 2570

Amortization 749 923 853
Impainnent recovery 786 30 137

Balance December 31 4041 4925 4059

Fair value 4041 5815 4807

Loans serviced for others $574422 $605485 $514875

Average

Recorded Principal Related Principal

As of or for the twelve months ended December 31 2010 Investment Balance__ Allowance Balance

Impaired loans with related allowance

Commercial mortgage 1696 2285 110 2287

Home equity lines and loans 749 1099 390 1078

Residential mortgage 2480 2480 56 2480

Commercial and industrial 1514 4294 123 4318

Total 6439 10158 679 10163

Cash-Basis

Interest Interest

Income Income

Recognized Recognized

116

22

83
____________

221

158 158

273 279

4841 5170

323 500

25 26

5620 6133

160

280

5109

501

26

6076

194

11

215

December 31

dollars in thousands 2011 2010

Balance January 2527 1025

Additions 1163 3124

Capitalized cost 244

Impairment of OREO 251 381
Sales 2890 1485
Balance December 31 549 2527

PREMISES AND EQUIPMENT

summary of premises and equipment is as follows

December 31

dollars in thousands 2011 2010

Land

Buildings

Furniture and equipment

Leasehold improvements

Construction in progress

Less accumulated depreciation

Total

5369 5369

22973 21478

21129 20001

11575 10883

25 531

31743 29104

29328 29158
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The following summarizes the Corporations activity

related to changes in the impairment valuation allowance

of MSRs for the years ended December 31

dollars in thousands 2011 2010 2009

Balance January 596 566 703

Impairment 800 390 205

Recovery 14 360 342

Balance December 31 1382 596 566

Other MSR Information At December 31 2011 key

economic assumptions and the sensitivity of the current fair

value of MSRs to immediate 10 and 20 percent adverse

changes in those assumptions are as follows

dollars in thousands

Fair value amount of MSRs 4041

Weighted average life in years 4.0

Prepayment speeds constant prepayment rate 18.8%

Impact on fair value

10% adverse change 242
20% adverse change 461

Discount rate 10.25%

Impact on fair value

10% adverse change 118
20% adverse change 228

Represents the weighted average prepayment rate for the life of the MSR

asset

At December 31 2011 2010 and 2009 the fair value of the

mortgage MSRs is $4.0 million $5.8 million and

$4.8 million respectively The fair value of the MSRs for

these dates was determined using third-party valuation

model that calculates the present
value of estimated future

servicing income The model incorporates assumptions that

market participants use in estimating future net servicing

income including estimates of prepayment speeds and

discount rates Mortgage loan prepayment speed is the annual

rate at which borrowers are forecasted to repay their mortgage

loan principal and is based on historical experience The

discount rate is used to determine the present value of future

net servicing income Another key assumption in the model is

the required rate of return the market would expect for an asset

with similar risk Both assumptions can and generally will

change quarterly valuations as market conditions and interest

rates change

These assumptions and sensitivities are hypothetical and

should be used with caution As the figures indicate changes

in fair value based on 10% variation in assumptions

generally cannot be extrapolated because the relationship of

the change in assumptions to the change in fair value may not

be linear Also the effect of variation in particular

assumption on the fair value of the MSRs is calculated without

changing any other assumption In reality changes in one

factor may result in changes in another which could magnify

or counteract the sensitivities

DEPOSITS

The following table details the components of deposits

As of

December 31

2011 2010

130613 134163

233562 234107

458902 407936

125341 144410

83992 101259

23550 37201

1055960 1059076

Non-interest-bearing deposits 326409 282356

Total deposits $1382369 $1341432

Includes other wholesale deposits

The aggregate amount of deposit overdrafts included as loans

as of December 31 2011 and 2010 were $505 thousand and

$740 thousand respectively

The following tables detail the maturities of time

deposits

As of

December 31 2011

$100 Less than

or more $100

86479

26907

5752

1403 3296

1713 2894

_______ 13

83992 125341

The following tables detail the maturities of wholesale

time deposits

As of

December 31 2011

$100 Less than

or more $100

2012 17540 627

2013

2014 5383

2015

2016

2017 and thereafter

Total 22923 627

dollars in thousands

Savings

NOW accounts

Market rate accounts

Time deposits less than $100

Time deposits $100 or more

Wholesale time deposits

Total interest-bearing deposits

dollars in thousands

Maturing during

2012

2013

2014

2015

2016

2017 and thereafter

Total

68332

9999

2545

dollars in thousands

Maturing during
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10 SHORT-TERM AND OTHER BoRROwINGs

Short-term borrowings As of December 31 2011 and

2010 the Corporation had $12.9 million and $10.1 million of

short-term original maturity of one year or less borrowings

respectively which consisted solely of funds obtained from

overnight repurchase agreements with commercial customers

summary of short-term borrowings is as follows

dollars in thousands 2011 2010

Overnight fed funds

Repurchase agreements 12863 10051

Total short-term borrowings 12863 10051

The following table sets forth information concerning short-

term borrowings

dollars in thousands

Balance at year-end

Maximum amount outstanding at

any month-end

Average balance outstanding during

the year

Weighted-average interest rate

As of year-end

Paid during the year

Description

Fixed amortizing

Adjustable amortizing

Bullet maturity

Convertible-fixed

Total

Maturity range refers to December 31 2011 balances

Loans from correspondent banks other than FHLB

Included in the table above as of December 31 2011 and 2010

are $48.1 million and $73.6 million respectively of FHLB

advances whereby the FHLB has the option at predetermined

times to convert the fixed interest rate to an adjustable interest

rate indexed to the London Interbank Offered Rate

LIBOR The Corporation has the option to prepay these

advances without penalty if the FHLB elects to convert the

interest rate to an adjustable rate As of December 31 2011

substantially all the FHLB advances with this convertible

feature are subject to conversion in fiscal 2012 These

advances are included in the periods in which they mature

rather than the period in which they are subject to conversion

Other FHLB Information The Corporation had

maximum borrowing capacity MBC with the FHLB of

approximately $657.7 million as of December 31 2011 of

which the unused capacity was $514.7 million at

December 31 2011 In addition there were $64.0 million in

Average balances outstanding during the year represent daily

average balances and average interest rates represent interest

expense divided by the related average balance

FHLB Advances and Other Borrowings

As of December 31 2011 and 2010 the Corporation had

$147.8 million and $160.1 million respectively of other

borrowings consisting mainly of advances from FHLB as well

as $1.9 million commercial mortgage on its Wealth

Management Divisions offices located in Bryn Mawr PA and

an $11.8 million term loan originated to fund the

extinguishment of the Corporations Junior Subordinated

Debentures detailed in Note 12 below Both of the

aforementioned loans are from correspondent banks

The following table presents the remaining periods until

maturity of the FHLB advances and other borrowings

dollars in thousands

Within one year

Over one year through five years

Over five years through ten years

Over ten years

Total

As of

December 31
2011 2010

39276 63680

85238 72980

22253 22345

1028 1139

147795 160144

Balance at

December 31

2011 2010

overnight federal funds line and $67.5 million of Federal

Reserve Discount Window capacity In connection with its

FHLB borrowings the Corporation is required to hold the

capital stock of the FHLB The amount of capital stock held

was $11.6 million at December 31 2011 and $14.2 million at

December 31 2010 The carrying amount of the FHLB stock

approximates its redemption value On December 23 2008
the FHLB announced that it would voluntarily suspend the

payment of dividends and the repurchase of excess capital

stock until further notice There were no dividends paid on

FHLB stock in 2011 or 2010 however capital stock

redemptions resumed in 2010 Capital stock repurchases

during the twelve months ended December 31 2011 and

December 31 2010 totaled $2.6 million and $749 thousand

respectively

2011 2010

12863 10051

23326 12127

11380 5839

0.15% 0.25%

0.21% 0.28%

The following table presents rate and maturity information on FHLB advances and other borrowings

Weighted

Maturity Range
Average

Interest Rate

From To Rate From To

08/03/12 12/29/15 3.59% 3.19% 3.95%

12/31/16 01/29/29 3.25% 2.88% 5.50%

03/05/12 05/19/16 2.64% 1.19% 4.12%

12/11/12 08/20/18 2.01% 1.24% 2.62%

10535

13692

75500

48068

147795

19028

2000

65500

73616

160144
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The level of required investment in FHLB stock is based on

the balance of outstanding loans the Corporation has from the

FHLB Although FHLB stock is financial instrument that

represents an equity interest in the FHLB it does not have

readily determinable fair value FHLB stock is generally

viewed as long-term investment Accordingly when

evaluating FHLB stock for impairment its value should be

determined based on the ultimate recoverability of the par

value rather than by recognizing temporary declines in value

The Corporation regularly reviews financial statements filed

by the FHLB The most recent financial information available

as of February 22 2012 indicates an increase in the FHLBs

net income as well as its capital ratios In addition credit-

related other-than-temporary impairments have declined for

the
year

ended December 31 2011 as compared to the same

period in 2010 Management believes that these indicators as

well as the fact that the FHLB has resumed redemption of its

capital stock and has declared dividend payable in 2012

support the Corporations assessment that its investment in

FHLB capital stock is not other-than-temporarily impaired

11 SUBORDINATED DEBENTURES

The Corporation issued an aggregate of $15 million in

subordinated debentures in July and August 2008 This

subordinated debenture has floating interest rate which

resets quarterly at 90 day LIBOR plus 3.75% has maturity

of 10 years and can be prepaid at the end of years
with no

prepayment penalty At December 31 2011 the rate was

4.30% and will next reset on March 15 2012 Interest is

payable quarterly and principal is due September 15 2018

In April 2009 the Corporation raised an additional

$7.5 million in subordinated debentures These subordinated

debentures bear an interest rate at rate per annum equal to

the 90 day LIBOR rate plus 5.75% and is adjusted quarterly

Interest is payable quarterly and principal is due on June 15

2019 The rate of interest is capped at 10.0% per annum

during the first years of the term At December 31 2011

rate was 6.30% and will next reset on March 15 2012

Subordinated debentures qualify as Tier II regulatory capital

for the first five
years

from the date of issuance and thereafter

are discounted as the subordinated debentures approach

maturity with one fifth of the original amount excluded from

Tier II capital each year during the last five years before

maturity When the remaining maturity is less than one year

the subordinated debentures are excluded from Tier II capital

Unamortized subordinated debenture issuance costs were $258

thousand and $296 thousand at December 31 2011 and 2010

respectively These costs are amortized over the term of the

debt as an adjustment to the yield

12 JUNIOR SUBORDINATED DEBENTURES

Corporation On August 21 1997 the Trust had issued

$16.2 million of preferred securities the Preferred

Securities at an interest rate of 9.7% with scheduled

maturity of August 15 2027 Simultaneously the proceeds

from the issue along with $502 thousand of cash were

invested in junior subordinated debentures the Debentures

that were assumed by the Corporation On November 15 2001

and June 25 2008 FKF purchased $3.5 million and

$1.5 million respectively of the Preferred Securities

On December 19 2011 the Corporation elected to prepay in

full the Debentures Simultaneously the Trust called the

Preferred Securities Funding for the prepayment was obtained

through an adjustable-rate term loan indexed to LIBOR

13 DISCLOSURE ABOUT FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL

INSTRUMENTS

FASB ASC 825 Disclosures about Fair Value of Financial

Instruments requires disclosure of the fair value information

about financial instruments whether or not recognized in the

balance sheet for which it is practicable to estimate such

value In cases where quoted market prices are not available

fair values are based on estimates using present value or other

market value techniques Those techniques are significantly

affected by the assumptions used including the discount rate

and estimates of future cash flows In that regard the derived

fair value estimates cannot be substantiated by comparison to

independent markets and in many cases could not be realized

in immediate settlement of the instrument The aggregate fair

value amounts presented below do not represent the

underlying value of the Corporation

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate

the fair value of each class of financial instruments for which

it is practicable to estimate that value

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The carrying amounts reported in the balance sheet for cash

and cash equivalents approximate their fair values

Investment Securities Available for Sale

Estimated fair values for investment securities are generally

valued by an independent third party based on market data

utilizing pricing models that vary by asset and incorporate

available trade bid and other market information

Management reviews annually the process utilized by its

independent third-party valuation experts On quarterly

basis Management tests the validity of the prices provided by

the third party by selecting representative sample of the

portfolio and obtaining actual trade results or if actual trade

results are not available competitive broker pricing See

Note of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for

more information

Loans Held for Sale

The fair value of loans held for sale is based on pricing

obtained from secondary markets

In connection with the FKF Merger the Corporation acquired

FKF Capital Trust the Trust trust formed under

Delaware law that became an unconsolidated subsidiary of the
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Net Portfolio Loans and Leases Subordinated Debentures

For variable rate loans that reprice frequently and which have

no significant change in credit risk estimated fair values are

based on carrying values Fair values of certain mortgage

loans and consumer loans are estimated using discounted cash

flow analyses using interest rates currently being offered for

loans with similar terms to borrowers of similar credit quality

and is indicative of an entry price The estimated fair value of

nonperforming loans is based on discounted estimated cash

flows as determined by the internal loan review of the Bank or

the appraised market value of the underlying collateral as

determined by independent third party appraisers This

technique does not reflect an exit price as contemplated in

Note of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Mortgage Servicing Rights

The fair value of the MSRs for these periods was determined

using third-party valuation model that calculates the present

value of estimated future servicing income The model

incorporates assumptions that market participants use in

estimating future net servicing income including estimates of

prepayment speeds and discount rates

Other Assets

The carrying amount of accrued interest receivable income

taxes receivable and other investments approximates fair

value

Deposits

The estimated fair values disclosed for noninterest-bearing

demand deposits savings NOW accounts and Market Rate

accounts are by definition equal to the amounts payable on

demand at the reporting date i.e their carrying amounts
Fair values for certificates of deposit are estimated using

discounted cash flow calculation that applies interest rates

currently being offered on certificates to schedule of

expected monthly maturities on the certificate of deposit

FASB Codification 825 defines the fair value of demand

deposits as the amount payable on demand as of the reporting

date and prohibits adjusting estimated fair value from any

value derived from retaining those deposits for an expected

future period of time

Short-term borrowings

The carrying amount of short-term borrowings which include

overnight repurchase agreements approximate their fair value

FHLB Advances and Other Borrowings

The fair value of FHLB advances and other borrowings which

include $1.9 million commercial mortgage loan and an

$11.8 million term loan is established using discounted cash

flow calculation that applies interest rates currently being

offered on mid-term and long term borrowings

The fair value of subordinated debentures is established using

discounted cash flow calculation that applies interest rates

currently being offered on comparable borrowings

Junior Subordinated Debentures

The carrying amounts reported in the balance sheet for junior

subordinated debentures approximate their fair values and are

based in part on the call price of the instruments

Other Liabilities

The carrying amounts of accrued interest payable and other

accrued payables approximate fair value

Off-Balance Sheet Instruments

Estimated fair values of the Corporations commitments to

extend credit standby letters of credit and financial guarantees

are not included in the table below as their carrying values

generally approximate their fair values These instruments

generate fees that approximate those currently charged to

originate similarcommitments

The carrying amount and estimated fair value of the

Corporations financial instruments are as follows

dollars in thousands

As of December 31

2011 2010

Carrying Estimated Carrying Estimated

Amount Fair Value Amount Fair Value

69140 89484 89484

272317 317052 317052

1667 4838 4874

1311058 1186442 1204056

4041 4925 5815

23261 25853 25853

$1681485 $1628594 $1647134

$1382865 $1341432 $1342294

12863 10051 10051

151767 160144 163693

21511 22500 22732

12029 12029

23467 24174 24174

$1592473 $1570330 $1574973

Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents ... 69140

Investment securities AFS 272317

Loans held for sale 1588

Net portfolio loans and

leases 1282639

Mortgage servicing rights 4041

Other assets 23261

Total financial assets $1652986

Financial liabilities

Deposits $1382369

Short-term borrowings 12863

FHLB advances and other

borrowings 147795
Subordinated debentures 22500
Jr subordinated debentures

Other liabilities 23467

Total financial liabilities $1588994

14 FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT

FASB ASC 820 Fair Value Measurement establishes fair

value hierarchy based on the nature of data inputs for fair

value determinations under which the Corporation is required

to value each asset using assumptions that market participants

would utilize to value that asset When the Corporation uses

its own assumptions it is required to disclose additional

information about the assumptions used and the effect of the

measurement on earnings or the net change in assets for the

period
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104.6

8.4

97.8

32.6

12.7

11.9

2.4

8.4

97.8

32.6

12.7

11.9

2.4

1.91.9

Level Level Level

4.0

18.7

0.5 0.5
_______

The value of the Corporations available for sale investment Fair value of assets measured on recurring basis for the year

securities which include obligations of the U.S government ended December 31 2011

and its agencies mortgage-backed securities issued by U.S
dollars in nillions Total Level Level Level

government- and U.S government sponsored agencies Investments

obligations of state and political subdivisions corporate
Obligations of U.S

bonds other debt securities as well as bond mutual funds are
government agencies 104.6

Obligations of state political

determined by an independent third party The Corporation subdivisions

performs tests to assess the validity of these third-party values Mortgage-backed securities

The third partys evaluations are based on market data They
Collateralized mortgage

utilize evaluated pricing models that vary by asset and
obligations

Corporate bonds

incorporate available trade bid and other market information
Bond mutual funds

For securities that do not trade on daily basis their pricing Investment certificate of deposit

models apply available information such as benchmarking and Other debt securities

matrix pricing The market inputs normally sought in the
Total assets measured on

recurring basis at fair value 272.3 11.9 260.4

evaluation of securities include benchmark yields reported

trades broker/dealer quotes only obtained from market Fair value of assets measured on non-recurring basis at

makers or broker/dealers recognized as market participants December 31 201

issuer spreads two-sided markets benchmark securities bid

offers and reference data For certain securities additional
0a5 milluns

Total

Mortgage servicing rights
4.0

inputs may be used or some market inputs may not be Impaired loans and leases 18.7

applicable Inputs are prioritized differently on any given day OREO and other repossessed

based on market conditions
property

Total assets measured at fair value

U.S Government agencies are evaluated and priced using
on non-recurring basis 23.2 23.2

multi-dimensional relational models and option adjusted
Fair value of assets measured on recurring basis for the year

spreads State and municipal securities are evaluated on
ended December 31 2010

series of matrices including reported trades and material event

notices Mortgage-backed securities are evaluated using
dollars mlhons Total Level Level Level

Investments

matrix correlation to treasury or floating index benchmarks
Obligations of U.S

prepayment speeds monthly payment information and other
government agencies 156.6

benchmarks Other available-for-sale investments are U.S Treasury obligations 5.1

evaluated using broker-quote based application including
State political subdivisions 32.3

quotes from issuers
Mortgage backed securities 73.5

Collateralized mortgage

The value of the investment portfolio is determined using
obligations 2.1

Corporate bonds 10.6

three broad levels of inputs Other equity investments 0.3

Bond mutual funds 34.7

Level Quoted prices in active markets for identical
Other debt securities 1.8

securities Total assets measured on

recurring basis at fair value 317.0 40.1 276.9

Level Quoted prices for similar instruments in active

markets quoted prices for identical or similar instruments in Fair value of assets measured on non-recurring basis at

markets that are not active and model derived valuations December 31 2010

whose inputs are observable or whose significant value drivers

are observable
dollars in millions Toial Level Level Level

Mortgage servicing rights
0.7 0.7

Level Instruments whose significant value drivers are
Impaired loans and leases 12.7 12.7

OREO and other repossessed

unobservable property

Total assets measured at

These levels are not necessarily an indication of the risks or
fair value on non-recurring

liquidity associated with these investments The following basis 15.9 15.9

tables summarize the assets at December 31 201 and 2010

that are recognized on the Corporations balance sheet using
As of December 31 2011 and 2010 the Corporation did not

fair value measurement determined based on the differing
have any assets whose fair value was determined using level

levels of input
inputs hence no roll-forward of the level assets is presented

here In addition no transfer of assets between levels has

occurred during the twelve months ended December 31 201

or 2010

156.6

5.1

32.3

73.5

0.3

34.7

2.1

10.6

1.8

2.5 2.5
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15 401KPLAN

The Corporation has qualified defined contribution plan for

all eligible employees under which the Corporation

contributes $1.00 for each $1.00 that an employee contributes

up to maximum of 3.0% of the employees base salary The

Corporations expenses
for the 40 1K Plan were

$618 thousand $570 thousand and $503 thousand in 2011
2010 and 2009 respectively

Effective April 2008 an amendment was made to the

401K Plan to provide for new class of immediately vested

discretionary non-matching employer contribution The

Corporations expense for the non-matching discretionary

contribution was $652 thousand $769 thousand and $589

thousand for the twelve month periods ending December 31

2011 2010 and 2009 respectively

16 PENSION AND POSTRETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS

General Overview The Corporation has three defined

benefit pension plans the qualified defined benefit plan

QDBP which covers all employees over age 20 1/2 who

meet certain service requirements and two non-qualified

defined benefit pension plans SERP which are restricted to

certain officers of the Corporation

On February 12 2008 the Corporation amended the QDBP to

cease further accruals of benefits effective March 31 2008

and amended the 401K Plan to provide non-matching

employer contributions mentioned previously

The original SERP was restricted and frozen to certain officers

of the Corporation and provided each participant the

equivalent pension benefit on any compensation which

exceeded the IRS limits and bonus deferrals made by eligible

individuals

Additionally effective April 2008 the Corporation added

new SERP which includes certain officers of the Corporation

This new SERP provides that each participant shall receive

pension benefit equal to what the QDBP would have provided

at retirement reduced by the actuarially equivalent value of

the immediately vested discretionary non-matching employer

contribution to the 401K Plan made on his or her behalf and

their respective QDBP benefit

The Corporation also has postretirement benefit plan

PRBP that covers certain retired employees and group of

current employees The PRBP was closed to new participants

in 1994 In 2007 the Corporation amended the PRBP to allow

for settlement of obligations to certain current and retired

employees Certain retired participant obligations were settled

in 2007 and current employee obligations were settled in

2008
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The following table provides information with respect to our QDBP SERP and PRBP including benefit obligations and funded

status net periodic pension costs plan assets cash flows amortization information and other accounting items

Actuarial Assumptions used to determine benefit obligations for the years ended December 31

Includes SERP land SERP II which are combined for disclosure purposes

QDBP Net Periodic Pension Cost

dollars in thousands

Service cost

Interest cost

Expected return on plan assets

Amortization of prior service cost

Amortization of net actuarial loss

Curtailment

Net periodic pension cost

SERP Net Periodic Pension Cost

dollars in thousands

Service cost

Interest cost

Amortization of prior service cost

Amortization of net actuarial loss

Net periodic pension cost

2009

194

215

120

26

555

PRBP Net Periodic Pension Cost

dollars in thousands ______________________________

Service cost

Interest cost

Settlement

Amortization of transition

obligation

Amortization of prior service cost

Amortization of net actuarial loss
________ ________

Net periodic pension cost

ODBP SERP PRBP

2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010

4.20% 5.30% 4.20% 5.30% 4.20% 5.30%

N/A N/A 3.50% 3.50% N/A N/A

7.50% 7.50% N/A N/A N/A N/A

QDBP SERP PRBP

2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010

Discount rate

Rate of increase for future compensation

Expected long-term rate of return on plan assets

Changes in Benefit Obligations and Plan Assets

dollars in thousands

Change in benefit obligations

Benefit obligation at January

Service cost

Interest cost

Plan participants contribution

Actuarial gain loss

Benefits paid

Benefit obligation at December 31

Change in plan assets

Fair value of plan assets at January

Actual return loss on plan assets

Employer contribution

Plan participants contribution

Benefits paid

Fair value of plan assets at December31

Funded status at year end

plan assets less benefit obligations

Amounts included in the consolidated balance sheet as

other assets liabilities and accumulated other

comprehensive income including the following

Prepaid benefit cost/accrued liability

Net actuarial loss

Prior service cost

Unrecognized net initial obligation

Net amount recognized

32574

1708

5458

1684
38056

30395

416
10000

1684
38295

30540

1722

1852

1540
32574

28745

3190

1540
30395

4326

230

248

1204

146
5862

146

146

4339

185

224

278
144

4326

144

144

998

48

21

163
913

142

21

163

930

58

13

164

167
998

154

13

167

239 2179 5862 4326 913 998

17131

16892

239

7524 3162 2698 265

9703 1763 608 622

937 1020
26

2179 5862 4326 913

The following tables provide the components of net

periodic pension costs for the years ended December 31

312

689
55

52
998

2011 2010 2009

2011 2010 2009

1708 1722 1738

2214 2099 1905

899 768 945

393 391 778

48 58 59

26 26 26

55 138 138
77 86 77

96$ 32$ 24

2011 2010

230

248

82

49

609

185

224

87

26

522
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Percentage of

QDBP Plan

Assets at

December31

2011 2010

45% 63%
29% 37%

26%

100% 100%

Includes Bryn Mawr Bank Corporation common stock in the amount of

$614 thousand or 1.6% and $550 thousand or 1.8% at December 31 2011

and 2010 respectively

Cash reserves and other categories are out ofpolicy range due to

$10 million cash contribution made at the end of 2011 that had not been

fully invested as of December 31 2011

The expected rate of return on plan assets in the QDBP was

selected by the Corporation after consultation with its actuary

and is based in part on long term historical rates of return and

various actuarial assumptions The discount rate was also

selected by the Corporation after consultation with its actuary

and is based in part upon the current yield of portfolio of

long term investment grade securities

The investment strategy of the QDBP is to maintain the

investment
ranges

listed above The target ranges are to be

periodically reviewed based on the prevailing market

conditions Any modification to the current investment

strategy must be ratified by the Executive Committee of the

Corporations Board of Directors The QDBP is allowed to

retain approximately 2.5% of Bryn Mawr Bank Corporation

common stock

The Corporations overall investment strategy is to achieve

mix of approximately 60% investments for long-term growth

and 40% for production of current income The target

allocations for the plan are 60% equity securities comprised of

number of mutual funds managed with differing objectives

and styles The plan also holds shares of the Corporations

common stock Fixed income obligations include corporate

obligations U.S Treasury and Agency securities along with

fixed income mutual funds

The following table summarizes the assets of the Pension Plan

at December 31 2011 determined by using three broad levels

of inputs See Note 14 for description of levels

The fair value of the pension assets measured on recurring

basis as of December 31 2011

dollars in thousands Total Level Level Level

Cash and cash equivalents 10047 10047

Obligations of U.S Treasury 517 517

Obligations of U.S Government

and agencies 722 722

Common stocks 614 614

Equity mutual funds 16653 16653

9742 9742

38295 37056 1239

The fair value of the pension assets measured on recurring

basis as of December 31 2010

dollars in thousands

Cash

Obligations of U.S Treasury

Obligations of U.S Government

and agencies

Corporate bonds

Common stocks

Equity.- mutual funds

Bond mutual funds

Money market mutual funds

Total assets measured on

recurring basis at fair value

Cash Flows

Total Level Level Level

11$ 11$

530 530

1743 1743

352 352

550 550

The following benefit payments which reflect expected future

services are expected to be paid over the next ten years

dollars in thousands QDBP
Fiscal year ending

2012 1752

2013 1813

2014 1820

2015 1947

2016 1970

2017-2021 10280

Other Pension and Post Retirement Benefit

Information

In 2005 the Corporation placed cap on the future aimual

benefit payable through the PRBP This cap is equal to 120%

of the 2005 annual benefit

Expected Contribution to be Paid in the Next Fiscal

Year

Based on the status of the Corporations QDBP at

December 31 2011 no minimum funding requirement is

anticipated for 2012 The 2012 expected contribution for the

SERP is $146 thousand

Plan Assets

Asset Category

Equity securities

Debt securities

Cash reserves

Total

Asset

Allocation

Range

50% 65%

30%-45%

1%-5% 19103 19103

7919 7919

187 187

30395 27770 2625

SERP PRBP

146

146

150

214

216

1055

141

128

116

105

94

326

Bond mutual funds

Total assets measured on

recurring basis at fair value
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17 INCOME TAXES

Components of Net Deferred Tax Asset

December 31

dollars in thousands 2011 2010

Deferred tax assets

Loan and lease loss reserve

Other reserves

Net operating loss carry-forward

Alternative minimum tax credits

Amortizing fair value adjustments

FKF Merger

Defined benefit plans _______ _______

Total deferred tax asset
_________ ________

Deferred tax liabilities

Other reserves

QDBP

Originated MSRs
Unrealized appreciation on

investment securities
_________ ________

Total deferred tax liability ________ ________

Total net deferred tax asset

Not included in the table above are deferred tax assets related

to state tax net operating losses related to our leasing

subsidiary of approximately $175 thousand as of

December 31 2011 for which we have recorded full

valuation allowance Also as of December 31 2011 the

Corporation has $530 thousand capital loss carry-forward

for which it has recorded 100% valuation allowance due to

the Corporations limited access to instruments that would

produce an offsetting capital gain

The provision for income taxes consists of the following

dollars in thousands 2011 2010 2009

Currently payable 6231

Deferred 3370

Total 9601

Applicable income taxes differed from the amount

derived by applying the statutory federal tax rate to

income as follows

dollars in thousands 2011 2010 2009

Computed tax

expense at

statutory

federal rate 10260 35.0% 4790 35.0% 5543 35.0%

Tax-exempt

income 395 0.8% 444 3.2% 300 l.9%

Other net 264 j% 166 1.2% 257 1.6%

Total income

tax expense 9601 32.8% 4512 33.0% 5500 34.7%

Other Income Tax Information

In accordance with the provisions of ASC 740 Accounting

for Uncertainty in Income Taxes the Corporation recognizes

the financial statement benefit of tax position only after

determining that the Corporation would more likely than not

sustain the position following an examination For tax

positions meeting the more-likely-than-not threshold the

amount recognized in the financial statements is the largest

benefit that has greater than 50 percent likelihood of being

realized upon settlement with the relevant tax authority The

Corporation applied these criteria to tax positions for which

the statute of limitations remained open

There were no reserves for uncertain tax positions recorded

during the twelve months ended December 31 2011 2010 or

2009

The Corporation is subject to income taxes in the U.S federal

jurisdiction and in multiple state jurisdictions The

Corporation is no longer subject to U.S federal income tax

examination by tax authorities for the years before 2008

The Corporations policy is to record interest and penalties on

uncertain tax positions as income tax expense No interest or

penalties were accrued in 2011

As of December 31 2011 the Corporation has net operating

loss carry-forwards for federal income tax purposes of

$7.3 million which are available to offset future federal

taxable income through 2030 In addition the Corporation has

alternative minimum tax credits of $568 thousand which are

available to reduce future federal regular income taxes over an

indefinite period

As result of the July 2010 Merger with FKF the

Corporation succeeded to certain tax bad debt reserves that

existed at FKF as of June 30 2010 As of December 31 2011

the Corporation had unrecognized deferred income taxes of

$2.5 million with respect to these reserves These reserves

could be recognized as taxable income and create current

and/or deferred tax liability at the income tax rates then in

effect if one of the following conditions occurs the

Corporations retained earnings represented by this reserve are

used for distributions in liquidation or for any other
purpose

other than to absorb losses from bad debts the Corporation

fails to qualify as bank as provided by the Internal Revenue

Code or there is change in federal tax law

18 STOCKBASED COMPENSATION

General Information

The Corporation permits the issuance of stock options

dividend equivalents performance awards stock appreciation

rights restricted stock and/or restricted stock units to

employees and directors of the Corporation under several

plans The terms and conditions of awards under the plans are

determined by the Corporations Compensation Committee

Prior to April 25 2007 all shares authorized for grant as

stock-based compensation were limited to grants of stock

options On April 25 2007 the Shareholders approved the

Corporations 2007 Long-Term Incentive Plan the 2007

5817

977

2568

568

3848

8284

22062

26
5996
1414

5194

2467

2707

568

3539

5259

19734

258
2634
1724

964 567

8400 5183

13662 14551

4790

278

4512

5443

57

5500

Tax

Rate

Tax

Rate

Tax

Rate
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LTIP under which total of 428996 shares of the

Corporations common stock were made available for award

grants On April 28 2010 the Shareholders approved the

Corporations 2010 Long Term Incentive Plan 2010
LTIP under which total of 445002 shares of the

Corporations common stock were made available for award

grants

The equity awards granted under the 2007 and 2010 LTIPs

were authorized to be in the form of among others options to

purchase the Corporations common stock restricted stock

awards RSAs and performance stock awards PSAs
The fair value of the RSAs is based on the closing price on the

day preceding the date of the grant

The PSAs vest based on the Corporations total shareholder

return relative to the performance of the community bank

index for the respective period The amount of PSAs earned

will not exceed 100% of the PSAs awarded The fair value of

the PSAs is calculated using the Monte Carlo Simulation

method

In connection with the FKF Merger 21133 fully vested

options which had been granted to former FKF employees

were assumed by the Corporation

The following table summarizes the remaining shares

authorized to be granted for options RSAs and PSAs

Shares Authorized for

Options

Options RSAs or

Only PSAs

Balance December 31 2008 10189 180482

Options granted five year vesting 10189 158993

Options forfeited 17500

Balance December 31 2009 38989

Shares authorized 2010 LTIP 445002

Options authorized FKF Merger 21133

Options granted fully vested 21133
RSAs granted four year cliff-vesting 1920
PSAs granted three year cliff-vesting 60767
PSAs forfeited 500

Unexercised options expired 14080

Balance December 31 2010 425884

RSAs granted four year cliff-vesting 60238
PSAs granted four year cliff-vesting 17085
PSAs granted three year cliff-vesting 9000
Unexercised options expired 19330

Fair Value of Options Granted

The fair value of each option granted is estimated on the date

of the grant using the Black-Scholes option pricing model with

the following weighted-average assumptions used for grants

issued during

Expected dividend yield

Expected volatility of

Corporations stock

Risk-free interest rate

Expected life in years

Weighted average fair

value of options granted

The expected dividend yield is based on the companys annual

dividend amount as percentage of the average stock price at

the time of the grant Expected life is equal to the mid-point of

the
average

time to vest and the contractual term Expected

volatility of the Corporations stock is based on the historic

volatility of the Corporations stock price The risk-free

interest rate is based on the zero-coupon U.S Treasury interest

rate ranging from one month to ten years and period

commensurate with the expected life of the option

2011 2010 2009

3.24% 3.1%

45.7% 29.4%

1.5% 3.2%

6.0 7.0

$5.42 $4.42

Unexercised options cancelled 19464

Balance December 31 2011 378355
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Other Stock Option Information The following table provides information about options outstanding

The following table provides information related to options as of December 31 2011

The following table provides information about unvested options

For the Twelve Months Ended December 31

Options outstanding beginning of period 993710 19.82 4.44

Granted

Forfeited 16320 20.94 4.79

Expired 32330 21.87 5.04

Exercised 68590 14.08 2.79

Options outstanding end of period 876470 20.17 4.49

2011 2010 2009

Weighted Weighted Weighted Weighted Weighted Weighted

Average Average Average Average Average Average

Exercise Grant Date Exercise Grant Date Exercise Grant Date

Shares Price Fair Value Shares Price Fair Value Shares Price Fair Value

1012896 19.75 4.41

21133 13.35 5.42

14080 21.53 4.87

26239 10.97 3.14

993710 19.82 4.45

Range of Exercise

Prices

901814 19.70 $4.31

169182 18.27 4.42

17500 19.50 4.25

40600 12.68 2.45

1012896 19.75 $4.41

Ontions Outstanding

Options

Outstanding

Remaining

Contractual

Life

Options Exercisable

Number
Exercisable

At 12/31/10

$10.36 -$10.75

$15.16 -$17.00

$17.01 -$18.91

118.92-120.00

$20.01 -$21.00

$21.01 -$22.00

$22.01 $24.27

Remaining

Contractual

Life

5330

26000

398982

7219

85000

229925

124014

876470

Weighted Average

Exercise Price

6.89 yrs

0.29
yrs

4.22
yrs

1.75
yrs

2.31 yrs

4.60 yrs

6.17 yrs

4.29 yrs

5330 6.89
yrs

$10.36

26000 0.29
yrs

$16.25

307223 3.30 yrs
$18.50

7219 1.75 yrs
$19.47

85000 2.31 yrs $20.47

208375 4.51
yrs

$21.55

78808 6.07
yrs

$24.11

717955 3.74yrs $20.10

For the Twelve Months Ended December 31

2011 2010 2009

Weighted Weighted Weighted

Average Average Average

Grant Date Grant Date Grant Date

Shares Fair Value Shares Fair Value Shares Fair Value

2011 2010 2009

Unvested options beginning of period 249574 $4.76 350076 $4.78 237172 $5.15

Granted 21133 $5.42 169182 $4.42

Vested 74739 $4.82 107405 $4.96 56278 $5.22

Forfeited 16320 $4.79 14230 $4.87

Unvested options end of period 158515 $4.73 249574 $4.76 350076 $4.78

Proceeds related tax benefits realized from options exercised and intrinsic value of options exercised were as follows

For the Twelve Months Fnded December 31

dollars in thousands

Proceeds from strike price of value of options exercised 966

Related tax benefit recognized
141

______________ ______________

Proceeds of options exercised $1107

Intrinsic value of options exercised 444

The following table provides information about options outstanding and exercisable options

As of December 31 ______________________________

Number 876470 717955 993710 744136 1013396

Weighted average exercise price $20.17 $20.10 $19.82 $19.52 $19.75

Aggregate intrinsic value $549495 $437549 $260320 $260320 $167536

Weighted average contractual term 4.3 yrs 3.7 yrs 5.0 yrs 4.0 yrs 6.1 yrs

The unamortized stock based compensation expense on stock options at December 31 2011 was $467 thousand which will be

recognized over the next 25 months

$288

60

$348

$514

66

$580

$690$460

2011 2010 2009

Options Exercisable Options Exercisable Options Exercisable

Outstanding Options Outstanding Options Outstanding Options

663320

$19.15

$167536

4.6 yrs
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Restricted Stock Awards and Performance Stock

Awards

The Corporation has granted restricted stock awards and

Performance Stock Awards under the 2007 LTIP and 2010

LTIP Plans

The compensation expense for the RSAs is measured based on

the market price of the stock on the day prior to the grant date

and is recognized on straight line basis over the vesting

period accelerated for retirement eligibility Stock restrictions

are subject to alternate vesting for death and disability and

retirement

During 2011 the Corporation recognized $131 thousand of

expense related to the Corporations RSAs As of

December 31 2011 there was $526 thousand of unrecognized

compensation cost related to RSAs This cost will be

recognized over weighted average period of 3.3 years

The following table details the RSAs for the twelve month

periods ended December 31 2011 2010 and 2009

Beginning

balance

Granted

Vested

Forfeited

Ending

balance

Twelve Months Twelve Months Twelve Months

Ended Ended Ended

December 31 2011 December 31 2010 December 31 2009

Weighted Weighted Weighted

Average Average Average

Number Grant Number Grant Number Grant

of Date Fair of Date Fair of Date Fair

Shares Value Shares Value Shares Value

11920 16.78

26085 18.50 11920 16.78

2980 16.78

35025 18.06 11920 16.78

The compensation expense for PSAs is measured based on the

grant date fair value as calculated using the Monte Carlo

Simulation The Simulation used various assumptions that

include expected volatility of 52.42% risk free rate of return

of 0.32% and correlation co-efficient of 0.6531%

The Corporation recognized $382 thousand of
expense

related

to the PSAs in 2011 As of December 31 2011 there was $689

thousand of unrecognized compensation cost related to PSAs

This cost will be recognized over weighted average period of

2.2 years

The following table details the PSAs for the twelve month

periods ending December 31 2011 2010 and 2009

Twelve Months Twelve Months Twelve Months

Ended Ended Ended

December 31 2011 December 31 2010 December 31 2009

Weighted Weighted Weighted

Average Average Average

Number Grant Number Grant Number Grant

of Date Fair of Date Fair of Date Fair

Shares Value Shares Value Shares Value

19 EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of basic earnings per share and diluted

earnings per share is presented below

dollars in thousands

except per share data

Year Ended December 31
2011 2010 2009

Numerator Net income available

to common shareholders 19713 9174 10337

Denominator for basic earnings

per share Weighted average

shares outstanding 12746346 10765657 8732004

Effect of dilutive
potential common

shares 82313 12312 16719

Denominator for diluted earnings

per share Adjusted weighted

average shares outstanding 12828659 10777969 8748723

Basic earnings per share 1.55 0.85 1.18

Dilutedeamingspershare 1.54 0.85 1.18

Antidulitive shares excluded from

computation of average dilutive

earnings per share 941005 941079 806396

20 OTHER OPERATING INCOME

Components of other operating income for the indicated
years

ended December 31 include

dollars in thousands 2011

Merchant interchange fees

Commissions and fees

Safe deposit box rentals

Insurance commissions

Other investment income

Title insurance income

Rent income

Miscellaneous other income

Other operating income

559 360 248

468 396 372

407 365 334

403 386 394

244 195 133

119 207 355

116 167 222

1181 525 700

3497 2601 2758

All weighted average shares actual shares and per share

information in the financial statements have been adjusted

retroactively for the effect of stock dividends and splits See

Note 1-P Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Earnings Per Common Share for discussion on the

calculation of earnings per
share

2010 2009

Beginning

balance

Granted

Vested

Forfeited

Ending

balance

60267 9.64

60238 10.07

3144 9.64

60767 9.64

500 9.64

117361 9.86 60267 9.64
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21 OTHER OPERATING EXPENSE

Components of other operating expense for the indicated years

ended December 31 include

dollars in thousands 2011 2010 2009

Infonnation technology 1518 1376 846

Loan processing 1114 1040 1049

Other taxes 973 728 650

Temporary help and recruiting 712 570 379

Telephone 514 455 371

Travel and entertainment 507 410 360

Stationary and supplies 496 400 323

Postage 415 370 351

Director fees 359 331 311

Portfolio maintenance 313 242 200

Dues and subscriptions 287 244 218

Contributions 279 259 252

Insurance 277 253 248

Miscellaneous other expense 1628 1094 581

Other operating expense 9392 7772 6139

22 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In the ordinary course of business the Bank granted loans to

principal officers directors and their affiliates Loan activity

during 2011 and 2010 was as follows

Following is summary of these transactions

dollars in thousands 2011 2010

Balance January 6117 4472

Additions 2232

Amounts collected 113 587

Balance December31 6004 6117

Related party deposits amounted to $961 thousand and

$917 thousand at December 31 2011 and 2010 respectively

23 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS WITH OFF-BALANCE SHEET

RISK CONTINGENCIES AND CONCENTRATION OF

CREDIT RISK

Off-Balance Sheet Risk

The Corporation is party to financial instruments with

off-balance sheet risk in the normal course of business to

meet the financing needs of its customers These financial

instruments include commitments to extend credit and standby

letters of credit Those instruments involve to varying

degrees elements of credit risk in excess of the amount

recognized in the consolidated statements of financial

condition The contractual amounts of those instruments

reflect the extent of involvement the Corporation has in

particular classes of financial instruments

The Corporations exposure to credit loss in the event of

nonperformance by the counterparty to the financial

instrument of commitments to extend credit and standby

letters of credit is represented by the contractual amount of

those instruments The Corporation uses the same credit

policies in making commitments and conditional obligations

as it does for on-balance sheet financial instruments

Commitments to extend credit which include unused lines of

credit and unfunded commitments to originate loans are

agreements to lend to customer as long as there is no

violation of any condition established in the agreement

Commitments generally have fixed expiration dates or other

termination clauses and may require payment of fee Some

of the commitments are expected to expire without being

drawn upon and the total commitment amounts do not

necessarily represent future cash requirements Total

commitments to extend credit at December 31 2011 were

$353.0 million The Corporation evaluates each customers

creditworthiness on case-by-case basis The amount of

collateral obtained if deemed necessary by the Corporation

upon extension of credit is based on credit evaluation of the

counterparty Collateral varies but may include accounts

receivable marketable securities inventory property plant

and equipment residential real estate and income-producing

commercial properties

Standby letters of credit are conditional commitments issued

by the Bank to customer for third party Such standby

letters of credits are issued to support private borrowing

arrangements The credit risk involved in issuing standby

letters of credit is similar to that involved in extending loan

facilities to customers The collateral varies but may include

accounts receivable marketable securities inventory

property plant and equipment and residential real estate for

those commitments for which collateral is deemed necessary

The Corporations obligation under standby letters of credit as

of December 31 2011 amounted to $20.5 million There were

no outstanding bankers acceptances as of December 31 2011

Contingencies

Legal Matters

In the ordinary course of business the Corporation is subject

to litigation claims and assessments that involve claims for

monetary relief Some of these are covered by insurance

Based upon information presently available to the Corporation

and its counsel it is the Corporations opinion that any legal

and financial responsibility arising from such claims will not

have material adverse effect on its results of operations

financial condition or capital

Indemnfications

In general the Corporation does not sell loans with recourse

except to the extent that it arises from standard loan-sale

contract provisions These provisions cover violations of

representations and warranties and under certain

circumstances first payment default by borrowers These

indemnifications may include the repurchase
of loans by the

Corporation and are considered customary provisions in the

secondary market for conforming mortgage loan sales For the

twelve months ended December 31 2011 2010 and 2009 the

Corporation recorded an immaterial amount of loan

repurchases resulting from these provisions

Concentrations of Credit Risk

The Corporation has material portion of its loans in real

estate related loans predominant percentage of the
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Corporations real estate exposure both commercial and

residential is in the Corporations primary trade area which

includes portions of Delaware Chester Montgomery and

Philadelphia counties in Southeastern Pennsylvania The

Corporation is aware of this concentration and attempts to

mitigate this risk to the extent possible in many ways
including the underwriting and assessment of borrowers

capacity to repay See Note Loans and Leases for

additional information

As of December 31 2011 the Corporation had no loans sold

with recourse outstanding

24 DIvIDEND RESTRICTIONS

The Bank is subject to the Pennsylvania Banking Code of

1965 the Code as amended and is restricted in the amount

of dividends that can be paid to its sole shareholder the

Corporation The Code restricts the payment of dividends by

the Bank to the amount of its net income during the current

calendar year and the retained net income of the prior two

calendar years unless the dividend has been approved by the

Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System The total

retained net income for the
years

ended December 31 2010

and 2011 was $14.8 million Accordingly the dividend

payable by the Bank to the Corporation is limited to

$14.8 million plus net income earned in 2012 However the

amount of dividends paid by the Bank may not reduce capital

levels below levels that would cause the Bank to be

considered less than adequately capitalized as detailed in Note

25 Regulatory Capital Requirements

25 REGULATORY CAPITAL REQUIREMENTS

General Regulatory Capital Information

Both the Corporation and the Bank are subject to various

regulatory capital requirements administered by the federal

banking agencies Failure to meet minimum capital

requirements can initiate certain mandatory and possibly

additional discretionary actions by regulators that if taken

could have direct material effect on the Corporations and

the Banks financial statements Under capital adequacy

guidelines and the regulatory framework for prompt corrective

action the Corporation and the Bank must meet specific

capital guidelines that involve quantitative measures of their

assets liabilities and certain off-balance-sheet items as

calculated under regulatory accounting practices The capital

amounts and classifications are also subject to qualitative

judgments by the regulators about components risk

weightings and other factors Prompt corrective action

provisions are not applicable to bank holding companies

S-3 Shelf Registration Statement and Offerings

Thereunder

In June 2009 the Corporation filed shelf registration

statement the Shelf Registration Statement which allows

the Corporation to raise additional capital through offers and

sales of registered securities consisting of common stock

warrants to purchase common stock stock purchase contracts

or units consisting of any combination of the foregoing

securities Using the prospectus in the Shelf Registration

Statement together with applicable prospectus supplements

the Corporation may sell from time to time in one or more

offerings any amount of such securities in dollar amount up
to $90000000 in the aggregate

In addition to the shares issued through the Plan above on

May 18 2010 through registered direct stock offering the

Corporation issued 1548167 common shares at price of

$17.00 per share raising $24.6 million after deducting

placement agents fees and other offering expenses of

$1.7 million

On July 20 2009 the Corporation filed with the Securities and

Exchange Commission prospectus supplement in order to

register 850000 common shares of its stock under the Shelf

Registration Statement in connection with Dividend

Reinvestment and Stock Purchase Plan the Plan The Plan

allows for the grant of request for waiver RFW above the

Plan maximum investment of $120 thousand
per account per

year An RFW is granted based on variety of factors

including the Corporations current and projected capital

needs prevailing market prices of the Corporations common
stock and general economic and market conditions

The Plan is intended to allow both existing shareholders and

new investors to easily and conveniently increase their

investment in the Corporation without incurring many of the

fees and commissions normally associated with brokerage

transactions For the twelve months ended December 31 2011

and 2010 the Corporation issued 448377 and 119175 shares

respectively and raised $8.3 million and $2.0 million

respectively through the Plan

Private Transactions in Securities

In April 2009 the Bank raised $7.5 million in subordinated

debt which qualified as Tier II capital This subordinated debt

bears interest at rate per annum equal to the ninety day

LIBOR rate plus 5.75% and is adjusted quarterly Interest is

payable quarterly and principal is due on June 15 2019 The

rate of interest is capped at 10.0% per annum during the first

five
years of the term

In April 2009 in accordance with and reliance on the

exemption provided by Section 42 of the Securities Act of

1933 as amended the Securities Act the Corporation also

sold 150061 shares of its common stock par value $1.00 per

share Shares in private placement of securities to

purchaser which qualifies as an accredited investor under Rule

50 1a of Regulation under the Securities Act The purchase

price per
Share was equal to the

average closing price of

shares of the Corporations common stock on NASDAQ for

the thirty trading days ending on April 16 2009 which

equaled $16.66 per Share The aggregate purchase price for

the Shares sold was $2.5 million The Corporation did not pay

any underwriting discounts or commissions and did not pay

any brokerage fees in coimection with the sale of the Shares

The Shares sold constituted at the time 1.7% of the

outstanding shares of the Corporations common stock as

determined immediately after the closing of the sale
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26 SELECTED QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA UNAUDITEDShares Issued in Mergers and Acquisitions

In connection with the Acquisition of PWMG the Corporation

issued 322101 common shares valued at $6.7 million to

former shareholders of PWMG These shares were registered

on an S-3 registration statement filed by the Corporation in

September 201

In connection with the Merger with FKF the Corporation

issued 1630053 common shares valued at $26.5 million to

former shareholders of FKF These shares were registered on

an S-4 registration statement filed by the Corporation in

January 2010

Regulatory Capital Ratios

As set forth in the following table quantitative measures have

been established to ensure capital adequacy ratios required of

both the Corporation and the Bank Both the Corporations

and the Banks Tier II capital ratios are calculated by adding

back portion of the loan loss reserve to the Tier capital The

Corporation believes that as of December 31 2011 and 2010
the Corporation and the Bank had met all capital adequacy

requirements to which they were subject Federal banking

regulators have defined specific capital categories and

categories range from best of well capitalized to worst of

critically under capitalized Both the Corporation and the

Bank were classified as well capitalized as of December 31

2011 and 2010

See Note 16 Pension and Postretirement Benefit Plans for

certain information relating to accumulated other

comprehensive income

dollars in thousands

December 31 2011

Total Tier II Capital to

Risk Weighted Assets

Corporation

Bank

Tier Capital to Risk

Weighted Assets

Corporation

Bank

Tier Capital to Quarterly

Average Assets

Corporation

Bank

December 31 2010

Total Tier II Capital to

Risk Weighted Assets

Corporation

Bank

Tier Capital to Risk

Weighted Assets

Corporation

Bank

Tier Capital to Quarterly

Average Assets

Corporation

Bank

dollars in thousands except per
share data

Interest income

Interest expense

Net interest income

Provision for loan and lease losses

Other income

Other expense

Income before income taxes

Tax expense

Net income

Basic eamings per common share

Diluted earnings per common share

Dividend declared

dollars in thousands except per share data

Quarters Ended 2011

3/31 6/30 9/30 12/31

18226 18851 18672 18690

2819 3052 3018 2772

15407 15799 15654 15918

1285 1919 1828 1056

7210 8165 9276 9499

14197 14869 15985 16475

7135 7176 7117 7886

2419 2371 2095 2716

4716 4805 5022 5170

0.38 0.38 0.39 0.40

0.38 0.38 0.39 0.40

0.15 0.15 0.15 0.15

Quarters Ended 2010

3/31 6/30 9/30 12/31

The Corporations and the Banks actual capital amounts and

ratios as of December 31 2011 and 2010 are presented in the

following table

Interest income 13894 13824 18473 18605

Interest expense 2777 2773 3691 3405

Net interest income 11117 11051 14782 15200

Provision for loan and lease losses 3113 994 4236 1511

Other income 7159 5890 7053 9273

Other expense 11753 12103 19372 14764

Income loss before income taxes 3410 3844 1766 8198

Tax expense benefit 1187 1438 746 2633

Net income loss 2223 2406 l020$ 5565

Basic eamings per common share 0.25 0.25 0.08 0.46

Diluted eamings per common share 0.25 0.25 0.08 0.46

Dividend declared 0.14 0.14 0.14 0.14

Earnings per share is computed independently for each pertod shown As

result the sum of the quarters may not equal the total earnings per share for

the year

Actual

Amount Ratio

189447 13.83%

196090 14.37%

154171 11.26%

160814 11.78%

154171 8.97%

160814 9.37%

186657 13.71%

182587 13.47%

153806 11.30%

149742 11.05%

153806 8.85%

149742 8.62%

Minimum

to be Well

Capitalized

Amouot Ratio

136948 10%

136481 10%

82169 6%
81899 6%

85955 5%
85854 5%

136142 10%

135556 10%

81685 6%

81334 6%

86926 5%

86828 5%
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27 PARENT COMPANY-ONLY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Condensed Statements of Cash Flows

The condensed financial statements of the Corporation parent

company only are presented below These statements should

be read in conjunction with the Notes to the Consolidated

Financial Statements

Condensed Balance Sheets

dollars in thousands 2011 2010

Assets

Cash 4402 4208

Investment securities 256

Investments in subsidiaries

at equity in net assets 192954

Premises and equipment net 2779

Goodwill 245

Other assets 2084 __________

Total assets 202464
_________

Liabilities and shareholders equity

Borrowings 13691

Jr subordinated debentures

Accrued interest payable

Accrued taxes payable

Other liabilities 2860 __________

Total liabilities 16551 __________

Common stock par
value $1

authorized 100000000 shares issued

16103981 shares and 15109718 shares

asofDecember3l2011 and2OlO

respectively and outstanding

13194439 shares and 12195240 shares

asofDecember3l2011 and2OlO

respectively 16104

Paid-in capital in excess of par value 84425

Less common stock in treasury at cost

2909542 shares and 2914478 shares as of

December 31 2011 and 2010 respectively

Accumulated other comprehensive loss net of deferred

income taxes benefit 11365

Retained eamings 126582 _________

Total shareholders equity 185913 _________

Total liabilities and shareholders
equity 202464

__________

Condensed Statements of Income

dollars in thousands

Twelve Months Ended December 31

2011 2010 2009

9650Dividends from subsidiaries

Interest and other income 2644

Total operating income 12294

Expenses 2636

Income before equity in undistributed

income of subsidiaries 9658

Equity in undistributed income of

subsidiaries 10058

Income before income taxes 19716

Income tax expense benefit

Net income 19713

dollars in thousands
__________________________________

Operating activities

Net Income

Adjustments to reconcile net income to

net cash provided by operating activities

Equity in undistributed income

of subsidiaries

Depreciation and amortization

Net gain on sale of available for sale

securities 38 50
Stock-based compensation cost 876 539 386

Net accretion of fair value adjustments 55 78
Other net 110 31 159
Net cash provided by operating activities 10653 5350 1591

Investing Activities

Proceeds from sale of available for sale

securities 282 450

Acquisitions net of cash acquired 13367 4565
Sale of subsidiary 18411

Investment in subsidiaries 17200 21761 660

Net cash used by investing activities 11874 25876 660

Financing activities

Dividends paid 7679 5916 4892
Change in other borrowings 11690 62 2062

Decrease in junior subordinated debt 12028
Repurchase of treasury stock 42
Proceeds from issuance of common stock 8325 26688 3660

Tax benefit on exercise of stock option 141 60 66

Proceeds from exercise of stock options 966 288 514

Net cash provided by financing activities 1415 21058 1368

Change in cash and cash equivalents 194 532 3619

Cash and cash equivalents at

beginning of year 4208 3676 57

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year .. 4402 4208 3676

28 SEGMENT INFORMATION

FASB Codification 280 Segment Reporting identifies

operating segments as components of an enterprise which are

evaluated regularly by the Corporations Chief Operating

Decision Maker our Chief Executive Officer in deciding how

to allocate resources and assess performance The Corporation

has applied the aggregation criterion set forth in this

codification to the results of its operations

The Corporations Banking segment consists of commercial

and retail banking The Banking segment is evaluated as

single strategic unit which generates revenues from variety

of products and services The Banking segment generates
4758 1298

interest income from its lending including leases and

_______
investing activities and is dependent on the gathering of lower

cost deposits from its branch network or borrowed funds from

other sources for funding its loans resulting in the generation

of net interest income The Banking segment also derives

revenues from other sources including gains on the sale in

available for sale investment securities gains on the sale of

residential mortgage loans service charges on deposit

accounts cash sweep fees overdraft fees BOLl income and

Twelve Months Ended December 31
2011 2010 2009

19713 9174 10337

10058 4368 9071
105 102 98

169296

2877

457

1910

179004

2001

12029

1239

41

2276

17586

15110

68398

29833 29881

6757
114548

161418

179004

4900

1569

6469

1711

1204

1012

2216

918

4368

9126

48
9174

9071

10369

32

10337
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interchange revenue associated with its Visa Check Card

offering

The Wealth Management segment has responsibility for

number of activities within the Corporation including trust

administration other related fiduciary services custody

investment management and advisory services employee

benefits and IRA administration estate settlement tax services

and brokerage Bryn Mawr Trust of Delaware and Lau

Associates are included in the Wealth Management Segment

of the Corporation since they have similar economic

Segment information for the years ended or as of December 31

characteristics products and services to those of the Wealth

Management division of the Corporation

The accounting policies of the Corporation are applied by

segment in the following tables The segments are presented

on pre-tax basis which is the way the Corporation evaluates

business results

The following table details the Corporations segments

Intersegment revenues consist of rental payments insurance commissions and management fees

29 SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On February 2012 the Corporation entered into definitive

stock purchase agreement the Agreement to acquire

Davidson Trust Company DTC from Boston Private

Financial Holdings Inc and members of DTCs management

group for total purchase price of up to $10.5 million of

which $7.35 million is to be paid at closing in cash and up to

$3.15 million is to be paid in cash installments on the 6- 12-

and 18-month anniversaries of the date of closing subject to

certain post-closing contingencies relating to DTCs assets

under management

The acquisition of DTC is expected to close in the second

quarter of 2012 subject to certain conditions and regulatory

approvals

For more information related to the Agreement refer to the

Corporations filing with the SEC on Form 8-K dated

February 2012

2011 2010 2009

Wealth Wealth Wealth

Banking Management Consolidated Banking Management Consolidated Banking Management Consolidated
dollars in thousands

Net interest income

Less loan loss provision

Net interest income afler loan loss provision

Other income

Fees for wealth management services

Service charges on deposit accounts

Loan servicing and other fees

Net gain on sale of loans

Nnt gain on sale of available for sate securities

Net gain on sate of trading securities

Net gain loss on sale of other real estate owned

BOLl income

Other operating income

Total other income

Other
expenses

Salaries wages

Employee benefits

Occupancy equipment

Amortization of intangible assets

Professional fees

Other opernting expenses

Total other expenses

Segment profit

Intersegment revenues expenses

Pre-tax segment profit after eliminations

of segment pre-tax profit after eliminations

Segment assets dollars is millions

Assets under management administration supervision

and brokerage dollars in millions

62771

6088

56683

2495

1824

2517

1783

97
462

3481

12465

200t6

4837

7658

324

2156

t2064

47055

22093

337
21756

74.2%

1740.4

40781

6884

33897

1951

1387

6012

1923

255

2703

14237

12

12

14178

55

14233

21669

16

21685

8068

2052

1027

1166

t55

2003

14471

7221

337

7558

25.8%

34.5

4831.6

62778

6088

56690

21669

2495

1824

2517

1783

97
462

3497

34.150

28084

6889

8685

1490

2311

t4067

61526

29314

29314

100%

0774.9

40793

6884

33909

14178

1951

1387

6012

1923

255

2758

28470

52141 52150

9854 9854

42287 42296

15499 15499

2307 2307

1626 1626

4718 4718

2472 2472

114 114
266 266

2626 25 2601

13901 15474 29375

17804 7025 24829

4424 1560 5984

6283 752 7035

176 308 484

1975 165 2140

16286 1227 17513

46948 11037 57985

9241 4445 13686

96 96

$9145 4541 13686

66.8% 33.2% 100%

$1716.9 14.9 1731.8

3412.9

15578 6697 22275

4124 1454 5578

5196 848 6044

308 308

1791 217 2008

9307 1022 10329

35996 10546 46542

12138 3699 15837

187 187

$11951 3886 15837

75.5% 24.5% 100.0

$1225.9 12.9 1238.8

287t.2
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Price Range of Shares

BRYN MAWR BANK CORPORATION
NASDAQ BMTC

2011 2010

High-Low Quotations High-Low Quotations

High Low Dividend High Low Dividend

Bid Bid Declared Bid Bid Declared

Quarter

1st $21.45 $16.85 $0.15 $18.94 $14.00 $0.14

2nd $21.24 $19.11 $0.15 $19.74 $15.00 $0.14

3rd $21.06 $16.02 $0.15 $18.64 $16.00 $0.14

4th $19.76 $15.19 $0.15 $17.80 $15.13 $0.14

The approximate number of registered holders of record of common stock as of December 31 2011 was 584

The shares are traded on the NASDAQ Global Market System under the symbol BMTC The price information was

obtained from NASDQ IDC
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Performance Graph

Comparison of Cumulative Total Return of One or More Companies Peer Groups

Industry Indexes and/or Broad Market

Bryn Mawr Bank Corporation

125

100

75

50

25

12/31/06

Source SNL Financial LC Charlottesville VA

2012

www.snl.com

Total Return Performance

12/31/07 12131/08 12/31/09 12/31110 12/31/11

67



BRYN MAWR BANK CORPORATION

801 LANCASTER AVENUE

BRYN MAWR PENNSYLVANIA 1901



BRYN MAWR BANK CORPORATION
801 Lancaster Avenue

Bryn Mawr PA 19010-3396

NOTICE OF ANNUAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS
BE HELD ON WEDNESDAY MAY 2012

Notice is hereby given that the Annual Meeting of Sharcholdeis ol Bryn Mawr Bank Corporation the

Corporation will he held at St Davids Golf Club 845 Radnor Street Road Wayne PA 19087 on Wednesday

May 012 at 1100 for the followmg purposes

lo elect one Class 11 director to serve four-year term

to
approve iionbinding advisoiy vote on executive officer compensation

Io ratify the appointment of KPMG LIP as the independent legistered public accounting firm for

the fIsral year ended December 31 2012 and

Such other business as may properly come befoi the meeting or any adjournment thereof

In thi ir thscretion the proxies are authorized to act upon such other intteis as may properly come before

the meeting See the accompanying Proxy Statement for details about these proposals Only shareholders of

rexord at the close of business on March 15 2012 are entitled to notice of and to vote at the Annual Meeting

and any adjoum ument ot postponement of the meeting Shaieholders may vote in person or by proxy

Our proxy statement and form of proxy are included with this Notice

By Order of the Board of Directors of

Bryn Mawr Bank Corporation

Geoffrey Halberstadt

Corporate Secretary

Bryn Mawi PA

March 302012

IMPOR NOTICE

To assure your representation at the Annual Meeting please complete date sign and promptly mail the

enclosed proxy card in the return envelope or submit your proxy hy telephone or over the Internet by

following the instructions found on the proxy card so that your shares may be voted in accordance with

your wishes and so that enough shares are represented to allow us to conduct the business of the Annual

Meetlng If you mail your proxy card no postage is necessary if mailed in the United States Submitting

your proxy by mail telephone or over the Internet does not affect your right to vote in person if you attend

the Annual Meeting or to revoke your proxy at any time prior to its use for any purpose Any shareholder

who is present at the meeting may withdraw its proxy prior to its use for any purpose and vote in person
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PROXY STATEMENT

BRYN MAWR BANK CORPORATION
801 Lancaster Avenue

Bryn Mawr PA 19010

INFORMATION REGARDING THE ANNUAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS

Matters to be Considered at the Annual Meeting of Shareholders

This Proxy Statement is being furnished to shareholders of Bryn Mawr Bank Corporation we
us our or the Corporation in connection with the solicitation of proxies by the Board of

Directors of the Corporation for use at the Corporations Annual Meeting of Shareholders to be held on

Wednesday May 2012 at 1100 A.M at St Davids Golf Club 845 Radnor Street Road Wayne PA

19087 or any adjournment or postponement of the meeting the Annual Meeting At the Annual

Meeting the shareholders will consider and vote upon the election of one Class II director to serve

four-year term non-binding advisory vote on executive officer compensation the ratification of the

appointment of KPMG LLP as the independent registered public accounting firm for the fiscal year

ended December 31 2012 and such other business as may properly come before the meeting or any

adjournment thereof

The proxies are authorized to transact such other business as may properly come before the

Annual Meeting This proxy statement and the proxy are being mailed to shareholders on or about

March 30 2012

Important Notice Regarding the Availability of Proxy Materials for the

Annual Meeting of Shareholders to be Held on May 2012

This proxy statement and the Corporations annual report to security holders are available at

www.bmtc.com by clicking on About Us followed by Investor Relations and then the SEC

Filings tab

Record Date Voting and Voting Procedures

Our Board has fixed the close of business on March 15 2012 as the date for determining holders

of record of our common stock entitled to notice of and to vote at the Annual Meeting Each

shareholder is entitled to one vote per share on the matters to be considered at the Annual Meeting

quorum is the minimum number of shares required to be present at the Annual Meeting for the

meeting to be properly held under our bylaws The holders of majority of the outstanding shares of

our common stock present
either in person or by proxy will constitute quorum for the transaction of

business at the Annual Meeting As of March 15 2012 there were 13241663 shares of our common

stock outstanding The shares for which shareholders abstain on one or more matters will be counted as

present at the meeting for purposes of determining quorum if the shareholder is physically present or

if the shareholder has executed valid proxy for the shares Broker non-votes will be counted as

present at the meeting for purposes of determining quorum so long as the shares are voted by the

broker on at least one matter



Shares represented by properly executed proxies will be voted in accordance with the directions

indicated in the proxies unless those proxies have previously been revoked If properly executed

proxy does not give any voting directions then that proxy will be voted in favor of the adoption of the

proposals recommended by the Board and in the discretion of the proxy agents on any other matters

which may properly come before the Annual Meeting

For purposes of the Annual Meeting if quorum is present the Corporations articles provide

that each director shall be elected by majority of the votes cast in person or by proxy for that position

Cumulative voting is not permitted Withheld votes and broker non-votes will not count in

determining the number of votes required to elect director and they will not count in favor of or

against directors election

For the other items of business to be presented at the Annual Meeting if quorum is present the

Corporations bylaws require the affirmative vote of majority of the shares having voting powers and

present in person or represented by proxy to approve the proposals Abstentions and broker non-votes

are not deemed to constitute votes cast and therefore do not count either for or against approval of

given proposal

shareholder may revoke proxy at any time prior to its use for any purpose by giving written

notice of revocation to our Corporate Secretary Geoffrey Halberstadt at our principal executive

offices at 801 Lancaster Avenue Bryn Mawr PA 19010-3396 shareholder may also appear in

person at the Annual Meeting and ask to withdraw the proxy prior to its use for any purpose and can

vote in person later dated proxy revokes an earlier dated proxy

We do not know at this time of any business other than that stated in this Proxy Statement which

will be presented for consideration at the Annual Meeting If any unanticipated business is properly

brought before the Annual Meeting the proxies are authorized to vote in their discretion as to all other

matters that may come before the Annual Meeting

Other Matters

We will bear the entire cost of soliciting proxies for the Annual Meeting In addition to the use of

the mails proxies may be solicited by personal interview telephone telefax and e-mail by our

directors officers and employees and those of our wholly-owned subsidiary The Bryn Mawr Trust

Company the Bank Arrangements have been made with brokerage houses and other custodians

nominees and fiduciaries for forwarding proxy materials to beneficial owners of our common stock

held of record by such persons and we will reimburse them for their expenses in doing so



PROPOSAL 1ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

One of the purposes of the Annual Meeting is the election of one director to our Board The

following director has been nominated by our Board for election as director to serve as follows

Class IlTerm to Expire in 2016

Andrea Gilbert

The persons named as proxies in the accompanying form of proxy have advised us that unless

otherwise instructed they intend at the Annual Meeting to vote the shares covered by proxies for the

election of the nominee named in this Proxy Statement The proxies cannot be voted for greater

number of persons than the number of nominees named above If the nominee should at the time of the

Annual Meeting be unavailable or unable to serve as director the shares represented by the proxies

shall be voted for such substitute as the Board may recommend The Board knows of no reason why

the nominee will be unavailable or unable to serve as director We expect the nominee to be willing

and able to serve as director

For the director position to be elected majority of the votes cast in person or by proxy for such

position is required to elect nominee Proxies solicited by the Board will be voted for the nominee

listed above unless the shareholders specify contrary choice in their proxies

THE BOARD RECOMMENDS VOTE FOR THE NOMINEE LISTED ABOVE



INFORMATION ABOUT OUR DIRECTORS

Our Directors

The following table sets forth certain information for each of our directors Except as indicated

below each of the persons named below has been employed in their present principal occupation for

the past five years

Name Principal Occupation and Director

Business Experience For Past Five Years Age Since

NOMINEE FOR CONTINUING DIRECTOR CLASS II

If elected the term of the following director expires in 2016

Andrea Gilbert 58 2004

President Bryn Mawr Hospital

As President of Bryn Mawr Hospital Ms Gilbert has responsibility for the day to day

operations strategic planning fundraising recruitment of leadership personnel and physicians

and hospital clinical outcomes of $300 million based on revenues and expenses

organization which employs 2000 people With 27
years

of experience in health care

management Ms Gilbert brings to the Board an extensive background and experience level in

governance risk management compensation and benefits marketing organizational

management and financial planning

CONTINUING DIRECTORS CLASS

The terms of the following directors will expire in 20/5

Donald Guthrie 77 2010

Mr Guthrie joined the Corporations Board of Directors in connection with the acquisition by

merger of First Keystone Financial Inc First Keystone Mr Guthrie was the Chairman of

the Board of First Keystone from 2005 until the closing of the First Keystone transaction in

July of 2010 Mr Guthrie is currently retired

Mr Guthrie brings to the Board both valuable contacts within the Media and Delaware County

communities and also significant insight and relationships with the Banks former First

Keystone Bank customers and prospects

Scott Jenkins 57 2006

President Jenkins Co financial and management consulting firm Director and

Chairman of the Board of The Philadelphia Contributionship since 2002 Director of The

Reinvestment Fund since 2000 and Director of Encorium Group Inc from 2001 to 2008

Mr Jenkins has over 20 years
of experience as President of his own financial management and

consulting firm which provides services to publicly and privately held corporations family

groups
and high net worth individuals Mr Jenkins extensive accounting and finance

experience coupled with his investment advisory experience are valuable resources for our

Board and Wealth Management Division



Name Principal Occupation and Director

Business Experience For Past Five Years Age Since

Jerry Johnson 63 2011

Mr Johnson has been Principal Partner at the accounting firm of Heffler Radetich Saitta

LLP since October 2010 and member of the Executive Committee since January 2011 From

2008 to August 2010 Mr Johnson was the Vice Chairman responsible for mergers and

acquisitions activities and growth initiatives for PRWT Services Inc business services

company Prior to that he was the Chairman of Radnor Trust from 2002 to 2006 and

Chairman of RTC Holding from 2006 to 2009 Mr Johnson was the President of eMoney

Advisor Inc from 2002 to 2005

Mr Johnson also has over 20 years of experience in the telecommunications industry and

venture capital management experience From 1998 to 2006 Mr Johnson served on the board

of OAO Technologies Solution from 1996 to 2001 Mr Johnson served on the board of

Dynegy Inc and from 2003 to 2005 Mr Johnson served on the board of Educational

Management Corp Mr Johnson also has current and past experience on number of boards of

private and non-profit organizations including bank and trust companies

Mr Johnson brings to the Board significant public company corporate and business related

experience His background in the financial services and telecommunications industries as

well as his activities and business contacts provide valuable insight and networks within the

local and regional business communities

CONTINUING DIRECTORS CLASS III

The terms of the following directors expire in 2013

Wendell Holland 60 1997

Partner Saul Ewing LLP from September 2008 to the present Chairman Pennsylvania Public

Utility Commission until 2008 and previously Commissioner from September 2003 and

Director of Aqua America Inc since August 2011

Mr Holland has 32
years

of experience as business and energy lawyer and is currently

partner at Saul Ewing LLP He has previously served as both the Chairman during two

separate terms for total of four years and the Commissioner for four years of the

Pennsylvania Public Utility Commission Mr Holland has been on our Board since 1997 and

provides unique perspective on legal and regulatory matters as well as issues in the public

arena at the local state and regional levels

Frederick Peters II 62 2001

Chairman of the Corporation and the Bank since August 2002 President and Chief Executive

Officer of the Corporation and the Bank since January 2001 Director of Bryn Mawr Film

Institute Director of Pennsylvania Association of Community Bankers and Director and

Deputy Chairman of the Audit Committee of the Federal Reserve Bank of Philadelphia

Mr Peters has over 36 years of experience in the banking industry His day to day leadership

as Chief Executive Officer of Bryn Mawr Bank Corporation and The Bryn Mawr Trust

Company provides him with intimate knowledge of our operations



Name Principal Occupation and Director

Business Experience For Past Five Years Age Since

David Lees 51 2005

Senior Partner myClO Wealth Partners LLC since July 2005 Partner and National Director of

Ernst Youngs Wealth Advisory Service Practice from December 1996 to June 2005

Partner Renaissance Equity Fund since August 2005 Adjunct Professor of Finance

Portfolio Management in Villanova Universitys Commerce Finance Department from

January 2000 to May 2005

Mr Lees has significant experience in the financial services and wealth management arena as

Senior Partner of myClO Wealth Partners and former partner and National Director of

Ernst Youngs Wealth Advisory Service Practice Mr Lees experience as nationally

recognized wealth and investment advisor provides valuable insight for the wealth

management and financial sectors for our Board and our Wealth Management Division

CONTINUING DIRECTORS CLASS IV

The terms of the following directors expire in 2014

Francis Leto 52 2002

Executive Vice President and head of the Banks Wealth Management Division since

January 2009 General Counsel of the Bank since April 2011 member of the Board of

Managers of Lau Associates LLC subsidiary of the Corporation since September 2009 and

member of the Board of Managers of its former parent holding company JNJ Holdings LLC
from September 2009 until it was merged out of existence on December 31 2009 General

Counsel Lifestyle Development LP October 2007 to January 2009 Of Counsel Brett

Senior Associates April 2006 to January 2009 President Brandywine Abstract Company

L.P from May 1988 to January 2009

Mr Letos background as lawyer and his many years of experience in real estate matters title

insurance and business development provide unique perspective to the Board both as

director and member of the Banks executive management team Mr Letos experience has

also allowed him to develop many relationships in the greater Philadelphia area which foster

good relations between the Bank and the community in general

Britton Murdoch 54 2006

Lead Director of the Boards of Directors of the Corporation and the Bank Chief Executive

Officer BMW of the Main Line since July 2006 Managing Director of Strattech Partners

LLC business consulting and venture capital firm since January 2000 member of the Board

of Trustees since 2008 and head of Audit Committee for Thomas Jefferson University

principal of Bala Properties North South West LLC dealership real estate holding

companies since July 2008 and Director of Susquehanna Patriot Bank from 1997 to 2006

Mr Murdochs years of experience as chief financial officer of Airgas Inc New York Stock

Exchange publicly traded company from 1990 to 1996 provides the Board with the

perspective of someone with direct responsibility for financial and accounting issues

Mr Murdoch has been Trustee of Thomas Jefferson University since 2008 and is chairman of

their Audit Committee Mr Murdoch also served for eight years as bank commercial lender

and vice president at the former Corestates Bank He also manages his own companies is the

founder and managing director of business consulting and venture capital firm and is the

Chief Executive Officer and principal of an automotive dealership group Mr Murdoch has

extensive experience in the field of mergers
and acquisitions and his finance experience and

leadership skills make him valuable resource to our Board



SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT

The following table lists the beneficial ownership of shares of our common stock as of March 15

2012 except as otherwise indicated for each of our directors director nominees certain executive

officers and the persons known to us who may be beneficial owners of more than 5% of our common
stock The table also shows the total number of shares owned by the directors director nominees and

executive officers as group

Common Exercisable Percent of

Name Stock Stock Options Outstanding Stock12

Current Directors and Nominees8

Thomas Bennett3 7995
Andrea Gilbert 8491 15940

Donald Guthrie 77219
Wendell Holland 6789 9690
Scott Jenkins 16689 9315
Jerry Johnson 1617
David Lees 25743 12815
Britton Murdoch 13362 9583

Loyall Taylor Jr.4 68711s 19690
Named Executive Officers6

Frederick Peters II 44468 136400 1.4%

Duncan Smith 82698 44200
Alison Gers 7546 63200
Joseph Keefer 7572 63200
Francis Leto 9555 23558
All Directors and Executive Officers

as Group 15 persons 305623 439011 5.62%

5% Owners

Radnor Blind TrustH
John McGill Trustee

9419 Meadowbrooke Ave

Philadelphia PA 19118 183184212 13.83%

BlackRock Inc

40 East 52nd Street

New York NY 10022 67981212 5.13%

Ameriprise Financial Inc as parent of

Columbia Management Investment Advisers LLC
145 Ameriprise Financial Center

Minneapolis MN 55474 92906412 7.02%

Less than one percent



Certain of our directors have elected to defer their fees and stock awards through our Deferred Payment Plans for

Directors Among other options under these pians director may elect to earn yield on the deferred compensation

based on changes in the price of our common stock including dividends Making this election creates phantom stock

Additionally Mr Peters holds his shares of phantom stock under our Deferred Bonus Plan for Executives Deferred fees

which would otherwise be paid in the form of shares of our common stock are automatically converted to phantom stock

units under the plans for at least one year share of phantom stock is economically equivalent to one share of common

stock but the directors do not have the present right to receive an actual share of stock or to vote the phantom stock unit

At such time as director is entitled to receive distribution of his account balance under the plan he can elect to receive

distribution either in cash or shares of stock as he directs The below chart shows the number of shares of phantom

stock outstanding for our directors as of March 15 2012 Taking the number of shares of phantom stock held by directors

and executive officers into account together with the total security ownership of such persons as represented in the

beneficial ownership table above the applicable directors and executive officers hold the economic equivalent of 6.23%

of the Corporations stock including exercisable stock options

Name Phantom Stock Held

Fredrick Peters II
202

Scott Jenkins 13189

David Lees 6126

Loyall Taylor Jr 60356

For additional information see the section entitled DIRECTOR COMPENSATIONDirectors Deferred Payment

Plans at page 18 and NONQUALIFIED DEFERRED COMPENSATIONDeferred Bonus Plan for Executives at

page 41
Stock ownership information includes shares that the individual has the right to acquire within sixty days of March 15

2012 Each executive officer holds sole investment power over shares held for such executive officer in our 401k Plan

Unless otherwise indicated each person has sole voting and investment power over the shares listed There are no

pledged shares

Mr Bennetts term as director ended in April 2011

Mr Taylors term as director will expire as of May 2012

Includes 4173 shares held in trust for his children over which Mr Taylor has sole voting and investment power and

2087 shares held in trust over which Mr Taylor as co-trustee has joint voting and investment power

The address for our directors and named executive officers is do Bryn Mawr Bank Corporation 801 Lancaster Avenue

Bryn Mawr PA 19010-3396

Includes 3366 shares held for Mr Peters in the 401k Plan determined as of March 15 2012

Includes 2364 shares held for Mr Smith in the 401k Plan determined as of March 15 2012

Includes 6546 shares held for Ms Gers in the 401k Plan determined as of March 15 2012

10 All shares are held for Mr Keefer in the 401k Plan determined as of March 15 2012

11 The Radnor Blind Trust John McGill Trustee has the sole voting and dispositive power over the shares for which

Mr George Connell Sr is the sole beneficial owner

12 As of December 31 2011



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Introduction

All of our directors also serve as directors of certain of our subsidiaries including the Bank and

serve on the same committees of each organization Five of our directors also serve on the Banks

Wealth Management Committee

Code of Business Conduct and Ethics

We have Code of Business Conduct and Ethics Code of Ethics The Code of Ethics is

available on our website at www.bmtc.com on the Investor RelationsGovernance Documents page

under the Code of Business Conduct and Ethics heading Printed copies are available to any

shareholder upon request The Code of Ethics meets the requirements for code of ethics for our

principal executive officer principal financial officer or persons performing similar functions under

Item 406 of Regulation S-K promulgated under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as amended

Exchange Act

Under our Code of Ethics the Board is responsible for resolving any conflict of interest involving

the directors executive officers and senior financial officers The President and the Corporate

Secretary are responsible for resolving any conflict of interest involving any other officer or employee

Director Independence

The Board has determined that all of its members during 2011 were independent and met the

independence requirements of the Nasdaq Stock Market except for Frederick Peters II Francis

Leto and Donald Guthrie In determining the independence of its directors other than Mr Peters

Mr Leto and Mr Guthrie during 2011 the Board of Directors considered routine banking transactions

between the Bank or its affiliates and each of the directors their family members and businesses with

whom they are associated such as loans deposit accounts wealth management and fiduciary accounts

routine purchases of insurance or securities brokerage products any overdrafts that may have occurred

on deposit accounts any contributions the Corporation made to non-profit organizations with whom

any of the directors are associated and any transactions described below in the section of this Proxy

Statement under the heading transactions with Related Persons In each case the Board of Directors

determined that none of the transactions relationships or arrangements impaired the independence of

the director

Board Leadership Structure

At the present time the Board believes that the Corporations Chief Executive Officer is best

situated to serve as Chairman because he is the director most familiar with the Corporations business

and the financial services industry and most capable of effectively identifying strategic priorities and

leading the discussion and execution of strategy Independent directors and management have different

perspectives and roles in
strategy development The Corporations independent directors bring

experience oversight and expertise from outside the Corporation and industry while the Chief

Executive Officer brings Corporation-specific experience and expertise The Board believes that the

combined role of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer promotes strategy development and its

execution and facilitates information flow between management and the Board which are essential to

effective governance



One of the key responsibilities
of the Board is to develop strategic direction and hold management

accountable for the execution of strategy once it is developed The Board believes the combined role of

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer together with an independent Lead Director having the duties

described below is in the best interest of shareholders because it provides the appropriate balance

between management and strategy development on the one hand and independent oversight on the

other

Britton Murdoch an independent director who serves as Chairman of the Executive

Committee was selected by the Board to serve as the Lead Director in 2011 As Lead Director

Mr Murdoch presides over all Board meetings when the Chairman is not present and presides over

meetings of the non-management directors held in executive session The Lead Director has the

responsibility of meeting and consulting with the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer on Board and

committee meeting agendas acting as liaison between management and the non-management

directors including maintaining frequent contact with the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer and

advising him on the efficiency of the Board meetings facilitating teamwork and communication

between the non-management directors and management

Communications with Directors

Our Board of Directors provides process for shareholders to send communications to the Board

Shareholders may communicate directly with any member or committee of our Board by mailing the

written communications first class mail postage prepaid to Bryn Mawr Bank Corporation Board of

Directors P.O Box 351 Bryn Mawr PA 19010-3396 member of the audit department routinely

checks and distributes mail sent to this post office box directly to the intended recipients

Policy for Attendance at Annual Meeting

We have adopted policy requiring all of our directors to attend our annual meeting All of our

directors attended our 2011 annual meeting

Executive Sessions of Independent Directors

The independent members of our Board have in the past held and will continue their practice in

2012 of holding scheduled executive sessions on regular basis but in any event not less than twice

year Executive sessions were held at the conclusion of each meeting of the Board of Directors in 2011

Risk Oversight

The Board believes that establishing the right tone at the top and full and open communication

between management and the Board of Directors are essential for effective risk management and

oversight Our Chairman and Chief Executive Officer meets regularly with other executive officers to

discuss strategy and risks facing the Corporation Executive management attends the quarterly Board

meetings and is available to address any questions or concerns raised by the Board on risk

management-related and other matters Each quarter the Board of Directors receives presentations

from executive management on strategic matters key challenges and risks and opportunities for the

Corporation

The Board has an active role as whole and also at the committee level in overseeing

management of the Corporations risks The Audit Committee assists the Board in fulfilling its

oversight responsibilities with respect to areas of financial reporting internal controls and compliance
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with accounting regulatory requirements and in accordance with Nasdaq Stock Market requirements

discusses policies with respect to risk assessment and risk management Reports addressing these

responsibilities are regularly provided by management to the Audit Committee The Compensation

Committee assists the Board in fulfilling its oversight responsibilities with respect to our compensation

policies and incentive programs The Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee assists the

Board in fulfilling its oversight responsibilities with respect to the management of risks associated with

Board organization and membership succession planning for our directors and corporate governance

The Risk Management Committee assists the Board in fulfilling its oversight responsibilities with

respect to the management of risks related to the Banks loan portfolio and its credit quality asset and

liability management the Banks investment portfolio and various consumer regulatory matters The

Wealth Management Committee assists the Board in fulfilling its risk oversight responsibilities with

respect to the management of the risk associated with the Wealth Divisions fiduciary investment

custodial and brokerage activities

Additionally the Board of Directors leadership structure with combined Chairman and Chief

Executive Officer and an independent Lead Director provides substantial opportunities for the

independent directors to interact with the management of the Corporation and Bank at various Board

and committee meetings The Board believes this interaction offers independent directors added insight

to the risks of the Bank and the Corporation and aids the Board in its risk management function

Nominations for Directors

The Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee considers candidates for director

nominations from various sources including other directors our clients and other relevant

constituencies and may also engage if it deems appropriate professional search firm For incumbent

directors whose terms of office are set to expire it reviews the directors overall service to the

Corporation during their terms including the number of meetings attended level of participation

quality of performance and their respective contributions towards advancing our interests and

enhancing shareholder value For new director candidate the committee reviews the candidates

biographical information and qualifications and may check the candidates references if applicable

The committee may obtain any additional information which it deems necessary qualified nominee

will be interviewed by all members of the committee if practicable Serious candidates may meet with

all members of the Board Using the input from the interviews and information obtained the

committee evaluates whether prospective candidate is qualified to serve as director and whether it

should recommend to the Board that the Board nominate or select to fill vacancy the prospective

candidate

The Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee will use similar process to evaluate

nominees recommended by shareholders provided that the shareholder complies with the procedures

set forth below The committee will consider written proposals from shareholders for nominees for

director Any nomination should be addressed to the Chairman Nominating and Corporate Governance

Committee Board of Directors Bryn Mawr Bank Corporation P.O Box 351 Bryn Mawr PA 19010

and must include the following information the name and address as they appear on our books of

the shareholder nominating candidate the number of our shares which are beneficially owned by

the shareholder and if the shares are held in street name the name of the brokerage firm holding the

shares the name age business address and residence address of each proposed nominee the

principal occupation or employment of the proposed nominee the number of shares of our stock

beneficially owned by the proposed nominee if any description of all arrangements or
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understandings between the shareholder and each proposed nominee and any other persons pursuant to

which the shareholder is making the nomination and any other information required to be disclosed

in solicitation of proxies for election of directors or other information required pursuant to Regulation

14A under the Exchange Act relating to any person that the shareholder proposes to nominate for

election or re-election as director including the proposed nominees written consent to being named

in the proxy statement as nominee and to serving as director if elected

All shareholder nominations must be received not less than 120 days before the date our proxy

statement was released to shareholders in connection with the previous years annual meeting

In evaluating candidates for nominees for director the committee considers

our need for particular talents and experience

that at least majority of the directors be independent under the Nasdaq Stock Market

rules and

the requirement that our Audit Committee meet the financial literacy requirements under the

Nasdaq Stock Market rules and that at least one of them qualifies as an Audit Committee

fmancial expert
under the rules of the Securities and Exchange Commission the SEC

In addition members of the Board should also

be of the highest ethical character

share our values

have reputations both personal and professional consistent with our image and our

reputation

be active in or former leaders of organizations

possess knowledge in the fields of financial services and wealth management

have an understanding of the Banks marketplace

have relevant expertise and experience which will be useful in offering advice and

guidance to the Chief Executive Officer

be independent of any particular constituency and

be able to represent all of our shareholders

Nominees for director must also be willing to commit the necessary time to devote to Board

activities and to enhance their knowledge of the financial services industry and be willing to assume

broad fiduciary responsibility Nominees for director should also have commitment to enhancing

shareholder value including assisting in business development activities where appropriate nominee

for director must also be or become shareholder upon joining the Board Application of the above

criteria may vary according to the particular areas of expertise desired to complement the existing

composition of the Board

In considering nominees for director the committee also considers the Boards desire to be

diverse body with diversity reflecting gender ethnic background and professional experience Our

diversity policy is designed to create and foster supportive and understanding environment in which

all individuals realize their maximum potential regardless of their differences Our goal is to ensure

that in carrying out our activities we promote equality of opportunity across all activities promote

good relations between people of diverse backgrounds and avoid unlawful discrimination
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OUR BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Our bylaws provide that our business will be managed by Board of Directors of not less than

eight and not more than thirteen directors as fixed from time to time by the Board of Directors Our

Board as provided in the bylaws is divided into four classes of directors with each class being as

nearly equal in number as possible Assuming the nominee for director is elected at the Annual

Meeting there will continue to be nine directors with three members in Class one member

in Class II three members in Class III and two members in Class IV The Corporation and the

Bank have the same Board members

Under our bylaws persons selected by the Board to fill vacancy on the Board serve as directors

for term expiring with the next annual meeting of shareholders If director is selected by the Board

on or after the record date for an annual meeting then the new director serves as director until the

subsequent annual meeting of shareholders Each class of directors serves four year term Directors

remain in their positions until their successors are elected and take office

In 2011 our Board of Directors met eight times With the exception of Mr Bennett each

director attended 100% of the total number of Board meetings held during 2011 when he or she was

director and at least 94% of the total number of meetings that were held by each conmiittee when he or

she served on those committees In early 2011 Mr Bennett became unable to regularly attend Board

and Committee meetings From January 2011 to April 2011 Mr Bennett was unable to meet the 75%

threshold requirement for Board meeting attendance and determined it was in the best interest of the

Corporation not to stand for reelection to the Board of Directors when his term expired in April 2011

Information About Committees of our Board of Directors

Our Board has five standing committees They are the Executive Nominating and Corporate

Governance Risk Management Audit and Compensation Committees The Corporation and the Bank

have the same committees with the same members for each committee except that the Bank also has

Wealth Management Committee

The following shows the Board conmiittee members for the Corporation and the Bank in 2011

and as of the printing of this Proxy Statement

Thomas Bennett

Mr Bennett served on these conunittees until his term expired in April 2011

Audit Committee

Risk Management Committee

Wealth Management Committee

Andrea Gilbert

Compensation Conmiittee committee chairperson

Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee

Risk Management Committee

Donald Guthrie

Risk Management Committee

Wealth Management Committee
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Wendell Holland

Compensation Committee

Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee

Risk Management Committee committee chairperson

Scott Jenkins

Audit Comniittee committee chairperson financial expert

Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee Committee chairperson effective in May 2011
Risk Management Committee

Jerry Johnson Mr Johnson joined the Board in April 2011

Audit Committee

Risk Management Committee

David Lees

Compensation Committee

Executive Committee

Wealth Management Committee committee chairperson

Francis Leto

Executive Committee

Wealth Management Committee

Britton Murdoch

Audit Committee financial expert

Executive Committee committee chairperson

Wealth Management Committee

Frederick Peters II Chairman of the Board

Executive Committee

Risk Management Committee

Wealth Management Committee

Loyall Taylor Jr

Audit Committee

Compensation Committee

Executive Committee

Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee

Executive Committee

The Executive Committee meets to discuss and act upon matters which require action during

periods between meetings of our Board The Executive Committee exercises the authority and powers

of the Board at intervals between meetings of the full Board as permitted by law During 2011 the

committee held eight meetings The Banks Executive Committee also meets to ratify and approve

certain of the Banks loans to customers
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Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee

The Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee has responsibility for identifying and

evaluating candidates for director and recommending the nomination of directors to the full Board The

committee also assists the Board in interpreting and applying corporate governance guidelines reviews

and assesses the adequacy of our corporate governance guidelines our personal codes of conduct and

related internal policies and guidelines and recommends any proposed changes to the Board for

approval The committee has charter which is available on our website at www.bmtc.com on the

Investor RelationsGovernance Documents page under the heading Nominating and Corporate

Governance Committee Charter Each member of the committee is independent as defined by Nasdaq

Stock Market rules During 2011 the committee held two meetings

Risk Management Committee

The Risk Management Committee meets to review and manage the material business risks which

confront us The committee establishes and monitors policies and procedures designed to lead to an

understanding of and to identify control monitor and measure our material business risks Those

risks include loan quality and concentration interest rate and market risk information technology risk

compliance risk and liquidity risk During 2011 the committee held eight meetings

Audit Committee

The Audit Conmiittee meets at least quarterly It has general oversight responsibilities regarding

our financial reporting process and internal controls The committee selects and evaluates the

qualifications
and performance of the independent registered public accounting firm The conimittee

meets with the internal auditor to review audit programs and the results of audits of specific areas as

well as other accounting regulatory compliance issues In addition the committee meets with the

independent registered public accountant to review the results of the annual audit and other related

matters Further the committee meets with the Chief Financial Officer to review accounting regulatory

compliance issues Each member of the committee is independent and financially literate as those

terms are defined by the Nasdaq Stock Market The committee held six meetings in 2011 Our

Board has determined based on their experience and background which are more fully described in

their respective bios beginning at page of this Proxy Statement that Scott Jenkins and Britton

Murdoch each independent directors are financial experts as defmed by the regulations of the SEC

The current Audit Committee Charter is attached as Appendix to this Proxy Statement

Compensation Committee

The Compensation Committee meets to discuss compensation matters Each member of the

committee is independent as defined by the Nasdaq Stock Market During 2011 the committee held

five meetings The committee has charter which is available on our website at www.bmtc.com on

the Investor RelationsGovernance Documents page under the heading Compensation Committee

Charter

Our Compensation Committee is responsible for recommending to the full Board our

compensation practices and for administering those practices They determine the salary and bonuses

for our executive officers and are responsible for setting and administering the policies for our equity

incentive programs
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Among other responsibilities discussed in the Charter the comniittee has the responsibility to

annually review and approve corporate goals and objectives for the compensation of the

Chief Executive Officer evaluate the Chief Executive Officers performance and

determine and approve the compensation and benefits to be paid to the Chief Executive

Officer

annually review and discuss with the Chief Executive Officer the performance of all other

executive officers evaluate their performance and determine and approve the

compensation and benefits to be paid to them

review and recommend to the full Board the compensation and benefits for non-employee

directors

administer equity incentive award programs and determine the awards to be granted under

those plans and

review and provide if appropriate recommendations to the full Board regarding

compensation and benefit policies plans and programs

The Compensation Committee normally will not grant equity incentive awards except during

period when trading is open not blacked-out in the Corporations common stock by our executive

officers and directors under our Securities Trading Policy Under our current policies that period

generally begins on the third business day after quarterly earnings are released and ends thirty calendar

days later Only the committee not management determines the timing of equity incentive awards

The Compensation Committee has the authority to hire third party consultants for compensation

matters and the authority to review and approve any third
party consultants recommended or hired by

management For more information regarding the Compensation Committees use of consultants see

Compensation Discussion and AnalysisBenchmarking Data and Use of Compensation Consultants

beginning on page 28 of this Proxy Statement

Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation

None of the members of the Compensation Committee was an officer or employee of the

Corporation or any of its subsidiaries during the year 2011 or during prior years None of the members

of the Compensation Committee had any relationship requiring disclosure pursuant to Item 404 of

Regulation S-K under the Exchange Act nor any other interlocking relationships as defined by the

SEC

Wealth Management Committee

The Banks Wealth Management Committee meets at least quarterly and has general supervision

over the Banks Wealth Management Division and its investments The committee held six

meetings during 2011 The Wealth Management Committee reviews and approves policies and

procedures for the Wealth Management Divisions investment activities approves certain discretionary

distributions from trusts of which the Bank is trustee reviews and confirms new accounts and provides

direction for the overall strategic direction for the division
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DIRECTOR COMPENSATION

The table below summarizes the compensation paid to non-employee directors for the fiscal year

ended December 31 2011

Fees Earned or Stock All Other

Paid in Cash Awards Compensation Total

Namet $253 $4

Thomas Bennett
3000 3000

Andrea Gilbert
23500 27587 1181 52268

Donald Guthrie
21000 27587 946 49533

Wendell Holland 24500 27587 1181 53268

ScottM Jenkins56 37500 27587 1181 66268

Jerry Johnson
19500 27587 243 47330

David Lees5 28500 27587 1181 57268

Britton I-I Murdoch7 48000 37587 1936 87523

Loyal Taylor Jr.5 27000 27587 1181 55768

Frederick Peters II and Francis Leto are not included in this table as they are employees of the Corporation and the

Bank and thus receive no compensation for their service as directors Compensation information for each of Messrs

Peters and Leto can be found in Compensation Discussion and Analysis and Executive Compensation beginning at

pages
20 and 32 respectively

The dollar amount represents 617 shares of common stock at the market price of $20.23 on May 2011 for all of the

directors as part of their annual retainer We do not issue fractional shares but instead issue cash in lieu of fractional

shares We paid the difference between the directors $12500 annual retainer and the value of the awarded stock to the

directors in cash

Reflects the aggregate grant date fair value computed in accordance with FASB ASC Topic 718 of both the unrestricted

common stock granted to the directors in connection with their annual retainers as well as restricted common stock

underlying the Performance Awards granted to directors in 2010 See Compensation Discussion and Analysis

Emphasis on Long-Term Incentives Equity Grants at page
26 for more information regarding Performance Awards

Includes the dividends that are accrued on the Performance Stock Awards granted in August 2010 and August 2011 The

dividends will be paid at vesting subject to vesting requirements of the awards in 2013 and 2014 respectively Also

included is the cash in lieu of fractional shares on the Directors retainers

Each of these directors elected to defer their fees and stock awards through our Deferred Payment Plans for Directors

Mr Jenkins serves as an independent director for the Corporations subsidiary The Bryn Mawr Trust Company of

Delaware and was paid fee of $1000 for attending each of that entitys four meetings in 2011

Includes the value of Performance Awards and cash granted to Mr Murdoch in 2011 that were compensation for his

additional services as Lead Director in 2011

The below chart indicates the aggregate number of shares underlying outstanding stock and option

awards for each of our directors as of December 31 2011

Number of

Shares

Number of Shares Underlying

Underlying Stock Option Options Options

Director Awards Awards Vested Unvested

Ms Gilbert 3063 20725 15940 4785

Mr Guthrie 2671

Mr Holland 3063 16475 11690 4785

Mr Jenkins 3063 14100 9315 4785

Mr Johnson 1500

Mr Lees 3063 17600 12815 4785

Mr Murdoch 5066 16082 9583 6499

Mr Taylor 3063 26475 21690 4785
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Directors Fees

At its first meeting after each annual meeting the Compensation Committee reviews the

components of director compensation and makes recommendations to the full Board of Directors

regarding any changes that the Compensation Committee believes should be made to director

compensation In August 2011 the Compensation Committee reviewed the components of director

compensation and recommended and the full Board approved effective for the 2011-2012 Board

cycle change to the number of the performance share awards granted to the directors which is more

particularly described below

We have agreed to pay and our non-employee independent directors have agreed to accept

payment of their annual $12500 retainer compensation in the form of our common stock payable at

the Boards organizational meeting generally held in April of each year at the market value of the

stock on the day prior to the day of payment

In addition to the annual retainer each non-employee director was paid fee of $1000 for each

Board meeting attended except for dinner meetings for which $500 was paid $1000 for attending the

organization meeting held after the annual meeting each year and $1000 for each committee meeting

attended separate fee is not paid to directors for attending Corporation Board meeting held on

Bank Board meeting day From time to time directors may be reimbursed for travel expenses

associated with attendance at Board or conmiittee meetings $7500 fee was paid to the Audit

Committee Chair in 2011 and $2500 fee was paid to the chair of each of the other committees We
paid the Lead Director additional fees of $20000 in cash and 993 Performance Awards as defined in

the Section titled Compensation Discussion and Analysis Emphasis on Long-Term Incentives

Equity Grants at page 26 in 2011

All of the directors fees are paid by the Bank except for the fee for attending the organization

meeting held after the annual meeting which is paid by the Corporation

Equity Awards

Directors who are elected or appointed to the Board at or before our Annual Meeting may
participate in our 2010 Long-Term Incentive Plan 2010 LTIP Each non-employee director serving

after our Annual Meeting is eligible to be granted equity awards under our 2010 LTIP at such number

and on such terms as the Board of Directors in its discretion decides to grant In 2011 each of our

non-employee directors was granted Performance Awards under our 2010 LTIP See Emphasis on

Long-Term Incentives Equity Grants on page 26 of this Proxy Statement for additional information

regarding Performance Awards

Directors Deferred Payment Plans

Under our Deferred Payment Plan for Directors and an identical plan for the Banks directors the
Director Plans director may defer receipt of portion or all of the fees paid for service as

director The Director Plans are non-qualified plans and the Director Plans funds are held in trust

administered by the Banks Wealth Management Division Under the Director Plans participating

director may earn yield on the deferred directors fees based on the yield on one or more different

investment funds The investment options include fifteen outside independent mutual funds Bryn
Mawr Trust brokerage account through which the director may freely select his or her own

investments and an investment in our common stock director may change his or her investment
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options quarterly except that any fees deferred which would otherwise have been paid in the form of

shares of our common stock must remain invested under the Director Plans in units of phantom stock

for one year following the deferral date All distributions from the deferred account must be in cash or

shares of our common stock or equivalent phantom stock as selected by the director The director

may choose to have the deferred account distributed to him or her on the date he or she ceases to

serve as director his or her 65th birthday or any date in the three year period after the director

ceases to serve as member of the Board Payments to the director may be made in annual installments

payable for up to ten years or in single lump sum payment Upon directors death prior to the

distribution date his or her beneficiary will be paid the balance in the directors account in single

lump sum payment The Board may amend or terminate the Director Plans in whole or in part without

the consent of any director who has deferred compensation into the Director Plans but an amendment

may not adversely affect the amounts credited to directors account before the amendment The right

to receive future payments under the Director Plans is an unsecured claim against our general assets

PROPOSAL NON-BINDING ADVISORY VOTE ON EXECUTIVE OFFICER
COMPENSATION

Section 14A of the Exchange Act requires that we include in this Proxy Statement the opportunity

for our shareholders to vote on an advisory non-binding resolution to approve the compensation of

our named executive officers sometimes referred to as Say-on-Pay Accordingly the following

resolution will be submitted for shareholder approval at the Annual Meeting

RESOLVED that the compensation paid to the named executive officers as disclosed

pursuant to Item 402 of Regulation S-K including the Compensation Discussion and Analysis

compensation tables and narrative discussion in this Proxy Statement is hereby approved

While this vote is non-binding the Board and the Compensation Committee expect to take into

account the outcome of this vote in considering future executive compensation arrangements

As described in detail under Compensation Discussion and Analysis the Board believes that the

talents of our employees have significant influence on our long-term success Our compensation

system plays significant role in our ability to attract retain and motivate quality workforce The

Board believes that our current compensation program links executive compensation to performance

aligning the interests of our executive officers with those of our shareholders and encourages you to

review carefully the Compensation Discussion and Analysis beginning on page 20 and the tabular and

other disclosures on Executive Compensation beginning on page 32 of this Proxy Statement

THE BOARD RECOMMENDS VOTE FOR THE SAY-ON-PAY RESOLUTION
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COMPENSATION DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The first part of the Compensation Discussion and Analysis entitled Compensation Actions for

2011 discusses the Compensation Committees compensation decisions for our named executives for

2011 This section also describes briefly how our executive compensation methods have operated

effectively in the current economic climate The second part entitled Compensation Framework

discusses in greater detail our compensation philosophy and practices

Compensation Actions for 2011

The Corporations compensation methods are intended to be balanced and reasonable and to help

attract and retain high quality talent The Compensation Committee together with Mr Peters

evaluated and approved 2011 executive compensation in the context of the Corporations performance

and acquisition activities and the economic issues facing the financial services industry

The Compensation Committee focuses largely on Chief Executive Officer compensation to assure

that it reflects operating and stock performance and demonstrates awareness of investor sentiment

Together with Mr Peters the Compensation Committee also considers compensation of the other

executive officers to achieve the right balance of incentives to appropriately reward and retain

executives and maximize their performance over the long-term

Although the Corporations compensation methods are subject to adjustment as conditions

change the Compensation Committee strives to maintain consistency in its philosophy and approach

making periodic improvements that are consistent therewith The Compensation Committee recognizes

that value-creating performance by an executive or group does not necessarily translate immediately

into appreciation of the Corporations stock price however the Compensation Committee intends to

continue to reward management performance based on its belief that over time strong operating

performance and earnings growth will be reflected through level or increased stock prices

In 2011 year in which residual financial turbulence continued to impact the economy and the

financial services industry the Corporations leadership delivered approximately $20 million in net

income In addition the Corporation successfully acquired the Private Wealth Management Group

PWMG of the Hershey Trust Company HTC which contributed more than $1.2 million in net

income including $410 thousand in pre-tax merger and due diligence expenses related to the

acquisition of HTC pursuant to that certain Agreement and Plan of Merger dated as of February 18

2011 by and between the Corporation and HTC which closed in May 2011 the HTC transaction

The Corporation made progress on several of its initiatives and performance points including

the Corporations stock price increasing from $17.45 at December 31 2010 to $19.49 at

December 31 2011

expanding its wealth footprint in increasing the overall size of the Wealth Management

Division and increasing the Banks assets under management administration and

supervision by approximately $1.1 billion with the acquisition of the PWMG of HTC

the Wealth Management Division assets under management administration supervision

and brokerage increasing from $3.41 billion at December 31 2010 to $4.83 billion at

December 31 2011

increasing the Wealth Management Divisions revenue by $6.2 million for the year ended

December 31 2011 compared to that ended December 31 2010
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increasing loan assets 7.7% while maintaining an overall high level of credit quality in the

Banks loan and lease portfolio and

successfully restructuring higher costing junior subordinated debentures into market rate

loan product

Determining Compensation For Named Executive Officers

At the 2011 Annual Meeting the Corporations shareholders approved the non-binding advisory

vote on our 2010 executive officer compensation by over 98% of the votes cast Due to the

overwhelming shareholder approval the Compensation Committee reviewed and recommended

compensation in manner consistent with past practices

Generally the Compensation Committee uses judgment and discretion rather than relying solely

on formulaic results and takes into account the global and regional business and economic

environment the Corporations overall performance budgetary considerations each executive

officers performance in relation to the goals set for him or her various components of compensation

received by each executive officer in prior periods results of any comparative surveys performed with

respect to executive compensation in the previous year competitive factors within the industry and

retention of key executives The Compensation Committee assigns no specific predetermined weight

to performance goals when determining executive compensation

Each year members of the Corporations executive management and Board of Directors develop

objectives that they believe should be achieved for the Corporations continued success Mr Peters

then reviews those objectives with the Compensation Committee for the purpose of establishing

individual performance goals for himself Mr Peters also develops objectives that each named

executive officer is expected to achieve and which are used to assess his or her performance These

objectives are reviewed with the Compensation Conmiittee at the beginning of each year Mr Peters

leads the assessment of each named executive officers individual performance against the objectives

the Corporations overall performance and the performance of the division or function of the business

for which the executive is responsible In most years Mr Peters then makes an initial compensation

recommendation to the Compensation Committee for each named executive officer The named

executive officers do not play role in their compensation determination other than discussing with

Mr Peters their individual performance against their predetermined objectives

In early 2011 the Compensation Committee determined to make salary increases based on the

merits and achievements of the individual executive officers during 2010 and in the case of Mr Leto

also based on certain other factors

The 2011 performance objectives for the named executive officers were reviewed and considered

in connection with determining the 2011 bonuses that were paid in early 2012 In addition to the

factors taken into account each year see Compensation Discussion and Analysis Compensation

Elements We Use to Achieve Our Goal Base Salary and Discretionary Bonus on page 28 of this

Proxy Statement the Compensation Comniittee placed particular emphasis on the following factors in

connection with its bonus decisions for 2011

the Corporations net income exclusive of merger related expenses

the increase in Wealth Management Division assets

the success of acquiring and integrating the assets and operations of the PWMG of HTC

into the Bank
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the Corporations rank in the U.S Bankers annual list of top community banks

the increase of the Corporations stock price from $17.45 at December 31 2010 to $19.49

at December 31 2011

the increase of market research published with respect to the Corporation and

the increase of the tax-equivalent net interest margin of 17 basis points to 3.96%

The Corporation also granted resthcted stock awards called Performance Awards to each named

executive officer in 2011 Please see the section titled Emphasis on Long-Term Incentives Equity

Grants and Executive Compensation Grants of Plan Based Awards Table on pages 26 and 36

respectively of this Proxy Statement for more information regarding such grants

Mr Peters

In early 2011 Mr Peters salary was increased based on his merits and achievements during 2010

Mr Peters 2011 bonus was $200000 which is an increase of $65000 over his 2010 bonus The

Compensation Committee considered the factors described in Compensation Discussion and Analysis

Detennining Compensation For Named Executive Officers on page 21 of this Proxy Statement

including the individual performance goals described below in connection with determining

Mr Peters 2011 salary and bonus increase

Mr Peters 2011 individual goals and performance related to

completing the acquisition and integration of the PWMG of HTC by September 20 2011

continuing to pursue both banking and wealth acquisition opportunities

continuing to implement the newly approved Diversity Policy and provide diversity

training to senior management staff by June 30 2011 and

working closely with the Lead Director and the Board to implement the 3-5-3 Strategic

Plan as approved by the Board

Financial Objectives Goal Actual Performance

Net Income exclusive of merger related

expenses Increase to $18.3 million Increased to $20.0 million

Wealth Management Division Revenue Increase 12.2% Increased 13%

Including the HTC transaction the Wealth Management Division Revenue increased 39.8%

Mr Peters was successful in meeting substantially all of the goals set for him in 2011 Although

Mr Peters did not meet his goal for increasing Wealth Management Division Revenue the

Compensation Committee took into account Mr Peters role in the HTC transaction and the fact that

the HTC transaction had substantial impact of increasing the Wealth Management Division Revenue

by 39.8% Additionally Mr Peters successfully managed the completion and integration of the

acquisition and integration of the PWMG of HTC by September 20 2011 Mr Peters also continued to

pursue both banking and wealth acquisition opportunities by reviewing possible transactions with

numerous other entities With respect to the Diversity Policy Mr Peters implemented training for

senior management and conducted meetings with some of the Banks largest vendors to discuss the

integration of more diverse individuals working on the Banks account Finally Mr Peters met

frequently with the Lead Director and the Board in connection with further implementation of the

3-5-3 Strategic Plan
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Mr Smith

Mr Smith has been with the Corporation since 2005 and is its Treasurer and Chief Financial

Officer He also serves as Executive Vice President Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer of the Bank

As with the rest of the named executive officers in early 2011 Mr Smiths salary was increased based

on his merits and achievements during 2010 Mr Smiths 2011 bonus was $98000 which is an

increase of $23000 over his 2010 bonus The Compensation Committee considered the factors

described in Compensation Discussion and Analysis Determining Compensation For Named

Executive Officers on page 21 of this Proxy Statement including the individual performance goals

described below in connection with determining Mr Smiths 2011 salary and bonus

Mr Smiths 2011 goals included no specific financial objectives but instead related to strategic

and operational goals in connection with his role as head of the Finance Division Mr Smiths goals

included

evaluating the capital markets and preparing for possible common stock offering for the

Corporation in 2011

continuing to utilize the request for waiver program and maximizing raising capital of

approximately $3 to $6 million through this program

assisting with various acquisition projects by performing due diligence

maintaining liquidity through the continued development of various wholesale funding

sources and managing the investment portfolio in accordance with the Corporations

Investment and ALCO policies

actively participating in investor conferences

meeting all internal external and regulatory reporting deadlines improving the overall

efficiency including reducing backlog of productivity projects in 2011 and adjusting staff

levels and structure to meet the demands of the Corporations enhanced growth strategy

and

streamlining the budget process

Mr Smith was generally successful in achieving and exceeding the objectives set for him

Particular credits include raising approximately $8.1 million in capital in 2011 through the request for

waiver program successful completion of the HTC transaction including handling regulatory filings

registration statements and other SEC filings Nasdaq requirements and conversion and post-closing

matters updating the liquidity funding plan maintaining an above-average industry standard net

interest margin actively participating in numerous investor conferences meeting all internal and

external reporting deadlines managing the Corporations investment portfolio with no other-than-

temporary impairment charges and continuing to work towards streamlining the budget process

Ms Gers

Ms Gers has been employed by the Bank since 1998 and is currently Executive Vice President

responsible for the Community Banking Division and the functional areas of Marketing Technology

and Information Services and Operations As with the rest of the named executive officers in early

2011 Ms Gers salary was increased based on her merits and achievements during 2010 Ms Gers

2011 bonus was $115000 which is an increase of $22500 over her 2010 bonus The Compensation

Committee considered the factors described in Compensation Discussion and Analysis Determining
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Compensation For Named Executive Officers on page 21 of this Proxy Statement including the

individual performance goals described below in connection with determining Ms Gers 2011 salary

and bonus

Ms Gers 2011 fmancial objectives and performance goals consisted of the following

Financial Objectives

New Transaction Accounts

Fee Income

Organic Deposit Funding Cost

Goal

Increase 8%

Increase 8%

Bottom /3 of regional

competition

Actual Performance

Increased 12%

Increased 11.6%

3rd lowest cost of funds

compared to regional

competition

Ms Gers 2011 strategic and operational goals included completing the integration of the

technology infrastructure updates and reducing direct expenses in areas of responsibility including but

not limited to deposits marketing and information technology

Ms Gers was successful in meeting all of the goals established for her in 2011 The

Compensation Committee took into account when determining Ms Gers salary and bonus the facts

that all of her other objectives were met she was able to increase new transaction accounts grow fee

income and manage organic funding rates Additionally Ms Gers successfully supported the Bank in

connection with the enterprise effort to complete the HTC transaction and supported the Bank in

connection with due diligence efforts it conducted on several potential MA transactions

Mr Keefer

Mr Keefer has been employed by the Bank since 1991 and is the Executive Vice President and

Chief Lending Officer responsible for the Banks Credit Division As with the rest of the named

executive officers in early 2011 Mr Keefer salary was increased based on his merits and

achievements during 2010 Mr Keefer 2011 bonus was $98000 which is an increase of $28000

over his 2011 bonus The Compensation Committee considered the factors described in

Compensation Discussion and Analysis Determining Compensation For Named Executive Officers

on page 21 of this Proxy Statement including the individual performance goals described below in

connection with determining Mr Keefers 2011 salary and bonus

Mr Keefers 2011 financial objectives consisted of the following

Net Charge-Offs for Traditional Bank

BMT Leasing Company net income

BMT Leasing Company delinquencies

BMT Leasing Company charge-offs

Goal

Increase from $1.20 billion to

$1.29 billion

Maintain below $4.5 million or

45 basis points of average loans

Increase to $650 thousand at

2.60% funding rate

Decrease to 2.15%

Decrease to less than $1.6 million

Decreased to $3.1 million

Increased to $658 thousand

at 2.60% funding rate

Decreased to 1.24%

Decreased to $1.017

million

Financial Objectives

Growth of Average Loan Assets

Actual Performance

Increased to $1.29 billion

Loan Assets are Traditional Bank loans inclusive of First Keystone loans net of loan mark

Traditional Bank excludes leasing portfolio activity
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Mr Keefer strategic and operational goals included proactively fostering referrals into Private

Banking Wealth Management and Lau Associates capitalizing on the new lending opportunities

afforded the Bank through the merger with First Keystone Bank continuing to provide leadership

direction and solutions with respect to First Keystones and the Banks problem loans and attending

wealth management and/or bank leadership seminar

Mr Keefer met all of the goals established for him in 2011 The Compensation Committee took

into account when determining his salary and bonus the facts that all of Mr Keefer objectives were

attained as well as Mr Keefers other significant contributions which included presenting at two

investors conferences contributing on analyst earnings calls and successful restructuring of the

Commercial Banking Division

Mr Leto

Mr Leto has been the Executive Vice President and head of the Bank Wealth Management

Division since January 2009 In 2011 Mr Leto was also appointed as General Counsel of the

Corporation and the Bank In early 2011 Mr Leto salary was increased based on number of factors

reviewed by the Compensation Committee as discussed below Mr Leto 2011 bonus was $120000

which is an increase of $40000 over his 2010 bonus In January 2011 Mr Leto also received special

grant of 9000 shares of Restricted Stock in addition to and on terms similar to those of the

Performance Awards discussed at page 26 under Emphasis on Long-Term Incentives Equity

Grants In addition to the other factors described herein the Compensation Committee considered the

factors described in Compensation Discussion and Analysis Determining Compensation For Named

Executive Officers on page 21 of this Proxy Statement including the individual performance goals

described below in connection with determining Mr Leto 2011 compensation

The financial objectives the Compensation Committee considered in determining Mr Letos 2011

compensation consisted of the following

Financial Objectives Goal Actual Performance

Assets Under Management Administration

Supervision and Brokerage Increase 7% Increased 12%

Wealth Management Division Revenue Increase 13% Increased 13%

Pre-Tax Wealth Management Margin Increase to 35% Increased to 45.1%

Including the HTC transaction the Wealth Management Division Revenue increased 39.8%

Mr Letos strategic and operational goals included completing the Wealth Management

Divisions SunGard conversion by September 30 2011 completing the acquisition and integration of

the PWMG of HTC by September 30 2011 continuing to work with the Chief Executive Officer to

define and pursue additional acquisition opportunities

Mr Leto was successful in achieving substantially all of his performance goals in 2011 Although

Mr Leto did not meet his goal for increasing Wealth Management Division Revenue the

Compensation Committee took into account Mr Letos role in the HTC transaction and the fact that

the HTC transaction had substantial impact of increasing the Wealth Management Division Revenue

by 39.8% In addition to meeting substantially all of the goals set out for him the Committee took into

account when determining Mr Leto compensation the compensation of similarly situated officers

from Susquehanna Bank and National Penn Bank The Compensation Committee also considered the

compensation of the Corporations and Banks other executive officers Finally in determining Mr

Leto compensation the Compensation Committee considered the role and significant contribution the
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Wealth Management Division makes to the Banks overall success specifically its wealth revenue and

profitability the fact that Mr Leto does not participate in the Banks second supplemental retirement

plan and Mr Leto increased responsibilities in his additional role as the new General Counsel for the

Corporation and the Bank

Compensation Framework

Our Goal

The goal of our executive compensation methodology is to retain and reward leaders who create

long-term value for our shareholders This goal affects the compensation elements we use and our

compensation decisions Our compensation methods reward sustained financial and operating

performance and leadership excellence align the executives long-term interests with those of our

shareholders and motivate executives to remain with the Corporation for long and productive careers

built on expertise

The following is summary of key considerations affecting the Compensation Committees

determination of compensation for the named executives We describe in the section entitled

Compensation Actions for 2011 beginning at page 20 of this Proxy Statement additional

considerations that the Compensation Committee evaluated in establishing 2011 compensation in the

context of the Corporations performance

Emphasis on Consistent and Relative Performance

Our compensation methods provide superior pay opportunity for executives who demonstrate

superior performance for sustained periods of time The amount of compensation paid to each named

executive officer reflects the fact that he or she has consistently contributed and is expected to

continue to contribute to the Corporations success In evaluating consistent performance we also

weigh heavily relative perfonnance of each executive in his or her division

Our emphasis on consistent performance affects our discretionary annual cash bonus and equity

incentive compensation which are determined with the prior years award or grant serving as an initial

basis for consideration After an assessment of named executives past performance and expected

future contribution to the Corporations results as well as the performance of any business or function

he or she leads the Compensation Committee uses its judgment in determining the amount of bonus or

equity award and the resulting percentage change from the prior year We generally incorporate

current-year past and expected performance into our salary decisions Therefore percentage increases

or decreases in the amount of annual salary tends to be more gradual than in framework that is

focused solely on current-year performance

Emphasis on Long-Term Incentives Equity Grants

The Compensation Committee strives to provide an appropriate mix of different compensation

elements including finding balance among current versus long-term compensation and cash versus

equity incentive compensation Cash payments primarily reward more recent performance and equity

awards encourage our named executives to continue to deliver results over longer period of time and

also serve as retention tool The Compensation Committee believes that portion of the named

executive officers compensation should be tied to the Corporations operating and stock price

performance over the long-term period In 2010 the Compensation Committee decided to change the

form of equity awards granted from stock options to performance-based restricted stock awards the

Performance Awards All employees are eligible to receive grants of Performance Awards in

accordance with the terms of the 2010 LTIP
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The Performance Awards issued in 2011 and 2010 are subject to 3-year cliff vesting where the

final payout is based on the Corporations total shareholder return TSR compared to the TSR of the

Nasdaq Community Bank Index the Index TSR is calculated using the average stock price for the

20 trading days preceding the beginning and end of the 3-year performance period and assuming

dividends are reinvested on the ex-dividend date over the performance period Upon the expiration of

the performance period the TSR of the Corporation will be compared against the TSR of the Index If

the Corporations TSR is greater than zero and also greater than that of the Index 100% of the

Performance Awards will vest and shares of the Corporations common stock will be delivered to

participants accordingly For every 100 basis points that the Corporations TSR is behind the Indexs

TSR the vesting amount will decrease by 3.33% If the Corporations TSR is negative at the end of the

performance period there will be no payout Dividends will accrue over the vesting period and

participants will receive those dividends in shares or cash based upon the final amount of the shares

that vest according to the TSR performance

Discretion and Judgment

The Compensation Committee does not use formulas in determining the amount and mix of

compensation granted to named executive officers Thus the Compensation Committee evaluates

broad range of both quantitative and qualitative factors including reliability in delivering financial and

growth targets performance in the context of the economic environment relative to other companies

track record of integrity good judgment the vision and ability to create further growth and the ability

to lead others The evaluation of named executives performance against his or her performance

objectives plays significant role in awarding the discretionary annual cash bonus and also contributes

to determination of overall compensation

Significance of Company and Divisional Results

The Compensation Committee primarily evaluates the named executives contributions to their

individual business divisions or functions and their impact on the Corporations overall performance

The Compensation Committee believes that the named executives share the responsibility to support

the goals and performance of the Corporation as key members of the Corporations leadership team

While this compensation philosophy influences all of the Compensation Committees compensation

decisions it has the biggest impact on annual equity incentive awards

Consideration of Risk

Our compensation methods are discretionary and balance short and long-term goals for the named

executive officers and the Corporation Under this structure the highest amount of compensation can

be achieved through consistent superior performance over sustained periods of time The

Compensation Committee strives to provide strong incentives to manage the Corporation for the long-

term while avoiding excessive risk taking in the short term Goals and objectives reflect fair mix of

quantitative and qualitative performance measures to avoid excessive weight on single performance

measure While bonuses are granted to reward executives in the short term equity awards such as

Performance Awards are granted to incentivize executives towards long-term goals and sustained

shareholder value Likewise the elements of compensation are balanced among current cash payments

equity awards and optional deferred bonus plans With limited exceptions the Compensation

Committee retains large amount of discretion to adjust compensation for quality of performance and

adherence to company values
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The Compensation Committee annually reviews the relationship between our risk management

practices and the incentive compensation we provide to our named executives to confirm that our

incentive compensation does not encourage unnecessary and excessive risks The Compensation

Committee also reviews the relationship between risk management practices corporate strategy and

senior executive compensation

Benchmarking Data and Use of Compensation Consultants

While the Compensation Committee considered the results of comparative surveys performed

with respect to executive compensation as one of many factors it used to determine executive

compensation in prior years in 2011 with one limited exception the Compensation Committee did not

consider any information regarding peer companies to the Corporation for the compensation decisions

In 2011 the Compensation Committee did consider some limited peer group information when

evaluating and determining Mr Leto compensation increase Such consideration is further noted

under the heading Compensation Discussion and Analysis Determining Compensation For Named

Executive Officers Mr Leto on page 25

In 2010 the Corporation engaged Radford Consulting an Aon Hewitt company Radford to

provide the Bank with consulting services for the design of the Performance Awards and other

administrative functions

Compensation Elements We Use to Achieve Our Goal

The following summarizes the compensation elements we use as tools to reward align and retain

our named executives

Base Saiwy and Discretionary Bonus

Base salaries for our named executives generally depend on the scope of their responsibilities

their leadership and management skills their performance and length of service Base salaries are

intended to be internally fair among executive officers at the same level of responsibility Decisions

regarding salary increases are affected by the named executives current salary and the amounts paid to

their peers within and outside the Corporation For each named executive officer we pay discretionary

cash bonuses in the first quarter
of each year for the prior years performance based upon the

evaluation by the Chief Executive Officer for evaluations other than the CEO and the Compensation

Committee of the executives performance against stated goals and objectives as discussed previously

The Corporation uses its bonus pool to compensate individual officers for superior performance

and effort and to provide officers with incentive to meet the financial and non-fmancial plans of the

Corporation and work together across business lines for the overall benefit of the Corporation and its

shareholders When determining bonuses in given year the Compensation Committee takes into

account the Corporations profitability against the budget the Corporations overall

performance against the banking industry in general and various peer Companies for discussion of the

peer analysis see Compensation Discussion and Analysis Compensation Framework

Benchmarking Data and Use of Compensation Consultants on page 28 of this Proxy Statement

the overall hard work and dedication of the Corporations officers during the year and any

particular special or unusual circumstances then-existing such as unusual loan or fraud loss economic

environment interest rates and their effect on net interest margin non-budgeted expenses such as

merger expenses or unexpected income
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Long-Term Equity Incentive and Deferred Bonus Plans

The Corporations long-term incentive compensation is designed to drive long-term Company

performance align the interests of executives with those of the shareholders and retain executives

through long-term vesting and potential wealth accumulation The Compensation Committee reviews

long-term incentive compensation strategy
and vehicles annually The Corporations current long-term

incentive pians applicable to named executive officers are the 2004 Stock Option Plan 2004 Plan
2007 Long-Term Incentive Plan 2007 LTIP and the 2010 LTIP which allow the Compensation

Committee flexibility to issue equity incentive awards such as stock options stock grants performance

units performance shares restricted stock and restricted stock units

The Compensation Committee believes in the importance of equity compensation for all executive

officers for purposes of incentive and retention and alignment of interests with shareholders In 2011

long-term performance-based compensation of executive officers took the form of the Performance

Awards discussed in Emphasis on Long-Term Incentives Equity Grants on page 26 and Grants of

Plan-Based Awards table on page 36 of this Proxy Statement The Compensation Committee

continues to believe that equity awards are an appropriate equity vehicle for portion of long-term

incentive compensation for the Corporations executives because they align their interests with the

interests of shareholders

When determining the amount of equity granted to executive officers the Compensation

Committee takes into consideration share usage dilution and shares available under the equity plan as

well as the named executive officers potential for future successful performance and leadership as part

of the executive management team taking into account past performance as key indicator While the

Compensation Committee has the discretion to grant different numbers of equity awards to different

named executive officers it has historically granted and continued in 2011 to grant the same number

of equity awards to all named executive officers other than the CEO This is because the Compensation

Committee believes that the named executives share the responsibility to support the goals and

performance of the Corporation as key members of the Corporations leadership team and therefore

should benefit to the same degree in terms of their equity compensation

The Bank maintains variety of company-wide and division-specific incentive and referral plans

in which various employees are eligible to participate The incentive plans are designed to provide

incentives to increase the business and profitability of the Bank however none of the named

executives received anything more than nominal amounts under these plans in 2011

To attract and retain qualified executive officers we also offer our executive officers and other

employees who earn in excess of $100000 annually Deferred Bonus Plan for Executives which

allows payment of any bonus received to be deferred

The Compensation Committee does not believe that any of the current incentive plans pose an

excessive risk to the Corporations short- or long-term fmancial stability Controls are in place at the

management level and overseen by the Compensation Committee to annually evaluate and revise

incentive plans as necessary The Compensation Committee believes that these controls effectively

mitigate risks that may arise under incentive plans

Retirement Benefits and Pension Plans

The Corporation provides retirement benefits to the named executive officers under the same 401

Plan 401k Plan and supplemental employee retirement plan the First Supplemental Plan in

which the other executives and employees participate
Messrs Peters Keefer Smith and Ms Gers also
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participate in our defined benefit pension pian the Pension Plan and our First Supplemental Plan

each of which was frozen effective March 31 2008 None of the participating employees in the

Pension Plan are credited with service or compensation received after March 31 2008 in calculating

their retirement benefits under the plan All of the named executive officers except Mr Leto

participate in second supplemental employee retirement plan the Second Supplemental Plan and

together with the First Supplemental Plan the Supplemental Plans The combined benefits under the

Corporations two Supplemental Plans are intended to restore the level of retirement benefits that

would be provided under our Pension Plan but for its freeze and limitations in the Internal Revenue

Code of 1986 as amended the Code See the sections entitled 401k Plan at page 39 and

Pension Plan and Supplemental Employee Retirement Plans at page 40 of this Proxy Statement for

more information

Change in Control and Severance Arrangements

In order to recruit qualified employees the Corporation provides severance benefits to our

executive officers and other employees if their positions are eliminated or if they are terminated

involuntarily without cause To protect the Corporation from potential liability arising from

termination of employment terminated employee must execute release of all claims against the

Corporation in order to receive severance benefits

We also have change in control agreements with each of our named executive officers which are

designed to be competitive with the market and the Compensation Committee believes that the amount

of the benefits is appropriate The agreements provide for cash payment of three times the

executives base salary at the time of change in control The agreements also provide for an

additional cash payment equal to the difference between the price of our common stock on the date of

the change in control and the exercise price of all options held by the executive officer Upon change

in control an executive officer is entitled to his or her discretionary bonus credit to his or her

Supplemental Plan benefit equivalent to three years of additional credited service and other benefits

Perquisites and Other Benefit Compensation

It is our general policy not to provide perquisites to executive officers However in isolated cases

and where appropriate to achieve our corporate goals we may agree to give limited perquisites to

specific executive officers Examples of such perquisites could include the payment or reimbursement

of moving expenses where required in connection with employment and financial assistance toward

expenses in joining private club to be used to entertain clients or prospective clients

In order to attract and retain executive talent we provide term life health disability and dental

insurance to our named executive officers on terms similar to those we provide other employees

generally except with respect to payments upon change in control death or disability See Potential

Payments Upon Termination Or Change In Control beginning on page 42 of this Proxy Statement

Other Compensation Practices

Role ofthe Compensation Committee and Executives in Establishing and Implementing

Compensation Goals

As part of its responsibility the Compensation Committee oversees the design development and

implementation of the compensation methods for the Chief Executive Officer and the other named

executives The Chief Executive Officer assists the Compensation Committee and participates in its
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deliberations about compensation matters such as past compensation compensation practices and

guidelines company performance current industry compensation practices and competitive market

information Information setting forth the total annual compensation of each named executive and

potential retirement benefits accruing to each is assembled for the Compensation Conmiittee at the

beginning of each year

Tax Deductibility of Compensation

Section 162m of the Code imposes $1 million limit on the amount that public company may

deduct for compensation paid to its chief executive officer or any of its three other most highly

compensated executive officers who are employed as of the end of the year This limitation does not

apply to compensation that meets the requirements under Section 162m for qualifying performance-

based compensation i.e compensation paid only if the individuals performance meets

pre-established objective goals based on performance criteria approved by shareowners For 2011 the

Corporations grants of stock options and the payments of discretionary annual cash bonuses were

designed to satisfy the requirements for deductible compensation Generally the Compensation

Committee intends to structure our compensation methods where feasible to minimize or eliminate

the impact of limitations or penalties such as those in Section 162m The Compensation Committee

did not otherwise consider accounting or tax treatments of particular forms of compensation in making

compensation decisions in 2011

COMPENSATION COMMITTEE REPORT

The Compensation Committee has reviewed and discussed the Compensation Discussion and

Analysis required by Item 402b of Regulation S-K with management and based on such review and

discussions the Compensation Committee recommended to the Board of Directors that the

Compensation Discussion and Analysis be included in this Proxy Statement and our Annual Report on

Form 10-K for the year ended December 31 2011

Respectfully submitted

Andrea Gilbert Chair

Wendell Holland

David Lees

Loyall Taylor Jr
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EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

Summary Compensation Table

The table below summarizes the total compensation paid to or earned by each of the named

executive officers for each of the
years

ended December 31 2011 2010 and 2009

Change in

Pension Value

and

Nonqualified

Stock Option Non-Equity Deferred All Other

Name and Principal Salary Bonus Awards Awards Incentive Plan Compensation Compensation Total

Position Year $l $2 $2 Compensation Earnings $3 $4X5

Frederick Peters II 2011 390000 200000 344491 293611 48058 1276160

Chief Executive 2010 370369 135000 95147 180149 32827 813492

Officer 2009 363315 100000 101660 116708 32416 714099

Duncan Smith 2011 225856 98000 50350 65408 33922 473536

Chief Financial 2010 212255 75000 48200 26362 25303 387120

Officer 2009 205058 53000 50830 15500 24865 349253

AlisonE.Gers 2011 229474 115000 95150 137517 35564 612705

Executive Vice President 2010 215655 87500 48200 80715 27272 459342

of the Bank 2009 208343 60000 50830 36802 24892 380867

Joseph Keefer 2011 228160 98000 79083 215186 36008 656437

Executive Vice President 2010 214420 70000 48200 105403 26815 464838

of the Bank 2009 207150 49000 50830 28304 26870 362154

Francis Leto 2011 275000 120000 2078506 39649 642499

Executive Vice President 2010 243692 80000 48200 16694 388586

and General Counsel 2009 205442 60000 50830 19847v 336119

of the Bank

Bonuses were awarded to the named executive officers during the first quarter of 2012

Reflects the dollar amount recognized for financial statement reporting purposes
for the fiscal year indicated in

accordance with FASB ASC Topic 718 and the proceeds of exercise of stock options

The amounts shown in this column are the changes in the pension value for each of the named executive officers

The amount shown in this column for the named executive officers includes our matching and discretionary

contributions under our 401k Plan our contributions to life health dental and disability insurance benefits and flex

benefits and accrued but unpaid dividends relating to the Performance Awards See the section titled 401k Plan

beginning at page 39 below for additional information

Includes the dividends that are accrued on the Performance Stock Awards granted in August 2010 and August 2011

The dividends will be paid at vesting subject to vesting requirements of the awards in 2013 and 2014 respectively

Includes 9000 shares of Restricted Stock that Mr Leto received as part of his compensation which is more fully

discussed under Compensation Discussion and Analysis Determining Compensation for Named Executive Officers

Mr Leto on page 25

Includes $4940 in legal fees paid to Stradley Ronon Stevens Young LLP on behalf of Mr Leto in connection with

the negotiation of his employment arrangement with the Bank
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Executive Employment Agreement

We have an employment agreement with Frederick Peters II our President and Chief

Executive Officer which renews on rolling two-year basis until Mr Peters attains the age of sixty-

three The employment agreement provides for minimum annual base salary of $225000 and also

entitles Mr Peters to participate
in all of our employee benefit plans and arrangements made generally

available to our executives and key management employees

We may terminate the employment agreement upon Mr Peters disability or for cause as defined

in the employment agreement Mr Peters may voluntarily terminate his employment at any time by

giving not less than thirty days prior written notice to us if we terminate Mr Peters employment due

to disability we must continue to pay his full salary for period equal to the applicable
elimination

period under any group long-term disability insurance provided by us currently 180 days or if we

cease to provide group long-term disability insurance we must pay his full salary through the last day

of the month after he receives notice of termination in accordance with the agreement if we

tenninate Mr Peters employment for reasons other than his disability and other than for cause

Mr Peters is entitled to receive his full salary including incentive compensation through the date of

termination and we must pay Mr Peters an additional amount equal to his annual salary then in effect

in bi-weekly installments for two years
or until his sixty-fifth birthday whichever occurs first If

Mr Peters terminates his employment he is entitled to receive his full salary through the date of

termination

The employment agreement also contains non-disclosure non-solicitation and non-competition

provisions under which Mr Peters agrees not to disclose any confidential information not to solicit our

employees or our clients and not to compete with us within 100 mile radius of Bryn Mawr PA

subject to certain conditions for period of two years following his termination of employment

No other named executive officers have employment agreements with the Corporation or the

Bank

Company and Division Incentive Plans

We have incentive plans open to participation among our officers or employees generally in

which one or more of our named executive officers are eligible to participate
and earn additional

referral or incentive compensation

Wealth Management Division Sales Incentive Plan Any employee is eligible to participate in this

plan Participants receive referral fees quarterly on new immediate fee business and future fee business

of our Wealth Management Division if they are employed by us when the compensation is to be paid

No named executive officer received compensation under this plan in 2011 or 2010 however Messrs

Keefer and Smith received compensation under this plan in 2009

Share the Client Plan This is an internal Bank-wide cross-selling program It rewards group or

individual for their contribution to the success of other business units No named executive officer

received compensation under this plan in 2011 or 2010 however Mr Keefer received compensation

under this plan in 2009

33



EQUITY BASED COMPENSATION

200120042007 and 2010 Equity Compensation Plans

Under the Bryn Mawr Bank Corporation 2001 Stock Option Plan 2001 Plan and the 2004

Plan the Compensation Committee is authorized to grant
stock options to our key employees

including our executive officers and our non-employee directors The Compensation Committee may
grant either incentive stock options or non-qualified stock options The options are granted in

consideration for the services provided to us by the employees and directors The Compensation

Committee determines when an option is exercisable in whole or in part The maximum term of an

option is ten years from the date the option is granted The exercise price is the fair market value of

share of our stock The fair market value is the last sales price as reported by the Nasdaq Stock Market

on the day preceding the day of the grant The day preceding the date of the grant is used for

determining the exercise price because the Compensation Committee normally meets early in the

morning before the stock market opens Payment for an option may be made in cash or by the delivery

of shares of our common stock with fair market value as of the exercise date equal to the exercise

price of the option being exercised

Under our 2004 Plan in the event of change in control as defined therein all options granted

will immediately vest and become exercisable This provision was included in our 2004 Plan to be

consistent with our prior plans and to be competitive in the marketplace

In January 2010 the Compensation Committee amended the 2001 and 2004 Plans to extend the

period for exercising options in the event of death disability or retirement to the earlier of five years

from the date of such event or the expiration date of the option grant

Our 2007 LTIP broadened the types of awards available to stock options stock grants

performance units performance shares restricted stock and restricted stock units

Under the 2007 LTIP options become immediately exercisable in full if any of the following

happen within two years after change in control

the participants employment is terminated without cause

the participant terminates employment with good reason or

the participants employment terminates under circumstances that entitle the participant to

benefit under the participants change in control agreement more fully described in the

section entitled Potential Payments Upon Termination or Change In ControlPayments

Upon Change In Control on page 42 of this Proxy Statement

Under the 2007 LTIP outstanding stock options or stock appreciation rights also become

immediately exercisable in full

if we are the surviving entity in merger and do not make any adjustments necessary to

preserve the value of participants outstanding stock options or stock appreciation rights

or

if we are not the survivor and the surviving entity does not assume the obligations under

the 2007 LTIP
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The Compensation Committee may in its sole discretion determine that upon change in

control cash payment may be made for any outstanding stock options or stock appreciation rights

granted under this plan The amount payable would be equal to the excess of the fair market value of

share of common stock prior to the change in control over the exercise price of the stock option or

stock appreciation right If cash payment is made each related stock option or stock appreciation

right would terminate and the participant would have no further rights except the right to receive the

cash payment

Shareholders approved our 2010 LTIP at the 2010 annual meeting The purpose of the 2010 LTIP

is to promote the success and enhance the value of the Corporation by providing long-term incentives

to directors and employees of the Corporation and its subsidiaries linking their personal interest to that

of the Corporations shareholders The 2010 LTIP is further intended to provide flexibility to the

Corporation by increasing its ability to motivate attract and retain the services of employees and

directors upon whose judgment interest and special effort the successful conduct of the Corporations

operations are largely dependent

The 2010 LTIP provides for the grant of certain awards to employees including our officers

officers of our subsidiaries and our directors The 2010 LTIP further broadened the types of awards

available to participants to incentive stock options non-qualified stock options incentive stock

options and non-qualified stock options are collectively called options stock appreciation rights

SAR dividend equivalents performance awards which may be either number of shares of

common stock performance shares or cash amount performance units restricted stock and

restricted stock units

In 2011 the only type of awards granted under the 2010 LTIP were Performance Awards The

Compensation Committee has broad discretion with respect to the terms of performance awards that it

grants including setting objective performance goals that must be met for performance awards For

more information regarding the Performance Awards that were granted in 2010 see Compensation

Discussion and Analysis Emphasis on Long-Term Incentives Equity Grants at page 26

As of December 31 2011 an aggregate maximum of 378355 shares of common stock were

available for grant under the 2007 and 2010 LTIP No shares remain available for grant under the

2001 and 2004 Plans
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Grants of Plan-Based Awards Table

The Compensation Committee awarded Performance Awards in 2011 as set forth in the table

below

Estimated future payouts under
Grant date

equity incentive plan awards
value of ar

Grant Threshold Target Maximum and option

Name and Principal Position Date ff1
_____

awards

Frederick Peters II 8/12/11 9870 9870 99391

Chief Executive Officer

Duncan Smith 8/12/11 5000 5000 50350

Chief Financial Officer

AlisonE Gers 8/12/11 5000 5000 50350

Executive Vice President of the Bank

Joseph Keefer 8/12/11 5000 5000 50350

Executive Vice President of the Bank

Francis Leto 8/12/11 5000 5000 50350

Executive Vice President and General

Counsel of the Bank 1/10/112 9000 9000 157500

With respect to Performance Awards for every 100 basis points that the Corporations TSR is behind the Indexs TSR

upon the expiration of the year performance period the amount that will vest will be decreased by 3.33% As result

no awards will vest if the Corporations TSR is 70% or less than the Indexs TSR See Emphasis on Long-Term

IncentivesEquity Grants on page 26 of this Proxy Statement

This grant relates to the Restricted Stock award that is more fully discussed under Compensation Discussion and

Analysis Determining Compensation for Named Executive Officers Mr Leto on page 25
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Outstanding Equity Awards Table

The following table summarizes the outstanding equity compensation awards of the named

executive officers at December 31 2011

Equity

Incentive

Equity plan

incentive awards

plan market

Market awards or

value number payout

Number of of value of

of shares unearned unearned

shares or shares shares

or units units of units or units or

of stock stock other other

that that rights rights

have have that have that have

not not not not

vested vested vested vested

_________ ______ _________ ____
13690 384732

20000 16.25 4/16/2012

20000 18.46 4/15/2013

4000 17.85 5/16/2013

24000 20.47 4/23/2014

30000 18.91 5/12/2015

24000 21.21 12/12/2015

144001 22.00 8/29/2017

108002 24.27 8/18/2018

9200i 18.27 8/21/2019

156400

15000 $18.91 5/12/2015

12000 $21.21 12/12/2015

7200 $22.00 8/29/2017

5400 $24.27 8/18/2018

46006 $18.27 8/21/2019

44200

8000 $18.32 5/17/2012

9000 $17.85 5/16/2013

10000 $20.47 4/23/2014

15000 $18.91 5/12/2015

12000 $21.21 12/12/2015

7200 $22.00 8/29/2017

5400 $24.27 8/18/2018

46006 $18.27 8/21/2019

71200

$18.32 5/17/2012

$17.85 5/16/2013

$20.47 4/23/2014

$18.91 5/12/2015

$21.21 12/12/2015

1800 $22.00 8/29/2017

3600 $24.27 8/18/2018

______
6900 $18.27 8/21/2019

12300

Francis Leto

Executive Vice President and General $16.25 4/16/2012

CounseloftheBank $18.46 4/15/2013

$17.85 5/16/2013

$20.47 4/23/2014

$18.91 5/12/2015

$21.21 12/12/2015

700 $22.00 8/29/2017

21068 $24.27 8/18/2018

______
69006 $18.27 8/21/2019

9706

Option awards Stock awards

Equity

incentive

plan

Number of Number of awards

securities securities number of

underlying underlying securities

unexercised unexercised underlying Option

options options
unexercised exercise Option

exercisable unexercisable unearned price expiration

_________
options

dateName and Principal Position

Frederick Peters II

Chief Executive Officer

Duncan Smith

Chief Financial Officer

Alison Gers

Executive Vice President of the Bank

Joseph Keefer

Executive Vice President of the Bank

3600
2002

3800

24600

800
600

69006

12300

800
3600
69006

12300

10000 194900

10000 194900

10000 194900

19000 370310

6000

9000

10000

15000

12000

200
400

46006

69200

2000

2000

1000

3000

3500

3500

2800
31598
46006

25559
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3600 vested on August 29 2008 2009 2010 and 2011 and 3600 will vest on August 29 2012

3600 vested on August 18 2009 2010 and 2011 and 3600 will vest annually on August 18 2012 and 2013

4600 vested on August 21 2010 and 2011 and 4600 will vest annually on August 21 2012 2013 and 2014

1800 vested on August 29 2008 2009 2010 and 2011 and 1800 will vest on August 29 2012

1800 vested on August 18 2009 2010 and 2011 and 1800 will vest annually on August 18 2012 and 2013

2300 vested on August 21 2010 and 2011 and 2300 will vest annually on August 21 2012 2013 and 2014

700 vested on August 29 2008 2009 2010 and 2011 and 700 will vest on August 29 2012

1053 vested on August 18 2009 2010 and 2011 and 1053 will vest annually on August 18 2012 and 2013

Option Exercises

The following table summarizes the option awards that have been exercised during the fiscal year

ended December 31 2011

Name and Principal Position Option Awards

Number or shares Value

acquired on realized on

exercise exercise

Frederick Peters II 30000 245000

Chief Executive Officer

Duncan Smith

Chief Financial Officer

Alison Gers 8000 44800

Executive Vice President of the Bank

Joseph Keefer 5000 28733

Executive Vice President of the Bank

Francis Leto

Executive Vice President and General Counsel of the Bank
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RETIREMENT BENEFITS

Pension Benefits Table

The following table shows the present value of accumulated benefits payable to each of the named

executive officers as of December 31 2011 including the number of years of credited service to each

named executive officer under our Pension Plan and Supplemental Plans determined using interest and

mortality rate assumptions consistent with those used in our financial statements

Number of

Years Present Value Payments

Credited of Accumulated During Last

Service Benefit Fiscal Year

Name and Principal Position Plan Name

Frederick Peters II Pension Plan 7.25 288034

Chief Executive Officer Supplemental Plan 7.25 282191

Supplemental Plan II 11 398950

Duncan Smith Pension Plan 3.25 89032

Chief Financial Officer Supplemental Plan 3.25 5402

Supplemental Plan 63770

Alison Gers Pension Plan 10.25 253322

Executive Vice President of the Bank Supplemental Plan 10.25 10883

Supplemental Plan II 14 154142

Joseph Keefer Pension Plan 17.25 430717

Executive Vice President of the Bank Supplemental Plan 17.25 103903

Supplemental Plan II 21 116413

Francis Leto Pension Plan

Executive Vice President and General Supplemental Plan

Counsel of the Bank Supplemental Plan II

401k Plan

We maintain 40 1k Plan for all eligible employees An employee becomes eligible to

participate in our 401k Plan at the date of hire participant may elect to have his/her compensation

reduced and contribute the amount of the reduction on his/her behalf to the 40 1k Plan in an amount

not to exceed the applicable yearly dollar limitations catch up contributions are also permitted

Quarterly we make dollar-for-dollar matching contribution of up to 3% of each participants base

compensation In any 401k Plan year we may make contributions to the participants discretionary

accounts in the 401k Plan from our net profits Employees may invest their account balances in up to

sixteen outside independent mutual funds and in our common stock

As of December 31 2011 the 401k Plans related trust held 186717 shares of our common

stock for the benefit of 219 participants including both active and retired employees Each participant

may elect to receive payment in cash or our common stock

The Corporation may in its discretion make special class of quarterly immediately-vested

nonforfeitable non-matching contributions as uniform percentage of each plan participants Plan

Compensation as defined in the plan These are called special contributions and management is

permitted in its discretion to determine the amount of special contributions if any from time to time

up to 3% of employees gross compensation special contribution of 3% was made to the 401k plan

for all eligible officers and employees on quarterly basis throughout 2011
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Pension Plan

Certain of our employees have participated in our Pension Plan which is defined benefit

qualified non-contributory pension plan The Pension Plan was frozen effective March 31 2008 No

new employees have been eligible to participate in the Pension Plan since March 31 2008 and

compensation paid to and service completed by all Pension Plan participants after March 31 2008 is

disregarded in computing accrued benefits under the plan Benefits under the Pension Plan are paid

from trust and the Bank is the trustee At retirement benefits under the Pension Plan are paid

monthly The Pension Plan does not provide for any lump sum payment of benefits unless the present

value of accumulated benefits is less than $5000 The Pension Plan remains adequately funded and no

contribution was required for 2011 based on ERISA funding requirements The net periodic pension

cost is computed on the basis of accepted actuarial methods which include the current year service

cost and reported in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles

order to participate in the Pension Plan the participating named executive officers were required to

be at least 20 1/2
years

of age or have six months of service with the Corporation as of March 31 2008

Normal retirement age under the Pension Plan is 65 Each officers accrued monthly pension benefit as of

March 31 2008 was calculated as follows 1.3% of average annual compensation times years of benefit

service with no maximum number of years plus 0.5% of average annual compensation in excess of

covered compensation times
years

of benefit service with maximum of 35 such years Average annual

compensation is defmed under the Pension Plan to mean the average of the participants compensation for

the five consecutive plan years
in the last 10 years as an eligible employee that produces the highest

average with compensation defmed as the basic rate of salary paid to the participant including bonus

overtime and commissions subject to annual limitations imposed by Section 401a17 of the Internal

Revenue Code Covered compensation is the average of the taxable wage bases in effect under

Section 230 of the Social Security Act for each calendar year in the thirty-five year period ending with the

calendar year
in which participant reached his social security retirement age

If the participant retires between the ages of 55 and 62 the amount of the benefits is reduced on

sliding scale For retirement at age 55 the participant is entitled to 62.3% of the accrued benefits If

participant retires at age 62 the participant is entitled to 100% of the accrued benefit Credited years
of

service under the Pension Plan cannot exceed the participants actual years of service

Supplemental Employee Retirement Plans

We maintain two non-qualified defined benefit pension plans designed to supplement the benefits

earned by certain participants under our qualified Pension Plan These two plans are our Supplemental

Employee Retirement Plan which we refer to as the First Supplemental Plan and our Supplemental

Employee Retirement Plan for Select Executives which we refer to as the Second Supplemental Plan

First Supplemental Plan In January 1989 we adopted the First Supplemental Plan which we most

recently amended effective January 2009 Federal law places certain limitations on the amount of

compensation which can be taken into account and the retirement income that can be paid under

pension plan qualified under the Code such as our Pension Plan The First Supplemental Plan is

non-qualified plan which was adopted to provide the additional benefit to affected Pension Plan

participants which would have been provided under the Pension Plan but for those limitations as well

as to take into account bonuses deferred by Pension Plan participants under the Deferred Bonus Plan

for Executives which amounts are not taken into account as compensation under the Pension Plans

benefit formula However the First Supplemental Plan was frozen effective March 31 2008 consistent

with the freeze of the Pension Plan as of that date
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Second Supplemental Plan Our Second Supplemental Plan was effective April 2008 as

amended January 2010 for the benefit of eight senior management level officers including our

named executive officers except for Mr Leto The purpose of the Second Supplemental Plan is to

provide its participants with the full level of benefits which would have been provided to them had the

qualified Pension Plan not been frozen and without regard to the limitations on the amount of

compensation which can be taken into account and the retirement income which can be provided under

qualified pension plan The benefit payable to participant at retirement under the Second

Supplemental Plan will be computed under the Pension Plan formula based on all service and

compensation without regard to the freeze or such limitations and counting as compensation any

bonuses deferred under the Deferred Bonus Plan for Executives but reduced by the benefits actually

accrued by the participant
under the frozen Pension Plan and the frozen First Supplemental Plan and

the actuarial equivalent value of the Special Contributions of up to 3% of base salary allocated to the

participant under the 401k Plan plus or minus cumulative earnings or losses on those contributions

As of December 31 2011 only one of the named executive officers Mr Peters was eligible

for early retirement under the Pension Plan and these Supplemental Plans

NONQUALIFIED DEFERRED COMPENSATION

The following table shows information regarding deferred compensation for the named executive

officers under our Deferred Bonus Plan for Executives for the year ending December 31 2011

Executive Registrant Aggregate Aggregate

Contributions Contributions Earnings Withdrawals/ Aggregate Balance

in 2011 in 2011 in 2011 Distributions at 2011 Year.End

Name and Principal Position $2

Frederick Peters II 404 1024721

Chief Executive Officer

Duncan Smith 105 11334

Chief Financial Officer

AlisonE Gers 1249 125298

Executive Vice President of the Bank

Joseph Keefer

Executive Vice President of the Bank

Francis Leto

Executive Vice President and General Counsel

of the Bank

Includes the value of 202 phantom stock units held in the Deferred Bonus Plan for Executives

No portion of these earnings were reported on the Summary Compensation Table as they did not result from above-market interest rates

Deferred Bonus Plan for Executives

Our Deferred Bonus Plan for Executives is non..qualified plan The funds are held in trust

administered by the Banks Wealth Management Division Under the plan the participating executives

may earn yields on their deferred compensation based on the yields on one or more different

investment funds For this purpose participants may select among up to fifteen outside independent

mutual funds and in our common stock Choosing the latter creates phantom stock share of phantom

stock is economically equivalent to one share of common stock but the holder does not have the right

to receive an actual share of stock or to vote the phantom stock unit The rates of return provided by

the mutual funds for the investment options for the year 2011 ranged from 14.63% for the foreign large

blend asset category to 4.47% for the small cap blend asset category The rate of return on our stock
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was 15.16% The rate of return positive or negative on the investment options is based on the actual

performance of the mutual funds or our common stock Each executive officer who participates in the

plan may defer the receipt of his deferred compensation until January of the following year

retirement or other separation from employment or age 65 if he or she retires at an earlier age

under the Pension Plan or the Supplemental Plans In certain very limited circumstances involving

hardship as defined in the Deferred Bonus Plan participant may request withdrawal of his/her

deferred compensation The right to receive future payments under the plan is an unsecured claim

against our general assets

POTENTIAL PAYMENTS UPON TERMINATION OR CHANGE IN CONTROL

The information below summarizes the compensation and benefits for each of our named

executive officers in the event of termination of the named executive officers employment Amounts

shown are estimates and the actual amounts to be paid can only be determined at the time of the named

executive officers termination of employment

Payments upon Termination for Cause or Other Than for Cause Performance Awards

Under the 2010 LTIP if we terminate named executive officer with or without cause as defined

in the 2010 LTIP then the named executive officer forfeits any shares of restricted stock subject to

restricted period or performance goal

If at any time during restricted period or within two years after termination of the named

executive officers employment with the Corporation the executive officer engages in any activity

inimical contrary or harmful to the interests of the Corporation including but not limited to the

activities set forth below all unvested shares of restricted stock outstanding pursuant to the

Performance Award as of the date on which the activity was engaged in shall be forfeited in their

entirety and ii for any restricted stock that has vested pursuant to the Performance Award and been

delivered to the executive officer the executive officer shall pay to the Corporation the market value of

the restricted stock on the date of the grant or the day the named executive officer engaged in such

activity whichever is greater The offending activities may include but are not limited to

conduct related to the executive officers employment for which either criminal or civil

penalties against the executive officer may be brought

violations of the Corporations policies including without limitation the Corporations

insider trading policy

solicitation of any customer of the Corporation for business which would result in such

customer terminating their relationship with the Corporation

solicitation or inducement of any individual who is an employee or director of the

Corporation to leave the Corporation or otherwise terminate their relationship with the

Corporation

disclosure or use of any confidential information or material concerning the Corporation in

an inappropriate manner or

participation in hostile takeover attempt
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Payments upon Termination for Cause Options

if we terminate named executive officer for cause as defmed in the applicable incentive

compensation plans then the named executive officer forfeits all vested and unvested stock option

awards The 2001 and 2004 Plans and the 2007 LTIP have varied defmitions of Cause but common

themes include personal dishonesty willful misconduct breach of fiduciary duty failure to perform

duties the willful violation of any law rule or regulation that results in loss to us gross misconduct

that is materially and demonstrably injurious to the Corporation or its successor or violation of any

judicial order or violation of any confidentiality non-competition or non-solicitation provision in any

agreement with us or any of our subsidiaries Upon termination for cause the named executive officer

is entitled to receive the following amounts

salary through the date of termination

salary in lieu of unused paid time off and

amounts contributed and accrued under our Deferred Bonus Plan for Executives

Payment upon Termination Other Than for Cause Options

Under the 2001 and 2004 Plans and the 2007 LTIP if we terminate named executive officer for

reasons other than cause or the named executive officer voluntarily terminates employment then in

addition to the amounts identified above under Payments Upon Termination for Cause the named

executive officer is entitled to

retain all vested stock options but unvested options become null and void and

severance benefits if the executives position has been eliminated or the executive is

terminated without cause Salary continuation benefits payable to the named executive

officers are based on formula of two weeks severance pay for each year of employment

with minimum of six months salary continuation and maximum of one year salary

continuation We also continue medical benefits during the period when the salary

continuation payments are made The severance pay policy is not based on merit and does

not apply if an executive is terminated for lack of performance We retain discretion

whether to pay these benefits

If we terminate Mr Peters employment for reasons other than cause absent change in control

then he is entitled to receive an amount equal to his full salary in effect on the date of termination in

bi-weekly installments for two years or until his 65th birthday whichever occurs first

Payments upon Retirement Death or Disability Performance Awards

Under the 2010 LTIP if named executive officers employment is terminated by reason of

normal or late retirement with the consent of the Compensation Committee early retirement or

transfer in spinoff death or total and permanent disability as determined by the Compensation

Committee then the executive officer will receive as vested stock pro-rated portion of the restricted

stock based on the lapse of time since the date of grant and the remainder of the restricted stock will

be forfeited immediately The pro rata portion of restricted stock that will vest is determined by

fraction the numerator of which is the number of calendar months that have elapsed in the restricted

period prior to the death disability or retirement of the named executive officer and the denominator

of which is the number of months in the entire restricted period
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Payments upon Retirement 2001 and 2004 Plans and 2007 LTIP

Under the 2001 and 2004 Plans and the 2007 LTIP when the named executive officer retires in

addition to the items identified above the named executive officer is entitled to the following

vesting of all outstanding options issued pursuant to the 2001 and 2004 Plans which need

to be exercised within five years
after retirement or the expiration of the option period if

shorter Currently all outstanding options issued under the 2001 and 2004 Plans are fully

vested and

outstanding options issued under the 2007 Long-Term Incentive Plan will vest pursuant to

the respective grant and vesting schedule approved by the Compensation Committee

Payments upon Death

If named executive officer dies then in addition to the benefits listed in this Potential Payments

Upon Termination or Change in Control Section under the headings Payments upon Termination

other than for Cause Options Payments Upon Retirement Death or Disability Performance

Awards and Payments Upon Retirement 2001 and 2004 Plans and 2007 LTIP the named

executive officers beneficiary will receive benefit payment under our life insurance plan equal to

two times the officers salary or $200000 whichever is less

Payments under Pension Plan and Supplemental Plans

If named executive officers employment is terminated the named executive officer retains the

amounts accrued and vested under our Pension Plan and would receive the same pension benefits as

would any other employee named executive officer is only eligible for payments under the

Supplemental Plans in the event that he or she remains employed by the Bank at the earlier of his or

her death or permanent disability the attainment of his or her normal retirement age under the Pension

Plan age 65 or the attainment of his or her early retirement age age 55 with fifteen years of credited

service However the change in control agreements we have entered into with our named executive

officers may make the executive officer eligible for increased benefits under the Supplemental Plans if

employment is terminated within two years
after change in control of the Corporation see footnote

to the Change in Control Benefits Table on page 47 of this Proxy Statement The present value of the

accumulated benefits under our Pension Plan and Supplemental Plans for each named executive officer

is set forth in the Pension Benefits Table on page 39 of this Proxy Statement
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The following table shows the aggregate dollar amounts that would have been paid to each of the

named executive officers if his or her employment were terminated as of December 31 2011 for each

of the following reasons absent change in control of the Corporation The table assumes that each

officer was also paid all salary and other benefits through the date of termination of employment

Termination

Termination Other than for Voluntary

for Cause CauseX2 Termination2 Death3 Disabiity45

Name and Principal Position

Frederick Peters II 7894776 288034 19500O
Chief Executive Officer

Duncan Smith 19077 89032
Chief Financial Officer

Alison Gers l2l527 253322y

Executive Vice President of the

Bank

Joseph Keefer 1864825X10 4307l7 43071711

Executive Vice President of the

Bank

Francis Leto 383644512 357fjJ13

Executive Vice President and

General Counsel of the Bank

For cases other than termination due to death or disability

Salaries used in calculating the amounts in the table are based on the named executive officers base salary at

December 31 201

This column shows only the present value of the accrued benefit for the executive on termination for death Payments

other than insurance would be paid out in the form of monthly pension payment Payments under the Supplemental

Plans or Pension Plan for participants who have not yet reached normal or early retirement age will be paid in monthly

pension payment at the time the participant would have reached eligibility for normal or early retirement Each executive

is also entitled to one-time $200000 death benefit payable by the insurance provider under term life insurance policies

we have purchased for each executive if he or she dies while employed by us

This column shows only the cash payments we are obligated to make to an executive on termination for disability Each

executive other than Mr Leto is also covered by disability insurance policy that will pay benefit of 70% of base

monthly salaiy to disabled executive Please refer to the section titled Potential Payments Upon Termination or

Change in Control Payments Upon Retirement Death or Disability Performance Awards on page 43 of this Proxy

Statement for more complete description of the benefit which is payable for an indeterminate period

Severance and medical and dental payments are calculated in accordance with our policy on severance pay as in effect on

December 31 2011 The policy provides that decision to pay severance is at our discretion The amounts we pay may

change at any time or we may terminate the severance policy at any time

This includes the aggregate dollar amount of Mr Peters annual salary in effect on the date of the termination payable in

bi-weekly installments for two years This severance payment is provided for in Mr Peters employment contract

described more fully at Executive Compensation Executive Employment Agreement on page 33 It also includes

medical and dental payments for six months in accordance with our severance policy see footnote

In addition to the $200000 one-time death benefit described in footnote above the executive would be entitled to the

listed amount in pension benefit payments that would become payable to his or her spouse upon the date he or she would

have turned 65 assuming his or her spouse survives to that date

Represents the cash payment we are obligated to make in addition to the disability insurance benefits indicated in

footnote equal to Mr Peters full salary for the 180-day elimination period under the disability insurance policy If we

cease to provide long-term group disability insurance we are only obligated to pay his full salary through the last day of

the month after his receipt of notice of termination

Includes severance payments equal to six months of salary and six months of medical and dental coverage expense see

footnote

10 Includes severance payments equal to 40 weeks of salary and 40 weeks of medical and dental coverage expense see

footnote
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11 Represents the pension benefit payments due to Mr Keefer in addition to the disability insurance benefits indicated in

footnote upon his total and permanent disability Mr Keefer would be eligible to start drawing the pension at age 55

and would be credited with imputed service for purposes of the benefit formula until age 55 as if he had still been

working thereby increasing the benefit amount Alternatively Mr Keefer could elect to defer the pension until age 65

and the imputed service would continue to grow until the earlier of age 65 or the date he ceased to be totally and

permanently disabled

12 Includes severance payments pursuant to Mr Letos restrictive covenant agreement with the Bank equal to one years

salary plus bonus equal to the average of the bonuses paid to Mr Leto for the two years prior to termination as well as

one year of medical and dental coverage expense see footnote

13 Pursuant to Mr Letos restrictive covenant agreement with the Bank the Bank may bind Mr Leto to the restrictive

covenants in the agreement upon his voluntary termination upon payment equal to one years salary plus bonus equal to

the average of the bonuses paid to Mr Leto for the two years prior to termination This is not an automatic payment but

is instead paid at the option of the Bank

Payments upon Disability

if named executive officer becomes disabled then in addition to the benefits listed in this

Potential Payments Upon Termination or Change in Control Section under the headings Payments

upon Termination other than for Cause Options Payments Upon Retirement Death or Disability

Performance Awards and Payments Upon Retirement 2001 and 2004 Plans and 2007 LTIP the

named executive officer other than Mr Leto will be entitled to periodic benefit for an indeterminate

period equal to 70% of the officers base monthly income Pursuant to the terms of Mr Peters

employment agreement if his employment had terminated on December 31 2011 due to disability he

would have been entitled to the payment of his full salary for the 80-day elimination period under the

disability insurance policy

Payments Upon Change of Control Performance Awards

Upon change in control pro rata portion of all outstanding Performance Awards under the

2010 LTIP are payable ten days after the change in control The amount payable is determined by

assuming that one hundred percent of each Performance Award was earned at the target levels and then

multiplying the earned amount by fraction the numerator of which is the number of months that have

elapsed in the applicable performance period prior to the change in control and the denominator of

which is the total number of months in the performance period The pro rata portion of the

Performance Awards that is not payable in accordance with the formula described in the preceding

sentence is immediately forfeited

Payments Upon Change of Control

Change in ontrolAgreements

We have entered into change in control agreements with each named executive officer The

agreements contain double trigger for payments change of control must occur and the executive

officer must be terminated either without cause by us or by the executive officer for good

reason at any time during the two years following the change of control Change of control is defmed

under the agreements as the acquisition by any person or group of twenty-five percent or more of

our outstanding common stock or incumbent members of our Board cease to be at least majority

of the Board Benefits under the change in control agreements are listed in the following table
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CHANGE IN CONTROL BENEFITS

Present

Cash Value of Welfare Unused

Payment Increased Benefits5 Paid Career

3x for Discretionary Pension for Three Time Counseling

Name Salary2 Options3 Bonus Benefit4 Years Off Services

Frederick Peters II

Chief Executive Officer $1170000 $137420 $200000 $214995 $56861 8250 $15000

Duncan Smith

Chief Financial Officer 677568 22730 98000 62554 36889 15636 15000

Alison Gers

Executive Vice President of the

Bank 688422 46850 115000 72821 40738 13239 15000

Joseph Keefer

Executive Vice President of the

Bank 684480 44510 98000 68641 42799 15796 15000

Francis Leto

Executive Vice President and

jeneralCounseloftheBank 825000 26240 120000 25933 21683 15000

The table assumes that change in control occurred and the named executive officers employment with the Corporation

terminated as of December 31 2011 The table further assumes that the Compensation Committee awarded the named

executive officer the bonus for the named executive officers performance in 2011 listed in the Summary Compensation

Table set forth on page 32 of this Proxy Statement The table further assumes that the named executive officer does not

obtain employment within three years after his or her termination of employment and welfare benefits and outplacement

services are not reduced Because the assumed termination date is December 31 2011 the named executive officer is

assumed to have received all salary through the date of termination and any 401k contribution

Calculated based on the named executive officers base salary at December 31 2011

Based on the difference between the price of our common stock on December 31 2011 of $19.49 the last business day

prior to the assumed termination of employment and the exercise price of the options listed in the Outstanding Equity

Awards Table beginning on page 37 of this Proxy Statement

Represents the present value of non-qualified pension benefit under our Supplemental Plans for three years of credited

service 2011 standard actuarial assumptions were used to calculate the present
value of each individuals increased

pension benefit including discount rate of 6.00% assumed retirement age
of 65 and the 2011 mortality tables under the

Pension Protection Act of 2006

Welfare benefits include the cost of continuation of medical dental life and disability insurance benefits for 36 whole

months after the termination date on the cost-sharing basis in effect immediately prior to the change of control

SECTION 16a BENEFICIAL OWNERSHIP REPORTING COMPLIANCE

Section 16a of the Exchange Act requires our directors and executive officers to file reports of

their holdings of our common stock with the SEC and with the Nasdaq Stock Market on which our

common stock is traded Based on our records and other information available to us we believe that no

person who was director officer or beneficial owner of more than ten percent of any class of equity

securities of the Corporation registered pursuant to Section 12 of the Exchange Act at any time during

the fiscal year ended December 31 2011 or prior fiscal years failed to file on timely basis any

Forms or or any amendments thereto required to be filed pursuant to Section 16a of the

Exchange Act except for the inadvertent failure to timely report one transaction on Form for Mr

Loyall Taylor Jr in connection with the exercise of options and subsequent dividend reinvestment of

such options
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TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PERSONS

Some of our directors and executive officers members of their immediate families and the

companies with which they are associated were our customers and had banking transactions with us in

the ordinary course of our business during 2011 All loans and commitments to lend were made on

substantially the same terms including interest rates and collateral as those prevailing at the time for

comparable transactions with other non-affiliated customers In our opinion the loans and

commitments did not involve more than normal risk of collectability or present other unfavorable

features

George Connell Jr was employed by us during 2011 as Senior Vice President in the Banks

Wealth Management Division We paid Mr Connell total compensation of approximately $167560 in

2011 which includes salary conimissions incentives benefits and 40 1k contributions made by the

Bank Mr Connell father George Connell Sr is beneficial owner of more than 5% of our

common stock The Radnor Blind Trust John McGill Trustee has the sole voting and dispositive

power over the shares for which Mr George Connell Sr is the sole beneficial owner

Bruce Leto brother of our director General Counsel and Executive Vice President Francis

Leto is partner of and on the board of directors of Stradley Ronon Stevens Young LLP law

firm headquartered in Philadelphia Pennsylvania The firm provides legal services to the Corporation

and Bank for which the firm received approximately $419673 in fees during 2011 Bruce Letos

indirect interest in these fees was approximately $16834 computed without regard to the amount of

profit or loss

Our Audit Committee Charter requires our Audit Committee to approve certain related party

transactions Our written Policy on Related Party Transactions establishes procedures for the Audit

Committees review and approval of related party
transactions other than excepted transactions and

preapproved transactions Transactions available to all employees generally and transactions involving

less than $120000 when aggregated with all similar transactions in any calendar year are excepted

transactions The following types of transactions are preapproved transactions

compensation payable to directors or officers if reportable under Item 402 of the SECs

Regulation S-K

compensation payable to an immediate family member of another director or executive

officer if approved by the Compensation Committee

transactions with another company including charitable contributions grants or

endowments to charitable organization at which related persons only relationship is

as an employee other than executive officer director or less than 10% owner if the

aggregate amount involved does not exceed $200000 or 5% of that companys total

revenues and

routine banking relationships that otherwise comply with banking laws and regulations

The Audit Conmiittee is to apply the following standards when it reviews related party

transactions for approval

whether the transaction is on terms no less favorable to the Corporation than terms

generally available with an unaffiliated third party under similar circumstances

the extent of the related persons interest in the transaction and

other factors the committee deems appropriate
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For loan transactions our written Regulation Policy requires the Executive Committee to

review and approve loan transactions with directors executive officers and their related interests in

accordance with the standards established by Federal Reserve Board Regulation

AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT

Management is responsible for the financial reporting process including the system of internal

controls and for the preparation
of our consolidated financial statements in accordance with generally

accepted accounting principles Our independent registered public accounting firm is responsible for

auditing those financial statements The Audit Committees responsibility is to monitor and review

these processes acting in an oversight capacity relying on the information provided to it and on the

representations made by management and the independent registered accounting firm

In connection with the preparation and filing of our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year

ended December 31 2011 the Audit Committee reviewed and discussed the audited financial

statements with our management discussed with KPMG LLP KPMG our independent

registered public accounting firm the matters required to be discussed by Statement on Auditing

Standards No 61 as modified or supplemented discussed the independence of KPMG with

KPMG and has received and reviewed the written disclosures and the letter from KPMG required

by Independence Standards Board Standard No as modified or supplemented regarding KPMGs

communications with the Audit Committee concerning independence and has discussed with KPMG

its independence Based on the review and discussions referred to above the Audit Committee

recommended to the Board that the audited financial statements be included in our Annual Report on

Form 10-K for the year ended December 31 2011 to be filed with the SEC

Respectfully submitted

Scott Jenkins Chair

Britton Murdoch

Loyall Taylor Jr

Jerry Johnson

49



PROPOSAL 3- RATIFICATION OF iNDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC
ACCOUNTING FIRM

proposal will be presented at the Annual Meeting to ratify the January 26 2012 appointment

by the Board of Directors of KPMG as the Corporations independent registered public accounting

firm for 2012 KPMG served as the Corporations independent registered public accounting firm in

2011

INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

Our Audit Committee has appointed KPMG as the independent registered public accounting firm

to audit our financial statements for the fiscal year ended December 31 2012 KPMG audited our

financial statements for the fiscal year ended December 31 2011 representative of KPMG is

expected to be present at the Annual Meeting to answer questions and will have the opportunity to

make statement if he or she so desires

AUDIT AND NON-AUDIT FEES

The aggregate fees billed for professional services by KPMG in 2011 and 2010 for these various

services were

2011 2010

Audit Fees $527800 $841198

Audit Related Fees 55000 59373

Tax Fees 142500 70000

Total Fees $725300 $970571

Services Provided by KPMG

Audit Fees These are fees for professional services performed by KPMG in 2011 and 2010 for

the integrated audit including an audit of our fmancial statements and internal controls over

financial reporting and review of financial statements included in our Form 10-Q and Form 10-K

filings The decrease in audit fees in 2011 are attributable to the fact that KPMG rendered services

in connection with comfort letter SEC filings and services related to the acquisition of First

Keystone in 2010 and such services were not necessary in 2011

Audit Related Fees These are fees for services performed by KPMG in 2011 and 2010 that are

reasonably related to the performance of the audit or review of our financial statements This

includes attestations by the independent registered public accounting firm and consulting on

financial accounting/reporting standards

Tax Fees These are fees for professional services performed by the independent registered public

accounting firm with respect to tax compliance tax advice and tax planning This includes

preparation of our tax returns and our consolidated subsidiaries tax research and tax advice

Our Audit Committee has considered whether the provision of the non-audit services is

compatible with maintaining the independence of KPMG and determined that to be the case
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Preapproval of Audit and Non-Audit Services

Under our Audit Committee charter the Audit Committee is required to preapprove all auditing

services and permitted non-audit services including the fees and terms thereof to be performed for us

by the independent registered public accounting firm subject to the de minimus exception for

non-audit services under SEC regulations which are approved by the Audit Committee prior to

completion The Audit Committee may also delegate the ability to preapprove audit and permitted

non-audited services to subcommittee consisting of one or more members provided that any

pre-approvals are reported to the full committee at its next scheduled meeting All services performed

by KPMG for us during 2011 were preapproved by the Audit Committee

In the event the selection of KPMG as our auditor for 2012 is not ratified by the affirmative vote

of majority of the shares of common stock represented at the Annual Meeting the appointment of the

Corporations independent registered public accounting firm will be reconsidered by the Audit

Committee and the Board

Unless marked to the contrary the shares represented by the enclosed Proxy will be voted

FOR the ratification of KPMG as the independent registered public accounting firm of the

Corporation

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS RECOMMENDS VOTE FOR THE RATIFICATION OF

THE APPOINTMENT OF KPMG AS THE INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC

ACCOUNTING FIRM OF THE CORPORATION
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SHAREHOLDER PROPOSALS FOR 2013

Shareholder proposals submitted pursuant to Rule 14a-8 under the Exchange Act for inclusion in

the Corporations proxy statement for its 2013 Annual Meeting of Shareholders must be received by

the Corporation no later than November 30 2012 which is 120 days prior to the anniversary of the

mailing date of this Proxy Statement However if the date of the 2013 Annual Meeting shall be

changed by more than 30 days from the date of the previous years meeting then the deadline is

reasonable time before the Corporation begins to print and send its proxy materials Any such proposal

and our obligation if applicable to include it in our proxy statement will be subject to Rule 14a-8 of

the rules and regulations of the SEC Shareholder proposals for nominees for directors must be

submitted to the Chair Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee Board of Directors Bryn
Mawr Bank Corporation P.O Box 351 Bryn Mawr PA 19010-3396 Any other proposals should be

submitted by certified mail-return receipt requested to the attention of our Corporate Secretary at our

executive office at 801 Lancaster Avenue Bryn Mawr PA 19010-3396

If shareholder wishes to present proposal at the 2013 Annual Meeting but does not intend to

have such proposal included in the Corporations proxy statement and such proposal is properly

brought before the 2013 Annual Meeting then in accordance with Rule 14a-4 under the Exchange Act
if the shareholder has not provided notice of the proposal by February 15 2013 or if the date of the

meeting has changed more than 30 days from the prior year reasonable time before the Company
sends its proxy materials we will have the right to exercise our discretionary voting authority on that

proposal The persons designated in the Corporations proxy card will be granted discretionary voting

authority with
respect to any such shareholder proposal for which the Corporation does not receive

timely notice

OTHER BUSINESS

Management does not know at this time of any other matter which will be presented for action at

the Annual Meeting If any unanticipated business is properly brought before the Annual Meeting the

proxies will vote in accordance with their best judgment
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ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

copy of our Annual Report for the fiscal year ended December 31 2011 containing among

other things financial statements examined by our independent registered public accounting firm was

mailed with this Proxy Statement on or about March 30 2012 to the shareholders of record as of the

close of business on March 15 2012

Upon written request of any shareholder copy of our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal

year ended December 31 2011 including the financial statements and schedules required to be filed

with the SEC may be obtained without charge from our Corporate Secretary Geoffrey Halberstadt

801 Lancaster Avenue Bryn Mawr PA 19010-3396 The Annual Report on Form 10-K can also be

obtained by going to the Corporations website at www.bmtc.com on the Investor Relations SEC

Filings page and clicking on Latest 10-K

By Order of the Board of Directors of Bryn Mawr

Bank Corporation

GEOFFREY HALBERSTADT

Corporate Secretary
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APPENDIX

AUDIT COMMITFEE CHARTER

BRYN MAWR BANK CORPORATION
THE BRYN MAWR TRUST COMPANY

AUDIT COMMITTEE CHARTER

Composition

The Audit Committee the Committee of Bryn Mawr Bank Corporation and The Bryn Mawr

Trust Company collectively the Corporation is appointed annually by the Board of Directors

collectively the Board of each of Bryn Mawr Bank Corporation and The Bryn Mawr Trust

Company and is comprised of not less than three independent directors All members of the

Committee shall be independent directors pursuant to the standards proposed by the National

Association of Securities Dealers NASDAQ All members shall meet the experience requirements

of NASDAQ and at least one member if practicable shall be financial expert as defined by the rules

of the Securities and Exchange Commission SEC

Purpose

The purpose of the Committee shall be to assist the Board in overseeing the integrity of the

financial statements of the Corporation the Corporations compliance with legal and appropriate

regulatory requirements the independence and qualifications of the independent auditor and the

performance of the Corporations internal audit function and independent auditors

Authority and Responsibility

The Committee shall recommend for share owner approval the independent auditor to examine

the Corporations accounts controls and financial statements The Committee shall have the sole

authority and responsibility to select evaluate and if necessary replace the independent auditor The

Committee shall be directly responsible for the compensation and oversight of the work of the

independent auditor including resolution of disagreements between management and the independent

auditor regarding fmancial reporting for the purpose of preparing or issuing an audit report or related

work The independent auditor shall report directly to the Committee

The Committee shall pre-approve all auditing services and permitted non-audit services including

the fees and terms thereof to be performed for the Corporation by its independent auditor The

foregoing requirement is subject to the exception for non-audit services constituting not more than 5%

of all auditing revenues paid during the fiscal year not initially recognized to be non-audit services

and promptly brought to the attention of the Committee and approved prior to completion The

Committee may form and delegate authority to subcommittees consisting of one or more members

when appropriate including the authority to grant pre-approvals of audit and permitted non-audit

services provided that decisions of such subconmiittee to grant pre-approval shall be presented to the

full Committee at its next scheduled meeting

The Committee will meet as often as it deems necessary but not less frequently than quarterly

The Committee will meet periodically with management the internal auditor and the independent

auditor separately in executive session to discuss any matters that the Committee or these persons

believe should be discussed The Committee will also meet periodically in separate executive sessions
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The Committee shall have authority to retain such outside counsel experts and other advisors as the

Committee may deem appropriate in its sole discretion The Committee shall have sole authority to

approve related fees and retention terms The Committee shall report its recommendations to the Board

after each Committee meeting and shall conduct and present to the Board an annual performance

evaluation of the Committee The Committee shall review at least annually the adequacy of this

Charter and recommend any proposed changes to the Board for approval

The Committee to the extent it deems necessary or appropriate shall

Discuss with management and the independent auditor the annual audited financial

statements and quarterly fmancial statements including matters required to be reviewed

under applicable legal regulatory or NASDAQ requirements Review with management
and the independent auditor the annual audited financial statements including disclosures

made in managements discussion and analysis and recommend to the Board whether the

audited financial statements should be included in the Corporations Form 10-K and

determine that the independent auditor is satisfied with the disclosure content and quality

of the financial statements to be filed with the SEC and to be presented to the shareholders

in the Corporations Annual Report to the shareholders

Discuss with management and the independent auditor as appropriate earnings press

releases and financial information and earnings guidance provided to analysts and to rating

agencies prior to release

Discuss with management and the independent auditor as appropriate any audit problems

or difficulties and managements response thereto and discuss with the independent

auditor the matters required to be discussed by Statement on Auditing Standards No 61

relating to the conduct of the audit including any difficulties encountered in the course of

the audit work any restrictions on the scope of activities or access to requested

information and any significant disagreements with management

Discuss with management and the independent auditors significant financial reporting issues

and judgments made in connection with the preparation of the Corporations financial

statements including any significant changes in the Corporations selection or application of

accounting principles any major issues as to the adequacy of the Corporations internal

controls and any special steps adopted in light of material control deficiencies

Review and approve the internal audit staff functions including purpose authority and

objectivity ii annual audit plan budget and staffing and iii concurrence in the

appointment and compensation of the Senior Vice President and Auditor and annually

evaluate the performance of the Senior Vice President and Auditor

Review with the Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer the Senior Vice

President and Auditor and the independent auditor or such others as the Committee deems

appropriate the Corporations internal system of controls and the results of internal audits

Review and discuss periodic reports from the independent auditors on all critical

accounting policies and practices to be used all alternative treatments of financial

information within generally accepted accounting principles that have been discussed with

management ramifications of the use of such alternative disclosures and treatments and

the treatment preferred by the independent auditor and other material written

communications between the independent auditor and management such as any

management letter or schedule of unadjusted differences
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Obtain and review at least annually formal written report from the independent auditor

delineating the auditing firms internal quality-control procedures any material issues

raised within the preceding five years by the auditing firms internal quality-control

reviews by peer reviews of the firm or by any govermnental or other inquiry or

investigation relating to any audit conducted by the firm The Committee will also review

steps
taken by the auditing firm to address any findings in any of the foregoing reviews

Also in order to assess auditor independence the Committee will review at least annually

all relationships between the independent auditor and the Corporation consistent with

Independence Standards Board Standard

Obtain from the independent auditor assurance that the independent auditor has complied

with Section 10 of the Exchange Act which requires the independent auditor to

report to the Committee any illegal act which it detects or otherwise becomes aware of

during the course of its audit

Prepare and publish an annual committee report in the Corporations proxy statement

Recommend to the Board policies
for the hiring of employees or former employees of the

Corporations independent auditor

Insure the rotation of the lead or coordinating audit partner having primary responsibility

for the audit and the audit partner
for reviewing the audit as required by law

Review disclosures made to the Conmiittee by the Corporations CEO and CFO during

their certification process for the Form 10-K and the Form 10-Q about any significant

deficiencies in the design or operation of internal controls or material weaknesses therein

and any fraud involving management or other employees who have significant role in the

Corporations internal controls

Review and investigate any matters pertaining to the integrity of management including

conflicts of interest or adherence to standards of business conduct as required in the

policies of the Corporation and to approve all related party
transactions

Establish procedures for the receipt retention and treatment of complaints received by the

Corporation regarding accounting internal accounting controls or auditing matters and the

confidential anonymous submission by employees of concerns regarding questionable

accounting or auditing matters

The Committee shall make such other recommendations to the Board on such matters as

may come to its attention and which at its discretion warrant consideration by the Board

Limitations

While the Committee has the responsibilities and powers set forth in this Charter it is not the duty

of the Committee to plan or conduct audits or to determine that the Corporations financial statements

and disclosures are complete and accurate and are in accordance with generally accepted accounting

principles and applicable rules and regulations These are the responsibilities of management and the

independent auditor

Annual Charter Review

The Committee shall review this Charter at least annually and recommend any changes to the full

Board
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